L X

Cambridge City Council &
CAMBRIDGE
Civic Affairs CITY COUNCIL

Date: Thursday, 3 November 2022
Time: 10.00 am

Venue: Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2
3QJ

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000

Agenda

Apologies

Declarations of Interest

Public Questions

Annual Governance Statement 2021/2022 (Pages 3 - 48)

Statement of Accounts 2021/22 (Pages 49 -
176)

o A W DN PP




Civic Affairs Members: McPherson (Chair), Carling (Vice-Chair), Bennett,
Davey, Hauk and Thornburrow

Alternates: Bick, S. Davies and Moore

Information for the public
The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open
to the public.

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors
and the democratic process:

o Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk

e Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

e Phone: 01223 457000

This Meeting will be live streamed to the Council’'s YouTube page. You can
watch proceedings on the livestream or attend the meeting in person.

Those wishing to address the meeting will be able to do so virtually via
Microsoft Teams, or by attending to speak in person. You must contact
Democratic Services democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk by 12 noon two

working days before the meeting.



http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 4

ltem a4 -
=

CITY COUNCIL

Annual Governance Statement
and Local Code of Governance

To:

Civic Affairs Committee  [03/11/2022]

Report by:

Jonathan Tully, Head of Shared Internal Audit Service

Tel: 01223 - 458180 Email: jonathan.tully@cambridge.gov.uk

Wards affected:
All

1. Introduction / Executive Summary

1.1 This report presents the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for
2021/2022, and the Local Code of Corporate Governance, for
consideration by the Civic Affairs Committee.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to report the annual review of effectiveness,
provide updates on the progress from the previous year, communicate
any new governance issues, and provide an update of the Local Code of
Corporate Governance.

Recommendations

2.1 Members of the committee should approve the Annual Governance
Statement in advance of the Statement of Accounts. To help complete
this, members should note:

¢ the arrangements for compiling, reporting on and signing the AGS;
e the progress made on issues reported in the previous year;
e the current review of effectiveness

e the issues considered for inclusion in the current AGS;

Page 3

Report page no. 1 Agenda page no.



2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Report page no. 2

Members should note and endorse the amendments to the updated Local
Code of Corporate Governance;

Background

Scope of the AGS

Internal control and risk management are recognised as important
elements of good corporate governance. The scope of governance, as
covered in the AGS, spans the whole range of the Council’s activities and
includes those designed to ensure that:

e The Council’s policies are implemented in practice;

e High quality services are delivered efficiently and effectively;
e The Council’s values and ethical standards are met;

e Laws and regulations are complied with;

e Required processes are adhered to;

e Its financial statements and other published information are accurate
and reliable; and

e Human, financial and other resources are managed efficiently and
effectively.

Arrangements for compiling the AGS

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Council to review its
governance arrangements and prepare an AGS to accompany the
Statement of Accounts. The AGS should demonstrate how we comply
with our Local Code of Governance.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), in
conjunction with the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
(SOLACE), have produced a framework for delivering good governance
in local government. The framework guidance “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government Framework 2016” is used as a guide
in compiling the AGS. We also take into account continuous best practice
iIssued throughout the year that supplements the framework guidance.

The AGS is coordinated through Internal Audit, with input from the Senior
Officers of the Council.

Assurances from the work of the Internal Audit team have been reviewed
and have been used to inform the AGS and its associated action plan. A
professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of

Page 4 Agenda page no.



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Report page no. 3

the key elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK
public sector.

Significant events

The Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement is
prepared to a timetable set in the Accounts and Audit regulations.

The Annual Governance Statement primarily reflects events from the
previous financial year, in this case 2021/2022, but can consider
significant events up to the date that the Statement of Accounts are
approved.

The Covid-19 pandemic commenced at the end of the 2019/2020
financial year but has continued to have a significant impact on the
Council in 2021/2022.

The Council responded to the pandemic and completed numerous
activities to maintain our governance arrangements. These activities
contribute to many of the principals from our Local Code of Governance,
such as engaging with stakeholders, determining interventions to
achieve outcomes, managing risk, and adapting our internal controls.

Good practice guidance from our professional bodies advised that, as
many of these are cross cutting, it would be good to highlight a single
reference to the Covid-19 pandemic. We have included a section in the
AGS for this.

Financial Management Code

The latest guidance from CIPFA requires that we evaluate our
compliance with the Financial Management Code. This is a new
requirement, and we added a section in the previous AGS report to
highlight this. Internal Audit have completed an independent review in
2022/2023 to help support this statement.

Arrangements for reporting and approving the AGS

The Accounts and Audit regulations require the Committee to approve
the AGS in advance of the Statement of Accounts.

The draft AGS was prepared with the Statement of Accounts and
published on our website. Members of the Committee were invited to a
workshop and an overview of the AGS, plus governance arrangements,
was presented.

Page 5 Agenda page no.


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Report page no. 4

The draft AGS was then issued to the External Auditors to review as part
of the draft Statement of Accounts. No further amendments have been
requested prior to the publication of this report.

Members should now approve the AGS appended to this report. As the
AGS is published prior to the external auditor’'s work being concluded,
we may need to reflect any updates requested between the publication
date and the meeting, although these would be expected to be minor.

The final, and formatted, version of the AGS will also be included with the
approved and published Statement of Accounts.

Local Code of Corporate Governance

The preparation of the AGS and the Local Code of Governance is
undertaken in accordance with the guidance published by CIPFA.

The framework is intended to assist authorities in ensuring their own
governance arrangements are suitably resourced, there is sound and
inclusive decision making and there is clear accountability for the use of
resources to achieve the desired outcomes for stakeholders.

Guidance suggests each local authority should develop and maintain a
Code of Corporate Governance based on seven core principles,
supported by sub-principles that should underpin the governance
structure for the whole Council.

The Council first adopted a Code of Corporate Governance on 25 April
2002 and it has been reviewed annually since then. The Code stands as
the overall statement of the Councils corporate governance principles
and commitments.

Significant changes were made in 2017, following revised international
guidance being issued in 2016.

The Code is continually reviewed as good practice. We have attached
the revised code, and it includes tracked changes to highlight the
updates. A final “clean” version will be published on our website.

The Code includes the Seven principles of public life, as it applies to
anyone who works for local government and supports good governance.
Itis updated to reflect any changes made by the Committee on Standards
in Public Life. The Leadership descriptor was recently updated.

Implications

(a) Financial Implications

Page 6 Agenda page no.



None.

(b) Staffing Implications

None

(c) Equality and Poverty Implications
There are no implications.

(d) Net Zero Carbon, Climate Change and Environmental
Implications

None.

(e) Procurement Implications
None.

(f) Community Safety Implications
None.

5. Consultation and communication considerations

Key officers have been consulted in compiling the draft AGS and Local
Code of Governance. The draft AGS was issued to Members of the
Civic Affairs Committee, and the Council’s External Auditors for
comment as part of the Statement of Accounts.

6. Background papers
Background papers used in the preparation of this report:
e Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (CIPFA 2016)
e Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015

e CIPFA good practice guidance on AGS presentation

7. Appendices
a) Annual Governance Statement
b) Local Code of Governance

8. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please
contact Jonathan Tully, Head of Shared Internal Audit Service, tel: 01223 -
458180, email: jonathan.tully@cambridge.gov.uk.

Page 7

Report page no. 5 Agenda page no.



This page is intentionally left blank



Covering Note

This is the draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) for 2021/2022.

The AGS has been prepared as per the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and Proper
Professional Practice. This includes guidance from CIPFA and SOLACE.

The current status of this document is draft. It is unaudited and may be updated and amended.

The draft AGS has been published as required by relevant legislation:
http://www.leqislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/requlation/15/made. It has been prepared in
accordance with regulation 6(1)(b). As a draft document the statement has not yet been
approved in accordance with regulation 6(2)(b), and the final version will be approved by the
Civic Affairs Committee in advance of the Statement of Accounts.

The AGS should reflect events in the relevant financial year, plus up to when the Accounts
are approved by Committee. The document and action plan will continue to be developed
during this period. The Covid-19 events in particular has continued to have a significant effect
on Councils since March 2021. Consequently, it is appropriate to reflect this in the AGS, and
further updates may need to be included if new guidance is issued from professional bodies
and Central Government.

Page 9


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/15/made

Page 10



Introduction and purpose

The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the
law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and
that it also provides value for money. It has to effectively manage its risks and put in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs.

Definition of Corporate Governance

Corporate governance generally refers to the processes by which an organisation is directed,
controlled, led and held to account.

Good governance in the public sector means: "achieving the intended outcomes while acting
in the public interest at all times"

The Governance Framework

Our governance framework comprises the culture, values, systems and processes by which
the Council is directed and controlled. It brings together an underlying set of legislative and
regulatory requirements, good practice principles and management processes.

The Council has a robust process for reviewing and updating the governance framework.

Corporate Governance Framework Captured in the Local Reviewed by Senior
Code of Govemnance :> Management Team

Examp!es Include:

= Corporate Plan and Vision

- Performance management @

- Business strategy & planning process -

- Annual budget & budgetary control Evaluated in the Annual <:|

- Constitution Governance Statement

= Consultation

- Project management system

- Risk management

= Counter fraud policies

Published and reported Reviewed by the
= Codes of conduct ::> ;
= Whistle blowing policy online External Auditors
= Code of Ethics
- Financial policies and procedures Approved by the Civic

Affairs Committee

The Council has set out aims and objectives which are published on our website!. The Council
has a clear vision to "lead a united city, ‘One Cambridge - Fair for All’, in which economic
dynamism and prosperity are combined with social and environmental justice and equality”
The vision has three main aims, captured in the annual statement:

* to make Cambridge fair for all,
* to make it a great place to live, learn and work, and

» caring for the planet.

1 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/vision-statement

Page 11


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/vision-statement
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/vision-statement

FOOD BANK

The Council produces a Corporate Plan?, which included three key priorities for 2021/2022:

» Tackling poverty and inequality and helping people in the greatest need

* Leading Cambridge’s response to the climate change emergency and biodiversity
crisis

» Delivering quality services within financial constraints whilst transforming the council

The Council prepares an Annual Report illustrating progress against the plan each year, and
this is published on the website.

Local Code of Governance

We are responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance which
incorporates the system of internal control.

The Governance Framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts. It is recorded in our Local
Code of Governance, which is underpinned by the 7 principles of good governance as set out
in the CIPFA / SOLACE publication ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government
Framework 2016’. The principles are:

A. behaving with integrity and in accordance with our core values

being open and ensuring effective engagement takes place

working together to achieve our intended outcomes

setting goals for economic, social and environmental benefits and reaching them

growing our capacity - including our leadership and the people who work with us

nmooOw

managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong financial
management

G. Implementing good practice in transparency, reporting and audit — delivering effective
accountability

Role and responsibilities

All of the Council is responsible for developing and complying with its Local Code of
Governance. We have a variety of governance structures, and some of the key roles include:

2 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan

Page 12


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/code-of-corporate-governance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/code-of-corporate-governance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan

Governance Roles and responsibilities
structures

Council Council agrees the budget and policy framework, such as the
Corporate Plan, Medium Term Financial Strategy. Further details
are published on our website.

The Executive The Executive is the Leader of the council and six Executive
Councillors. They make decisions on major service areas.

They can make decisions individually, usually at a meeting of a
scrutiny committee relevant to their executive area. They also meet
collectively to determine the council's budget and medium-term
financial strategy.

Scrutiny and To balance the Executive's powers, scrutiny committees are
Overview responsible for advising and reviewing decisions. They hold the
Committees Executive to account to make sure the best decisions are taken for
the council and local residents. Further details are published on our
website:

* Environment and Community Scrutiny Committee

¢ Housing Scrutiny Committee

* Planning and Transport Scrutiny Committee

« Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee

Leadership Team Our management structure includes a Leadership Team with a
Chief Executive, the Assistant Chief Executive, Directors, and a
Head of Finance. It is supported by a Senior Management Team.
Both teams consider policy formulation and future planning.

Civic Affairs The Civic Affairs Committee plays a vital role overseeing and
Committee promoting good governance, ensuring accountability and reviewing
the ways things are done. It provides an assurance role to the
Council and is responsible for corporate governance issues
including:

* Electoral issues

» Audit and regulatory financial matters

» Civic and democratic process management issues

* Miscellaneous regulatory responsibilities

It works closely with both Internal Audit and senior management to
continually improve the governance, risk and control environment.
Meetings details and minutes are published on the website. The
Committee has also appointed an independent person which is
regarded as best practice.

You can visit our website for more information about “How the Council Works”.

Purpose of the Annual Governance Statement

The Council conducts a review of its system of internal control, prepares and publishes an
Annual Governance Statement in each financial year.

Page 13


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=116
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=175
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=476
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=414
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=475
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=159
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/senior-council-officers
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=179
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/how-the-council-works

This enables us to demonstrate whether, and to what extent, the Council complied with its
Local Code of Governance. This process records our good practice, and also helps us to plan
further action which can improve our governance arrangements.

Statutory compliance

Producing the Annual Governance Statement helps the Council meet the requirements of
Regulation 6(1)b of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. It is reviewed by the
Civic Affairs Committee and approved in advance of the Statement of Accounts.

The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to
secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard
to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. That duty has grown in importance
with the reduction in resources being made available for Local Authorities as part of the
Government’s on-going austerity programme.

The Council’s financial management arrangements are consistent with the governance
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local
Government.

Page 14



Review and assurance mechanisms

Management activities contribute to the continuous review of the Local Code of Governance,
and also inform the Annual Governance Statement. In addition, assurance can be provided
from other sources:

Head of Internal Audit Opinion

The Head of Internal Audit provides an independent opinion on the overall adequacy of and
effectiveness of the Council's governance, risk and control framework and the extent to which
the Council can rely on it. This has been considered in the development of the Annual
Governance Statement.

Regular updates are presented to the Civic Affairs Committee throughout the year which
outline the key findings of the internal audit work undertaken during 2021/2022, including any
areas of significant weakness in the internal control environment.

Resource was allocated to supporting the Council deliver Covid-19 activities, where this could
help to maintain or improve the governance, risk and control environment. Consequently,
resources have been diverted from typical assurance-based activities. Internal audit maintains
a risk-based plan and this approach was supported by the Civic Affairs Committee. The
breadth of and volume of other risk-based assurance was less than usual, however core
assurance work was delivered, and we considered the governance, risk and internal control
environment.

From the audit reviews undertaken, no areas were identified where it was considered that, if
the risks highlighted materialised, it would have a major impact on the organisation as a whole.
In each instance where it has been identified that the control environment was not strong
enough or was not complied with sufficiently to prevent risks to the organisation, Internal Audit
has issued recommendations to further improve the system of control and compliance. Where
these recommendations are considered to have significant impact on the system of internal
control, the implementation of actions is followed-up by Internal Audit and reported to Civic
Affairs Committee.

It is the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit that, taking into account all available evidence,
reasonable assurance may be awarded over the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s
overall internal control environment during the financial year 2021/2022, and this remains at a
similar level to the previous year.

Partnership assurance

The Council has services which are delivered in partnership with other Councils. Where other
Councils are the lead authority, they will provide assurance back to Cambridge City Council
that controls are effective, and where there is opportunity for improvement. This includes
Waste Services, Planning and Development, plus Information and Communications
Technology.

The Council set up an Investment Partnership with Hill Investment Partnerships in 2017.
Updates on all the Cambridge Investment Partnerships current projects are provided quarterly
to the Housing Scrutiny Committee, and information is available on their website.

Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd was established in 2016 as a wholly owned

company. The Council’s published annual statement of accounts includes details of the
Housing Company, and reports on the Council’s relationship with the Housing Company,

Page 15


https://www.ip-cambridge.co.uk/about-us/

financial performance and loan arrangements. The Council receives information on the
Housing Company through its Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee. The Committee
reviews the Housing Company’s business plan, and the Council’s published Corporate Plan
sets out the objectives, activities and people involved in management and decisions.

External reviews

The Trade Waste function of the Shared Waste Services received positive assurance from
their Internal audit reviews and maintained their accreditation with the 1SO9001 (Quality
Management) and 1ISO14001 (Environmental Management) standards.

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman resolve complaints in the public sector
and provides annual statistic on performance. No public interest reports were published.

External Audit

Ernst & Young (now EY) are the appointed external auditor, and their results report (ISA260)
will be presented to the Civic Affairs committee later in 2022. For 2020/2021 financial year EY
issued “ungualified” audit opinions on the financial statements, value for money conclusion
and whole of government accounts which provided assurance to the Council.

Public Services Network

The Council completed the Cabinet Office compliance verification process for the Public
Services Network Code of Connection (PSN), and a certificate was issued. This demonstrated
that the information technology infrastructure was sufficiently secure to connect to the PSN.

The Financial Management Code

Strong financial management is an essential part of ensuring public sector finances are
sustainable, and CIPFA launched a Financial Management Code to support this. Councils are
required to be compliant with the code from the 2021/2022 financial year.

A key goal of the code is to improve the financial resilience of organisations by embedding
enhanced standards of financial management. The code incorporates existing requirements
on local government, to give a comprehensive picture of financial management in the Council.

Our evaluation has demonstrated that the requirements of the code are being satisfied. This
process has also helped us to identify further opportunities to improve our financial resilience
which have been agreed by the Leadership Team.

Page 16


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s58444/Appendix%201%20-%20Auditors%20Annual%20Report.pdf

Impact of Coronavirus

Pandemic events have the potential to significantly affect our governance, risk and control
environment. Immediate impacts could include the Council’s decision-making processes, risk
management, and the overall capacity and capability of the Council. In the longer term it can
also impact our strategic outcomes, financial and organisational resilience, stakeholder
engagement and accountability.

The financial year 2021/2022 was another year in which council services were disrupted by
the impacts of the global coronavirus pandemic. Restrictions and regulations changed during
the year. Some services continued largely unaffected, whilst others (such as the Corn
Exchange and other live cultural events) were not able to operate “normally” until later in the
year. Even when services were allowed to operate normally, the continuing presence of
coronavirus in the community lead to periods of sick leave and isolation, reducing our capacity
to deliver some services at times.

In response to the pandemic we implemented mitigating measures through our business
continuity framework, with continuous risk management, and proactively worked with our
stakeholders, partners and customers. This has positively contributed to many of the principals
from our Local Code of Governance, such as engaging with stakeholders, determining
interventions to achieve outcomes, managing risk, and adapting our internal controls.

Our Annual Report for 2021/2022 illustrates how it was an exceptional year and highlights how
council services sought to adapt to the restrictions imposed by the government in response to
the global coronavirus pandemic, seeking new ways of working — including with communities
and partners - to deliver the services that are important to local people and to respond to the
challenges of Covid-19.

The pandemic has also illustrated how important ‘good governance’ has been to enable and
sustain a whole system response. It has highlighted the systemic risks beyond the Councils
control that can have a significant impact on achieving intended outcomes for the residents of
Cambridge. This includes, for example, our ability to sustain partnerships, joined up delivery
of services and multi-agency co-ordination mechanisms with police, fire, NHS, and other local
authorities, where they are under significant strain, or under-resourced, or take a different
approach to managing risk, accountability and transparency.

Page 17


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge#A9

Progress from the last Annual Governance Statement

The Council prepared an Annual Governance Statement for 2020/2021 which was approved

by the Civic Affairs Committee in September 2021:

Action

Update and status

Managing our recovery and
resilience

2021/2022 continued to be an exceptional year and council
services adapted to the restrictions imposed by the
government in response to the global coronavirus
pandemic, seeking new ways of working (including our
communities and partners) to deliver the services that are
important to local people and to respond to the challenges
of Covid-19. We continued reviewing how we delivered our
services and the best way to do this as we responded to
further changes from the pandemic.

Transformation, resources
and risk management

We reviewed the Risk Management Framework to best
practice guidance. We developed a revised Strategy and
Toolkit to reflect our current risk appetite and support an
agile and transformative approach to working. The revised
documents approved by the Civic Affairs Committee.

Maintaining financial
resilience and compliance

External pressures continue to create financial uncertainty.
It is important the council proactively manages this risk.

We delivered an action plan from our earlier high-level
assessment of the Financial Management Code. This aims
to improve our financial resilience by embedding enhanced
standards of financial management and provides
assurance that we are managing our financial risks.

Minimising the fraud and error
risks

We have started to review and update our local policies
and procedures to reflect best practice guidance such as
national Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy.

We completed post assurance work on Business Grant
Schemes, working with the Cabinet Office, BEIS, and
HMRC through data sharing initiatives. This included high
levels of transactions and regular updates were reported to
our Stakeholders.

Maintaining good ethical
governance

The Council is committed to maintaining good ethical
governance, and our Local Code of Governance reflects
the Seven Principles of Public Life in local government. To
help enhance this process we started to review our local
guidance and promote any changes. This good practice
will continue into 2022/2023.

Proactively preparing for
emerging legislative change

We will monitor and respond to emerging legislation
(across key areas such as procurement, planning,
environmental). This will be reflected in our Corporate Plan
which will be revised, along with supporting policies and
procedures.

Page 18


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts

6T obed

Review of effectiveness

The Council has a number of policies and procedures which are recorded in its Local Code of Governance. These are mapped to the seven
principles of good governance.

The effectiveness of the key elements of the governance framework is reviewed throughout the year. This activity is informed by the work of
senior officers who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit's annual
report, and from comments received from external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The Council is involved in partnership working and has group relationships with other entities. The Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd,
Cambridge Investment Partnership LLP, and the Cambridge Live Group are incorporated into Group Financial Statements in our Statement of
Accounts. Activities of the groups are also reflected in our review of effectiveness where these have a significant impact on our governance
arrangements.

The review concludes that the Council has complied with its Code. Additional examples of good practice, emerging controls, and governance
issues from the last twelve months, considered when completing the review are recorded below, and will be incorporated into the next revision
of the Code where appropriate:


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/code-of-corporate-governance

0z abed

Principle

Review of effectiveness

Behave:
integrity,
ethical values,
respect rule of
law

We continued to work closely with Public Health colleagues to coordinate and support the wider county’ public
health response to the pandemic, including sharing local community intelligence to help contain outbreaks and
reduce community transmission of the virus. The Council has been an active partner in implementing the local
outbreak management plan in the city as directed by a multi-agency Covid-19 Health Protection Board and has
also participated in local recovery and resilience planning. We redeployed staff to activities such as keeping the
city centre safe, and used our website to signpost to national guidance, policy and advice on Health and Safety.

The Local Code of Governance was reviewed and updated to reflect the latest professional standards and
guidance.

We proactively implemented risk-based controls to mitigate the increased potential for Business Grants fraud and
deliver prompt funding support to businesses in the community.

Openness &
stakeholder
engagement

We maintained openness through access to meetings, information and online support.

We actively communicated with residents throughout the pandemic. This included using the website to signpost
people to where they could get help, keeping them updated on changes to services, and financial support for
businesses and residents.

The 2021 Annual Briefing for Cambridge Businesses and Organisations was delivered online. The budget for the
next financial year was also promoted online to help engage with our stakeholders, residents and businesses.
Priorities were set to tackle the systemic challenges facing the Council:

o Leading Cambridge’s response to the climate change emergency and biodiversity emergencies;
o Tackling poverty & inequality and helping people in the greatest need;

o Building a new generation of council homes and reducing homelessness; and

o Modernising the council to lead a greener city that is fair for all;

We continued to consult and engage with stakeholders, including: Biodiversity Supplementary Planning
Document; Greater Cambridge Local Plan: Preferred Options.


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/coronavirus-information-for-businesses
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/local-code-of-corporate-governance
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/coronavirus-ask-for-help
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/budget-consultations
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=oHSXHm6AkhU

T¢ obed

Principle Review of effectiveness

Defining A new Corporate Plan 2022-2027 was set during the 2021/2022 year, to define our outcomes and strategic level
outcomes - objectives.

economic, : : N .
— The Council received updates on significant developments, such as the current status of the programme to build

environmental

new council homes funded through the Combined Authority.

The Council approved the Resident Involvement Strategy for 2021/2024, which incorporated business plan
objectives, feedback from the 2020 Tenant and Leaseholder Satisfaction Survey and recommendations from the
Charter for Social Housing Residents: Social Housing White Paper (2020).

Three new housing policies, were developed with South Cambridgeshire District Council, and will form annexes
to the Greater Cambridge Housing Strategy 2019-2023.

The Environment & Scrutiny Committee approved the Council’'s Climate Change Strategy for 2021-2026, and the
Carbon _Management Plan for 2021-2026 which was consulted with the public in autumn 2020. The revised
strategy builds on what the Council has achieved to date, but sets out new ambitions in the context of the Climate
Emergency, including working more with residents, communities, businesses and institutions.

The Housing Scrutiny Committee approved a pilot project to retrofit up to fifty Council properties to establish the
actual cost and methodology of achieving net zero carbon in existing Council properties.



https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=414&MId=3976&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=476&MId=3788&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=476&MId=3788&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=414&MId=3978&Ver=4

2¢ obed

Principle

Review of effectiveness

Determine
interventions
to achieve
outcomes

Our Corporate Plan 2019-2022, defined our outcomes and strategic level objectives in this review year.
Performance, achievements, and further actions linked to the Corporate Plan are included in our Corporate Plan
Annual Report. It reflects the impact of the pandemic including activities which could not be delivered, and also
new activities which could not be planned.

In response to the Covid-19 pandemic we continued to help support the public and provided regular updates on
our website. We also provided support to businesses by providing information, and financial assistance through
the distribution of national and local business support grants. This included £55 million awarded to support
businesses since the pandemic started.

The Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee noted our response to pandemic which was set out in the Outline
Coronavirus Recovery Plan. We worked in partnership across the County to deliver a Public Health response with
the County Council, NHS, to deliver mutual aid networks. The Committee received updates on the ongoing work
that the Council had undertaken during the pandemic to respond to the needs of the City, and proposals for grant
funding support. The Committee also received an update on the Council’s intermediate housing company,
Cambridge City Housing Company Limited (CCHC) and Business Plan.

Develop
capacity and
capability of
entity

The pandemic challenged our capacity to manage the governance framework. Digital enabling technology enabled
the Council to adapt and respond with different ways of working.

Our new Chief Executive started in April 2021 and the existing Interim Chief Executive was temporarily appointed
to the statutory positions of Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer during the transition. This helped
maintain business continuity for delivery of the elections in May 2021.

Members of the Council appointed Councillor Anna Smith as the new Leader of the Council.

The Council received updates on the work of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Business Board (formerly the
Greater Cambridge Greater Peterborough Local Enterprise Partnership), Greater Cambridge Partnership and
other growth-related partnerships. This is provided as a part of the Council’s commitment, given in its “Principles
of Partnership Working”, to set out annual reports summarising the work of the key partnerships it is involved with.



https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge#A9
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge#A9
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=4102&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4115&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=3425&Ver=4
https://cambridgeshirepeterborough-ca.gov.uk/who-we-are/business-board/
https://www.greatercambridge.org.uk/about-city-deal/
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/guide-to-partnership-working
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/guide-to-partnership-working

ez abed

Principle

Review of effectiveness

Manage risk &
performance,
internal
control,
finance

The Council approved financial reports including Revenue and Capital Outturn reports for the General Fund and
Housing Revenue Accounts, which had been prepared using the new Financial Management System. A report
presented to the council’'s Strategy and Resources Committee on 12 July 2021 estimated that the cost of the
pandemic to the council is £18.5million due to increased spending on housing and providing accommodation,
alongside reduced income from car parking, Council Tax and Cambridge Live events. These additional costs have
only partially been mitigated by government grants.

Scrutiny Committees received annual Performance reports for the Shared Services. This communicated that
increased collaborative working between partners is assisting in delivering the benefits set out in the original
business plans.

The Council maintains a Risk Management framework, which considers both risk and opportunity. We also
considered risks in response to Covid-19 to help manage the impact with timely and proportionate mitigation as
part of our Contingency Planning. Both our Strategy and Framework were reviewed as good practice and approved
by our Civic Affairs Committee.

The Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee received an update and Business Plan for the Council’s
intermediate housing company, Cambridge City Housing Company Limited (CCHC), plus an update on North-
East Cambridge (NEC) programme and progress against the three key projects associated with its strategic
regeneration. The Environmental and Community Scrutiny Committee received an update on the work of the
Health and Wellbeing Board and Cambridge Community Safety Partnership as a part of the Council’s commitment
given in its “Principles of Partnership Working”.



https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s56116/GF%20Outturn%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s56116/GF%20Outturn%20Final.pdf
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=179&MId=3985&Ver=4
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/guide-to-partnership-working

vz abed

Principle

Review of effectiveness

Transparency,
reporting,
audit,
accountability

We received an unqualified opinion on the Statement of Accounts for 2020/2021. Both the Council and the
externally appointed auditors worked together to conclude these as promptly as possible, and progress updates
were communicated to and approved by the Civic Affairs Committee. There is continuing pressure to complete
accounts nationally to the prescribed timetable, and legislation was set to assist Councils with the completion of
their 2020/2021 accounts. We completed our accounts after the standard statutory deadline, but within revised
timetable, and this was a significant accomplishment for the Council as the majority of Councils could not achieve
this.

Council agreed to use Public Sector Appointments Ltd (PSAA) as the appointing person for procuring External
Auditors for the Council.

The Civic Affairs Committee received the annual report on transparency, including Data Protection, Freedom of
Information and Environmental Information Regulations.

We successfully delivered the local elections. This complex process was more challenging due to the pandemic,
and lessons learnt have been considered by the Civic Affairs Committee.


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=4204&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s56716/Draft%20Annual%20IG%20Report%202020-21%20v0.2.pdf

Gz abed

Action plan

The governance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with our framework and this is recognised in our

conclusion below.

The review process helps us to identify opportunities to improve the governance arrangements over the next twelve months.

Some of these may feature in previous statements where the work is continuous and ongoing. They consider both historic governance issues
that have arisen during the 2021/2022 financial year and up to the date the Statement of Accounts are approved, and we also look ahead for
potential issues for 2022/2023 from our risk management process, corporate plans and strategies. These focus on the following themes, which
are developed into detailed action plans for improvement across our governance framework:

Theme Details

Managing our
recovery and
resilience

The UK has faced a sequence of significant and ongoing macroeconomic shocks over the past three years. We developed
and adapted our processes and governance arrangements during the pandemic, which continued into 2021/2022. At the
end of the year, the war in Ukraine presented new challenges for the council in ensuring refugee guests from Ukraine
were welcomed and safely housed, and the emerging cost of living crisis raised the prospect of our many residents in the
city facing further economic hardship in the months ahead. High inflation, a tight labour market, and supply chain disruption
also create pressures and uncertainty. We will continue to respond to emerging challenges and seek new ways of working
(including our communities and partners) to deliver the services that are important to local people.

Transformation,
resources and risk
management

In 2020/2021 the council initiated an ambitious programme of transforming and modernising the way it works, the Our
Cambridge Programme. This will deliver a more customer-focussed and efficient approach to service delivery, and a
systems-based approach to delivering the council’s vision of “One Cambridge, Fair for all” in partnership with communities
and a wide range of partners and stakeholders. We will continue the transformation by reviewing the organisation design
of the council, identifying savings to achieve a balanced budget, and implementing revised project governance. We will
also continue to review our risk management framework to ensure it is complimentary to the Our Cambridge Programme.

Minimising the
fraud and error
risks

We are reviewing and updating our local policies and procedures to reflect best practice guidance such as national
Fighting Fraud and Corruption Locally Strategy. The fraud landscape continues to develop, and it is important that we
proactively respond to this. We will continue this work into 2022/2023 to help maintain effective governance arrangements.




Theme Details

Maintaining good | The council is committed to maintaining good ethical governance, and our Local Code of Governance reflects the Seven
governance and Principles of Public Life in local government. To help enhance this process we are reviewing our local guidance and will
proactively promote any changes. We will also respond to professional guidance issued following the national Redmond Review.
preparing for
emerging
legislative change.

External factors continue to create uncertainty to developments in national legislation which could impact Councils. We
will continue to monitor and respond to emerging legislation (across key areas such as procurement, planning,
environmental). This will be reflected in our Corporate Plan which will be revised, along with supporting policies and
procedures.

Conclusion and opinion

9z abed

The Council has in place strong governance arrangements which we are confident protect its interests and provide necessary assurances to our
citizens and stakeholders. No significant governance issues were identified from our review of effectiveness. We have identified opportunities for
improvement, and these are included in our Action Plan above.

We are satisfied that the planned actions will improve our governance arrangements, identified from our review of effectiveness. We will monitor
their implementation and operation throughout the year and report their progress as part of our next annual review.



L ocal Code of
Governance -

\

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL




Local Code of Corporate Governance

Good governance

Good governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in
the right way, for the communities it serves, in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and
accountable manner.

A Council’'s Code of Corporate Governance is:

“The system by which local authorities direct and control their functions and relate to
their communities”

Our commitment

Cambridge City Council is committed to upholding the highest possible standards of
good corporate governance, believing that good governance leads to high standards of
management, strong performance, effective use of resources, increased public
involvement and trust in the Council and ultimately good outcomes.

Good governance flows from shared values, culture and behaviour and from systems
and structures. This Code of Corporate Governance is a public statement that sets out
the framework through which the Council meets its commitment to good corporate
governance.

The Governance Framework comprises the systems and processes, and cultures and
values, by which the Council is directed and controlled and through which it accounts to,
engages with and, where appropriate, leads the community. It enables the Council to
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate cost-effective services.

This local code of governance has been developed in accordance with and is consistent
with the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government framework, which builds on
the seven Principles for the Conduct of Individuals in Public Life.

Core principles of good governance

The core governance principles of the council are:-

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law.

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental
benefits.

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the
intended outcomes.

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it.

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong
public financial management.

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit, to deliver
effective accountability.

Page 28



Applying the core principles of good governance

This document describes how the Council achieves the seven principles of good
governance and describes how the Council’s corporate governance arrangements will
be monitored and reviewed.

Achieving the Intended Outcomes
While Acting in the Public Interest at all Times

G. Implementing good C Defining outcomes
practices in transparency, in terms of sustainable
reporting, and audit, to economic, social, and
deliver effective environmental benefits

accountability

A. Behaving with
integrity, demonstrating
strong commitment to ethical

values, and respecting
the rule of law

!

B. Ensuring openness
and comprehensive
stakeholder engagement

D. Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimize the
achievement of the
intended outcomes

F. Managing risks
and performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

E

Developing the
entity’s capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and the
individuals within it

This Code takes each of the principles of good governance in turn and sets out the
systems, processes and principles the Council has put in place to ensure good
corporate governance.

The Code will be reviewed annually through the Annual Governance Statement
process, which will identify the actions to be taken to enhance the code or address any
limitations with in it.

Page 29



0€ abed

Principle A — Behaving with Integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Supporting Principles

e Behaving with integrity

e Demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values

e Respecting the rule of law

How do we achieve this?

The Council expects the authority's leadership — both Members and Officers - to

create a climate of openness, support and respect and to uphold the Council’s
values.

Standards of conduct and personal behaviour are set out in the Employee Code of
Conduct, the Member Code of Conduct and in the Member/ Officer protocol. An up-
to-date register of Member and Officer Senior Officer Interests is maintained. The
underlying principles which underpin the Codes of Conduct build upon the Seven
Principles of Public Life (the Nolan Principles).

The Council has put in place procedures for considering complaints so that
members of the public can express dissatisfaction with Council services and their
concerns can be monitored and addressed.

The Council has appointed two “independent persons” to support this, in
accordance with the requirements of the Localism Act, 2011.

It publishes an Annual Complaints report analysing trends in complaints against the
Council and what has been done to address them.

The Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman provides an annual summary
of statistics on their decisions and provides feedback to help Councils help improve
service delivery.

The Council’'s Civic Affairs Committee fulfils the core functions of an Audit
Committee. The Committee is responsible for constitutional issues and ensures that
the constitution is monitored and updated when required.

The terms of reference of the Civic Affairs committee include responsibility for
advising on the Council’s ethical framework and the promotion of openness,
accountability and probity to ensure the highest standards of conduct.

The Council maintains a Whistleblowing policy to enable confidential reporting of
suspected breaches of the Employee Code of Conduct or unethical behaviour. It
also maintains a Prevention of Fraud and Corruption Policy. Both policies are
reviewed by the Civic Affairs Committee.

Supporting Evidence

Constitution

Register of Interests

Employee Code of Conduct
Member Code of Conduct

Member/Officer Protocol

Complaints Procedure

Annual Complaints Report

LGSCO Annual Letter

Terms of Reference for Civic Affairs
Committee

Whistleblowing Policy
Prevention of Fraud & Corruption Policy

Annual Report on the Prevention of
Fraud and Corruption




T¢ obed

Principle A — Behaving with Integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Supporting Principles

How do we achieve this?

The Council's standing orders and financial regulations put in place processes
designed to ensure that Members and employees of the authority are not influenced
by prejudice, bias or conflicts of interest in dealing with different stakeholders.

The Council operates within the legal framework for local councils complying with its
statutory duties and making the most of its powers to meet the needs of the City
and its residents.

The Head of Legal Practice is the Council’'s Monitoring Officer, responsible to the
authority for ensuring that agreed procedures are followed and that all applicable
statutes and regulations are complied with.

The Council ensures that Statutory Officers have the skills, resources and support
necessary to perform effectively in their roles and that these roles are properly
understood throughout the Council.

The Council has a clear Procurement Strategy designed to meet the Council’s wider
objectives and Contract Procedures Rules designed to deliver robust and fair
procurement processes.

The Council undertakes Equality Impact Assessments of all major Council decisions
and takes action to implement changes required, to ensure that council services
and policies consider the diverse needs of its service users and citizens.

It also uses research data, or other relevant data, to inform decisions about relative
deprivation in the City.

The Council has a Comprehensive Equalities and Diversity Policy and a Single
Equality Scheme 2021-2024. The Comprehensive Equalities and Diversity Policy
sets out the Council’s commitment to promoting equality and diversity, including
through its role as an employer and a provider of services to the public.

The Single Equality Scheme sets out how the organisation would challenge
discrimination and promote equal opportunities in all aspects of its work over the
next 3 years. It covers race, disability, gender age, sexual orientation and religion or
belief and an Action Plan is reviewed annually.

Supporting Evidence

Constitution

Financial Regulations

Job Description for the Monitoring
Officer

Professional Qualifications and training

Procurement Strategy

Examples of Equality Impact
Assessments

Comprehensive Equalities and Diversity
Policy

Single Equality Scheme 2021-2024,
including action plan and annual reports




2 abed

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Supporting Principles

e Openness

e Engaging
comprehensively with
Institutional stakeholders

e Engaging stakeholders
effectively, including
citizens and service users

How do we achieve this?

The Council holds its meetings, and those of its committees and working groups in
public unless there are good reasons for confidentiality. The public are allowed to
ask questions at all Council and committee meetings.

The Council adopted legislation and best practice, and implemented software, to
enable it to continue holding meetings remotely during the pandemic.

The Council records the deliberation of scrutiny committees and the reasons for
Executive and Regulatory decisions and makes agenda papers and minutes
available on the Council’s website. The Council also records and publishes on the
website written questions asked at Council meetings and their answers, and oral
guestions and answers where these are available.

Officers use standard report templates for committee and executive reports to help
ensure that readers are provided with information that is accurate, complete and
unbiased. Reports make clear the options available so that the implications of all
decisions and strategic risks can be assessed before those decisions are made.

The Council has a network of Area Committees to ensure neighbourhood issues are
considered in the Council’s decision-making processes.

The Council has a Joint Development Control Committee with South
Cambridgeshire District Council for decisions affecting growth sites bordering the
City and South Cambridgeshire.

The Council seeks to encourage engagement in its work through a variety of means
including through area committees, public representatives on the Equalities Panel,
Tenant Representatives on the Housing Scrutiny Committee and involvement of
appointed “Independent Persons” in the work of the Civic Affairs Committee.

It also puts resources into outreach work through its community development
services and support to tenant and leaseholder representatives.

Supporting Evidence

Committee Agendas
Constitution

Committee Forward Plan

Agendas and Minutes of Committees

Council Website

Standard Committee Report Templates

Area Committee Terms of Reference

Terms of Reference of Joint
Development Control Committee

Membership and Terms of Reference of
these bodies

Public participation at Committee
meetings

Public petition scheme




cc abed

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Supporting Principles

How do we achieve this?

The Council seeks to ensure all partnerships with which it is engaged have a set of
values or criteria against which decision-making and actions can be judged. It works
with those partnerships to promote open and accountable decision making and to
ensure they have clear governance structures in place.

It also ensures that there is clarity about the legal status of each partnership and
that all representatives in the partnership have clarity about their powers to bind
their own organisation to partnership decisions.

The Council operates in accordance with principles of partnership working agreed
with our key partner organisations.

The Council ensures that the authority as a whole is open and accessible to the
community, service users and its staff.

It promotes the role of Councillors and makes the public know who the Councillors
are, what roles they have on the Council and how to contact them.

It treats everyone fairly and strives to treat all as rational people able to make up
their own minds.

It also strives to provide services on the basis of need rather than ability to pay.

The Council makes clear through its website and other Council publications the
services that it is responsible for, how people can contact the Council and the
service standards they can expect.

The Council’s consultation programme ensures that the Council proactively seeks
the views of a wide range of people and engages with all sections of the community
effectively.

This is achieved through a mix of corporate consultation initiatives with more
targeted consultation on service specific issues led by relevant departments.

Supporting Evidence

Partnership Guidance

Principles of Partnership Working

Survey results

Public
meetings

participation

Public petition scheme
Council Website
Cambridge Matters
Annual Statement
Charging policies
Council Website
Council Tax Leaflet
Annual Report

Open Door Magazine

Consultation reports

at

Committee

Statement of Community Involvement

Code of Best Practice on Consultation
and Community Engagement




7€ obed

Principle B - Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Supporting Principles

How do we achieve this?

The Council seeks to ensure all views are actively considered when making
decisions, recognising that it is not always possible to reconcile conflicting
viewpoints.

The Council ensures it makes feedback available to consultees on the outcomes of
consultation, what has changed as a result and explaining why it has made the
decisions it has.

The Council's Equalities Panel (which has staff, member and public
representatives) helps the Council evaluate its success in promoting diversity and
meeting a broad range of needs.

The Council enters into compacts with Tenants and the Voluntary Sector agreeing
ways of working with these two stakeholder groups.

The Council sets out in its collective agreements, employment policies and
procedures, and terms of reference for forums and meetings involving trade unions,
and how it consults with staff and Trade Unions.

Members meet with the Trade Unions in a Joint Staff/ Employer Forum. Each
Strategic Director has staff forums and there are Joint Trade Unions Group
meetings.

Supporting Evidence

Consultation pages on website
Council Publications

Code of Best Practice on Consultation
and Community Engagement

Terms of Reference and Agendas for
these Meetings

Compact documents

Collective Agreements
Employment policies and procedures

Joint Staff/Employer Forum Terms of
Reference and Agendas/Joint Trade
Unions Group Agendas and Minutes

Trade Union Facilities Agreement




G¢e abed

Principle C - Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

Supporting Principles

e Defining Outcomes

e Sustainable economic,
social and environmental
benefits

How do we achieve this?

The Council has a clear vision for the City and sets objectives to guide the Council's
activities in its Corporate Plan.

It reviews those objectives each year, through the Annual Statement agreed at the
Annual Council meeting and the Corporate Plan.

The Council actively considers the environmental impact of the Council’s decisions
before those decisions are made.

The Council agrees with partners a plan for the Business Board of the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority (which replaced the Local
Enterprise Partnership), and contributes to the agreement of priorities for the Health
& Wellbeing Board and other relevant countywide partnerships including the
Combined Authority for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.

Supporting Evidence

Vision
Corporate Plan
Annual Statement

Environmental Assessment Tool
Council Policies Plans and Projects

Environmental Policy Statement
Committee reports

Budget Setting Report

CPCA Business Board

Strategic Economic Plan

Health and Wellbeing Strategy

for




9¢ abed

Principle D - Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Supporting Principles

e Determining Interventions
e Planning Interventions

e Optimising achievement
of intended outcomes

How do we achieve this?

The Council has a Medium-Term Financial Strategy to resource the Council's

aspirations and to assess and plan for any financial risks. The strategy is reviewed
annually for both the General Fund and the Housing Revenue Account.

The Council puts service to the public first. The annual business planning process is
used to agree the priorities for the Council. The Corporate Plan expresses the
strategic objectives for the Council over the financial year and beyond.

Alongside each of the objectives are detailed the particular outcomes to be
achieved and performance measures that provide evidence that the outcomes have
been achieved.

This information enables members and the services contributing to the delivery of
the plan to be clear about the priorities for the Council and assists in decisions
about where resources should be focussed.

Heads of individual service areas prepare operational plans indicating how they will
meet objectives set in the corporate plan and setting out their priorities and work
programmes for the year ahead.

The Council’s overall spending plans are set out in an annual Budget-Setting report
for both revenue and capital expenditure.

There are arrangements in place for regular budget monitoring and the reporting of
significant variances to senior management.

The Council works to maximise its resources by delivering services as efficiently as
possible, working in partnership with others and using other providers where these
are the best options.

Periodic internal audit reviews consider the effectiveness of controls and efficiency
of processes.

The Council seeks expertise from outside the authority when it does not have the
necessary skills in-house, making use of peer reviews and other mechanisms for
ensuring challenge of Council services. The Council has LGA membership.

Performance against key Performance Indicators for each service are prepared for
and presented to the Leadership Team to consider necessary remedial action.

Supporting Evidence

Medium Term Financial Strategy — GF
& HRA

Corporate Plan

Agendas for Strategy and Resources
Committee

Operational Plans

Budget Setting Report

Budget Variance Reports

Transformation Program

Risk based Internal Audit program

Quarterly  Performance

Reports

Monitoring




Page 37



g¢ abed

Principle E - Developing the Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Supporting Principles

e Developing the Council’s
capacity

e Developing the capability
of the entity’s leadership
and other individuals

How do we achieve this?

The Council sets out a clear statement of the roles and responsibilities of Executive

Members, other Members and Council Officers in its Constitution. The scheme of
delegation within the Constitution makes clear what matters are reserved for
collective decision-making by full Council.

A Member/Officer protocol is used to aid effective communication between Officers
and Members and to clarify their respective roles and appropriate ways of working.

The Council's Chief Executive is its Head of Paid Service responsible and
accountable to the authority for its operational management.

When working in partnerships the Council ensures that Members are clear about
their roles and responsibilities, both individually and collectively, in relation to the
partnerships and to the Council and are documented though Terms of Reference.

The behaviour expected of employees is set out in the Council's competency
framework and this is used as the basis for performance appraisal.

The Council seeks to maintain its Investors in People accreditation.

Employees joining the Council are offered an induction programme and their
training and development needs are reviewed regularly through the Council’s
annual performance review process.

The Council has up-to-date job descriptions. It sets and monitors clear objectives for
Officers through the annual performance review process. It agrees appropriate
remuneration for officers based on an agreed framework of national and local
agreements which include job evaluation.

The Council offers all new Members an induction programme and the opportunity to
develop, with a briefing and development programme to meet their needs. The
Council also provides resources for training, attending conferences/seminars and
briefings in-house for all elected Members. It keeps a register of the training
received by Members and involves Members in reviewing training needs and the
resources available during the year.

The Council encourages and facilitates Members to have appropriate training or
briefing before performing certain roles (e.g. dealing with staff recruitment or
disciplinary issues, being a member of the Planning or Licensing Committees).

Supporting Evidence

Constitution

Member/Officer Protocol

Constitution

Partnership Guidance

Principles of Partnership Working

Competency Framework
Organisational Development Strategy

IIP Accreditation

Council Induction Programme

Performance Review Process

Job Descriptions

Performance Review Process

Member Induction Programme

Recruitment Guidance




6E abed

Principle F - Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management

Supporting Principles

Managing Risk
Managing Performance
Robust Internal Control
Managing data

Strong public financial
management

How do we achieve this?

The Council has a Risk Management Strategy, supplemented by procedures and
guidance. The Strategy sets a risk appetite which considers both opportunity and
risk management.

It undertakes systematic risk assessments in all areas of Council activity, including
those covered by Health and Safety legislation.

It maintains a corporate risk register detailing the Council’s strategic and service
risks and reviews this regularly.

The Council ensures that risk management is embedded into the culture of the
authority; with managers at all levels recognising that risk management is part of
their job.

Risk assessment is incorporated into the Council’s decision making and Members
are advised of the Council’s risk profile at key stages.

The Council respects the personal data of its citizens, employees, suppliers and
others the Council may communicate with in line with the principles of the Data
Protection legislation and makes this clear in its own Data Protection Policy. The
Council has an Information Security group, which is chaired by the Data Protection
Officer and Senior Information Risk Officer, to help manage Information
Governance Risks and continuous improvement is monitored through a treatment
action plan.

The Council respects the privacy of members of the public when carrying out
investigations and ensures that privacy is only interfered with when the law permits
and there is clear public interest justification.

The Head of Finance is the Council’'s Chief Financial Officer and S151 Officer,
responsible to the authority for ensuring that appropriate advice is given on all
financial matters, for keeping proper financial records and accounts, and for
maintaining an effective system of internal financial control.

The Council develops and maintains an effective Scrutiny process to encourage
constructive challenge and enhance the Council’s performance.

It also has clear protocols about Members’ access to information and officer advice
to enable them to perform their roles.

Supporting Evidence

Risk Management Strategy

Risk Management Procedures and
guidance on the Intranet

Risk Assessments

Data Protection Policy

Information Security Group and
Treatment Action Plan.

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act
2000 — Guidance

Job Description for the Head of Finance

Compliance with the CIPFA Role of the
S151 Officer in Local Government

Terms of Reference of Scrutiny
Committees

Member/Officer Protocol




Page 40



T obed

Principle G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Supporting Principles

e |Implementing good
practice in transparency

e |Implementing good
practices in reporting

e Assurance and effective
accountability

How do we achieve this?

The Council makes sure members of the public have access to information about

the workings of the Council. It makes clear what information is routinely published
through its Freedom of Information Publication scheme and responds promptly to
requests for information. The Council publishes on its website all responses to
Freedom of Information requests.

Each year the Council publishes an Annual Report and Statement of Accounts
giving information on the authority's vision, strategy, performance, future plans and
financial statements.

Shared services arrangements with other local authorities or partners document
their governance arrangements, which are clear, open and accountable. Business
plans and performance is reported to shared service boards and relevant scrutiny
committees.

The Council maintains an independent Internal Audit function, with a risk-based
annual plan, designed to test regularly that the Council’s policies and processes
operate in practice and that the Council complies with legislation and good practice.

The Head of Internal Audit produces an annual opinion on the Council’s internal
control environment and the risk management framework to meet the requirements
of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion is used to inform an Annual Governance
Statement, which is approved by the Civic Affairs Committee.

The Council also agrees an annual work plan with its External Auditors to test the
Council’s response to major legislation and the soundness of its financial and
governance processes.

Recommendations arising from internal and external audit and inspection processes
are used to inform future decision-making.

Supporting Evidence

Publication Scheme, Open data

Freedom Of Information, Data
Protection And Transparency: Annual
Report

Annual Report and Statement of
Accounts

Shared Services Collaboration
Agreements

Risk based Internal Audit Plan

Head of Internal Audit Annual Opinion

Annual Governance Statement

Terms of Reference of Civic Affairs
Committee

Risk Register
Annual Audit Letter




2t obed

Principle G - Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability

Supporting Principles

How do we achieve this?

The Council uses an Independent Remuneration Panel to give advice on payments
for Members and considers their advice when setting the Members’ Allowance
Scheme.

The Panel operates in an open and transparent manner, making their agendas,
reports and minutes available to the public.

The Members’ Allowance Scheme is also made available to the public and on the
Council’s website and the scheme is reviewed annually.

Supporting Evidence

Independent  Remuneration
Terms of Reference

Independent  Remuneration
agendas, reports and minutes

Members’ Allowance Scheme

Pay Policy Statement

Panel

Panel




¢ obed

How the Council is organised

05/21-4

Greater Cambridge Partnership §

Corporate Strategy
Transformation

Housing Development
Human Resources
Property Services

3C Shared ICT Services
3C Shared Legal Service
Commercial Services
Finance

Shared services key:

South Cambridgeshire District Council

m Huntingdonshire District Council
Cambridgeshire County Council

cambridge.gov.uk

Chief Executive

facebook.com/camcitco

Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service
HDC  3C Shared Building Control Services

Revenue & Benefits
Maintenance & Assets
SCDC| Shared Waste

Environmental Services
Community Services
Housing Services

twitter.com/camcitco

by,

VS
= S =0

CAMBRIDGE
CITY COUNCIL



vt abed

Partnerships and separate bodies
The Council works in partnerships with several bodies, ad has two significant separate bodies:

Background

The Council set up an Investment Partnership with Hill Investment Partnerships
in 2017. The members agreement has the following objectives:

¢ Investment in the development of land to create successful new places that
meet both the financial objectives (primarily a revenue return) and social
objectives of the Cambridge City Council (particularly housing that is
affordable and is needed locally), provided always that the individual sites
may be developed to meet either financial or social objectives;

e Improve the use of Council assets and those of other Public Sector Bodies in
the Cambridge, or Cambridge wide, area;

e Maximise financial return through enhanced asset value, (with reference to
the first bullet above), provide a return to the Investment Partners
commensurate to their investment and the level of risk in respect to such
investment.

Governance

Potential sites would first need to
be approved by the Executive Clir
and considered at the relevant
scrutiny committee.

Updates on all the Cambridge
Investment Partnerships current
projects are provided quarterly to
the Housing Scrutiny Committee.

CIP has a website: https://www.ip-
cambridge.co.uk/about-us/

This was established in 2016 as a wholly owned company with Cambridge City
Council as the only shareholder.

The objectives of the company are to provide and manage housing that is
affordable for those in housing need and any other property related activity in
Cambridge and neighbouring districts, whilst also generating a financial return
for the Council.

The Housing Company is registered with Companies House with full accounts
and Director information published on the Companies House website.

The Council’s published annual statement of accounts includes details of the
Housing Company, reporting on the Council’s relationship with the Housing
Company, its financial performance and the loans between the Council and
Housing Company. This provides transparency of the relationship between the
two organisations.

The Council receives information
on the Housing Company through
its Strategy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee  with reports and
minutes from these meetings
published online through the
Council’s website. This Committee
reviews the Housing Company’s
business plan and the Council’s
published Corporate Plan sets out
the objectives, activites and
people involved in management
and decisions with regard to the
Housing Company



https://www.ip-cambridge.co.uk/about-us/
https://www.ip-cambridge.co.uk/about-us/

Gy abed

Monitoring and reporting

The Council will undertake an annual review of its governance arrangements to ensure continuing compliance with best practice to
provide assurance that corporate governance arrangements are adequate and operating effectively in practice. Where reviews of
the corporate governance arrangements have revealed gaps, actions will be planned to enhance the governance arrangements
accordingly.

The Council will prepare an Annual Governance Statement which will be submitted to the Civic Affairs Committee for consideration
and will form part of the Council’s annual Statement of Accounts.

The Governance Statement will include:

e an acknowledgement of responsibility for ensuring there is a sound system of governance (incorporating the system of internal
control) and reference to the authority’s code of governance;

e a reference to and assessment of the effectiveness of key elements of the governance framework and the role of those
responsible for the development and maintenance of the governance environment;

e an opinion on the level of assurance that the governance arrangements can provide and that the arrangements continue to be
regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework;

e areference to how issues raised in the previous year’s annual governance statement have been resolved; and
e aconclusion including a commitment to monitoring implementation as part of the next annual review.

In reviewing and approving the Annual Governance Statement, members will be provided with detailed information regarding the
effectiveness of the governance arrangements and system of internal control and how these address the key risks faced by the
Council. Those Assurances will be available from a wide range of sources, including internal and external audit, a range of external
inspectorates and managers from across the Council.

The Council will continually strive to operate an assurance framework, embedded into its business processes, that maps corporate
objectives to risks, controls and assurances. This framework and regular reports on its application and effectiveness will provide
members with assurances to support the Annual Governance Statement and will help members to identify whether corporate
objectives and significant business risks are being properly managed.



Our assurance channels
The review of effectiveness is informed from various sources (also known as the Lines of Defense):

Annual Governance Statement

Civic Affairs Committee

Senior Leadership Team

o abed

1st Line of Defence

Risk, Owners /
Managers

Functions that have day
to day responsibility for
managing & controlling
risk

2nd Line of Defence

Risk, Control &
Compliance

Functions that set
directions, define policy
and provide assurance

A

3rd Line of Defence

Independent Risk
Assurance

Functions that provide
independent assurance

Operational Management

Financial Control

Responsibility for directly
assessing, controlling and

mitigating risk

Inspection

Risk Management

Design and implement

Risk Control Measures Quality

’ |
Management / 1 .
Supervisory Controls Compliance

Internal Audit

External Audit

External Regulators

Review Agencies

Regulators




/v obed

Seven principles for the conduct of individuals in public life

The governance framework is supported by the seven Principles of Public Life, and apply to anyone who works as a public office-
holder. This includes all those who are elected or appointed to public office, nationally and locally, and all people appointed to work
in the Civil Service, local government, the police, courts and probation services, non-departmental public bodies (NDPBs), and in
the health, education, social and care services. All public office-holders are both servants of the public and stewards of public
resources. The principles also have application to all those in other sectors delivering public services.

Selflessness Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.

Integrity Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that
might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain
financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and resolve
any interests and relationships.

Objectivity Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and
without discrimination or bias.

Accountability Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and must submit
themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this

Openness Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner. Information should
not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful reasons for so doing.

Honesty Holders of public office should be truthful.

Leadership Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour and treat others with respect. They
should actively promote and robustly support the principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

ltem

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2021/22

To:
Civic Affairs Committee — 03 November 2022

Report by:
Francesca Griffiths, Senior Accountant (Technical and Financial
Accounting)
Tel: 01223 458126 Email: francesca.lawton@cambridge.gov.uk

Wards affected:
None directly affected

1. Introduction

1.1 The external audit of the Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 by EY
commenced in August in line with the agreed timetable. Work is still
ongoing at the time of preparing this report. However, sufficient
progress has been made to enable EY to issue an Audit Results Report
containing their preliminary findings and conclusions. The report
explains that, at the current time, no material adjustments to the draft
Statement of Accounts are required and no significant deficiencies in
the Council’s arrangements have been identified. Much of the work
which is described in EY’s report as outstanding is nearing completion.
A verbal update will be provided at today’s meeting to summarise any
additional findings and to specify the remaining work which EY need to
complete prior to issuing their audit opinion.

1.2 In accordance with auditing standards, EY have communicated their
audit findings for members of the Civic Affairs Committee to consider in
the context of their role as ‘those charged with governance’. This
covering report provides both commentary from officers on EY’s report
and information regarding the Council’'s Statement of Accounts to assist
members to fulfil their responsibility for approving the Statement of
Accounts. At the same time as approving the Statement of Accounts,

Page 49

Report page no. 1 Agenda page no.



2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

3.2

3.3

Report page no. 2

EY require the Council to provide a Letter of Representation signed by
both the Head of Finance and a member on behalf of ‘those charged
with governance’.

Recommendations

That the Committee receive the Audit Results Report presented by EY.

That the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 be
approved, subject to any remaining amendments per recommendation
2.3.

That authority be delegated to the Chair of the meeting, in consultation
with the Opposition Spokes, to approve any amendments to the
Statement of Accounts arising from the remaining audit procedures,
provided that these do not have a material impact on the Council’'s
usable reserves or result in any changes to the auditor’s opinion.

That the Chair of the meeting be authorised to sign the Letter of
Representation and the Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022 on behalf of the Council.

Preparation of Statement of Accounts

Draft unaudited accounts were published on 29 July 2022, in line with
the timetable for 2021/22 set out by central government.

In June 2022, further changes were made to the Accounts and Audit
Regulations extending the deadline for publication of the audited
accounts by two months from 30 September 2022 to 30 November
2022. This extension only applies to the 2021/22 Statement of
Accounts. From 2022/23 onwards the deadline for publication of the
audited accounts is 30 September 2022.

A revised Statement of Accounts is attached at Appendix 1. The revised
statements incorporate a small number of audit and management
adjustments which are detailed in section 6.3 of this report. There are
two further non-material adjustments not yet reflected in the accounts
which are explained on the following page:

Receipts in Advance

Page 50 Agenda page no.



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Report page no. 3

Sample testing undertaken by EY identified an error relating to receipts
in advance. Balances relating to revenue from ticket sales connected to
events which took place before 31 March 2022 were recognised as
receipts in advance within the year-end Balance Sheet. This treatment
was incorrect as the balance should either have been recognised in
creditors or in comprehensive income and expenditure depending on
whether conditions had been met for revenue to be recognised. Further
work by officers has also identified some events where errors relating to
the treatment of VAT has resulted in balances being incorrectly
recognised as a receipt in advance. Having considered all of the
affected codes in the Council’s general ledger, officers are satisfied that
the error does not materially impact the Council’'s Statement of
Accounts. Work is ongoing to quantify the error and agree the resulting
adjustments to the accounts. Officers and colleagues from EY will
provide a verbal update on this issue at the meeting.

Valuation of Pension Fund Assets Attributable to Cambridge City
Council

Officers and colleagues from EY are also anticipating a non-material
change to the net pension liability recognised on the Balance Sheet.
The auditors of the Cambridgeshire Pension Fund (also EY) identified a
non-trivial difference between the estimated pension asset values used
by the actuary to calculate the Council’s net liability, and the actual
asset values (which were not yet available to the actuary at the time of
issuing their report). The Council is awaiting a revised report from the
actuary with updated asset values. When this is received officers will
update the Statement of Accounts. It should be noted that any actuarial
movement in the pension liability is taken to unusable reserves,
therefore there will be no impact on the Council’s usable reserve
position.

Other Outstanding Matters

Officers and EY will work closely following today’s meeting to facilitate
the publication of the Council’s audited Statement of Accounts prior to
the deadline. Whilst every effort is being made to meet this deadline,
there is some risk inherent in the fact that there is audit work
outstanding at the time of writing this report.

The most significant risks to delivery relate to additional assurance the
auditors have sought in relation to the Council’s approach to

Page 51 Agenda page no.



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Report page no. 4

recognising infrastructure assets and the approach taken by the
Council’s appointed expert to value General Fund land, buildings and
investment property. The issues surrounding infrastructure assets are
complex and relate to the extent to which individual infrastructure
assets can reasonably be split into components with differing asset
lives. All local authorities with such assets are potentially affected.
However, upper tier authorities and unitary authorities tend to have
more infrastructure assets as a proportion of their asset base than
lower-tier authorities. Officers have self-assessed that the City Council
Is not materially impacted by the issues which have been raised
nationally.

Council Financial Results for 2021/22

The Council’s financial performance is summarised in the main financial
statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement shows an overall decrease in
the Council’s usable reserves of £13.6 million to £188.5 million.

The movement in usable reserves includes net decreases of £2.3
million in reserves which can only be used to support capital
expenditure. These reserves will be utilised in future years in
accordance with the capital programme. The net change in usable
revenue reserves is therefore a decrease of £11.3 million.

General Fund unallocated reserves increased by £8.9 million to £25.5
million, whilst General Fund earmarked reserves decreased by £21.4
million to £29.8 million. The net decrease in earmarked reserves
includes £25.4 million set aside to cover part of the Council’s share of
the forecast collection fund deficit in 2020/21 caused by the Covid-19
pandemic and the government’s response to it (for example, the
expanded retail rates relief scheme). The deficit is being repaid over 3
financial years, starting in 2021/22, and has largely been funded by
compensatory grants from central government which were received
during 2020/21 and placed in an earmarked reserve.

HRA reserves increased by £1.2 million to £19.6 million. HRA
earmarked reserves increased by £0.1 million to £17.4 million.

A more detailed analysis of the movement of both General Fund and
HRA earmarked reserves is shown in Note 13 to the Statement of
Accounts.

Page 52 Agenda page no.



4.7

4.8

Report page no. 5

There is a table on page 8 of the Narrative Report within the Statement
of Accounts which reconciles the outturn position of portfolios reported
to scrutiny committees to the movement on General Fund reserves.
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (Note 1 to the Statement of
Accounts) then reconciles this position to the statutory accounting
results detailed in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows a net
surplus on provision of services (measured according to proper
accounting practice) of £25.7 million, compared to a net surplus of
£29.1 million in 2020/21. The most significant changes year-on-year
were:

¢ Revaluation gains of £6.7 million were charged to HRA expenditure
in respect of council dwellings, compared with losses of £8.2 million
in 2020/21. Note that whilst this impacts on the surplus on provision
of services, the effect is reversed out of the HRA through Movement
in Reserves Statement, so there is no impact on the Council’s usable
reserves. (N.B. These figures relate only to the element of
revaluation gain / loss which is not a reversal of previous gains,
therefore they will not agree with the figures at paragraph 4.9 which
show the total revaluation movement on all council dwellings).

¢ Finance and Resources income includes Covid-19 related grants of
£1.5 million, versus £6.2 million in 2020/21.

e The Planning, Policy and Transport portfolio includes income of £9.3
million from car parks in 2021/22, compared with £3 million in
2020/21. This movement is due to the impact of Covid-19.

e Other operating income includes £6.2 million in respect of gains on
the disposal of non-current assets, compared with losses of £0.4
million in 2020/21.

e Financing and investment income includes £2.5 million gains in
respect of the fair value of financial instruments (relating to an
increase in the valuation of the Council’s investment in a Pooled
Property Fund), compared with gains of £0.1 million in 2020/21.

e Taxation and non-specific grant income includes capital grants of
£9.5 million, compared with £36.3 million in 2020/21. It also includes
other Covid-19 grants of £1.8 million, compared with £8.4 million in
2020/21. The business rates income retained by the Council under
the business rates retention scheme is a net £4.4 million payment to
government compared to a net payment of £15.7 million in 2020/21.
Retained business rate income for both years is negative, essentially

Page 53 Agenda page no.



4.9

5.1

5.2

5.3

Report page no. 6

it is a payment to government. This is due to the impact of expanded
retail rates relief offered by central government in response to the
Covid-19 pandemic. The Council has been compensated for the cost
of awarding these reliefs and other losses caused by changes in
government policy. The receipt of business rate relief grants totalling
£11.0 million (compared with £23.4 million in 2020/21) is recognised
separately from the business rates retention scheme and disclosed
within non-ringfenced government grants.

The Balance Sheet details the value of the Council’s assets and
liabilities. The Council’s total net assets have increased by £136.8
million, to £963.3 million. Key movements to note include:

¢ Net revaluation gains of £70.5 million on property, plant and
equipment, consisting of a net gain of £64.9 million on Council
dwellings, a net gain of £5.8 million on other land and buildings and
a net loss of £0.2 million on surplus assets.

e Net revaluation gains of £1.7 million on investment properties,
consisting of a loss of £0.2 million on the central Cambridge
shopping centre portfolio, and a net gain of £1.9 million on other
investment properties.

e A decrease in the net pension liability of £39.9 million, which
includes actuarial gains of £47.6 million and net interest costs of £2.8
million.

Group Financial Statements

The Group Financial Statements consolidate the performance of the
Council with its subsidiary (Cambridge City Housing Company), and the
Cambridge Investment Partnership (CIP) entities.

The accounts of the Cambridge City Housing Company (CCHC) show a
profit for the year of £251k. After eliminating transactions with the
Council and aligning accounting policies with the group, the total
comprehensive income for CCHC included in the Group Financial
Statements is £444Kk.

As a joint venture the Council is required to include its share of the
financial results of CIP as a single line in the Group Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the Group Balance Sheet.
There are four entities in total: an overall operating company, plus 3
specific development companies for Mill Road, Cromwell Road, and L2
Orchard Park. The overall operating company reported a profit of £0.4

Page 54 Agenda page no.



5.4.

6.1

6.2

6.3

Report page no. 7

million (£0.7 million in 2020/21), Mill Road posted a profit of £6.5 million
(£3.3 million in 2020/21) and Cromwell Road posted a profit of £3.4
million (loss of £6k in 2020/21). Orchard Park L2 reported a loss of £3k
(E5k in 2020/21), reflecting the fact that development is ongoing.

The Council’s share of the net assets of the joint venture entities totals
£5.4 million, compared with only £0.8 million in 2020/21.

Audit Results

International Auditing Standards require the auditor to communicate a
number of matters to those charged with governance before issuing
their audit opinion. EY’s Audit Results Report is attached at Appendix 2.
Representatives from EY will be present at today’s meeting to discuss
their report and audit findings.

Subject to completion of the outstanding audit work set out on page 6 of
their report, EY propose to issue an unqualified audit opinion. A draft is
provided at Section 3 of the Audit Results Report.

A small number of adjustments have been made to the published draft
Statement of Accounts throughout the audit process. It should be noted
that both the volume and value of these adjustments is extremely low
which reflects the progress made in improving the quality of the draft
accounts and supporting working papers. The adjustments required, as
set out below, only impact disclosure notes in the accounts and not the
Council’s reserves:

e Restating the prior year debtor and creditor balances to gross up
balances with central government relating to business rates;

e Minor corrections to the related party transactions note (note 26);

¢ Including prior year comparators as part of the provisions note (note
20);

¢ Additional narrative to the income and expenditure analysed by
nature note (note 7) to detail material housing benefits expenditure;
and

e Additional narrative added to the HRA Statement of Accounts to
state rent arrears balances.

Page 55 Agenda page no.



7.1

7.2

8.1

(@)

(b)

()

Report page no. 8

Letter of Representation

International Auditing Standards require the auditor to have received a
Letter of Representation drawn up by the Council that provides written
confirmation on matters that might be relevant or significant to the
Statement of Accounts. The letter is signed as near as possible to the
date of the audit opinion. The auditing standard requires that the letter
Is ‘discussed and agreed by those charged with governance and signed
on their behalf... to ensure that all those charged with governance are
aware of the representations on which the auditor intends to rely in
expressing the auditor’s opinion on those financial statements.’

Due to the current uncertainties regarding infrastructure assets referred
to in paragraph 3.7, a final version of the Letter of Representation has
not been prepared by EY for formal sign-off by the Committee. In all
material respects, the final content and form of EY’s letter is not
expected to differ from that set out in Appendix C of EY’s Audit Results
Report. Subject to feedback from Members of the Committee at today’s
meeting, officers will arrange with the Chair of the Committee to provide
a signed Letter of Representation once EY have indicated they are
ready to issue their audit opinion.

Audit Fee

EY have provided an update on their fee proposal on page 40 of their
Audit Results Report. It should be noted that a final fee proposal will not
be provided until the outstanding audit work is complete. Any additional
fees proposed will be subject to agreement with Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA), who oversee the external audit regime for all
local authorities.

Implications

Financial Implications

Included in the report above.
Staffing Implications

None

Equality and Poverty Implications

None

Page 56 Agenda page no.



(d) Environmental Implications

None. Paper copies of the Statement of Accounts document will only be

produced on request. An electronic version will be available on the
Council’s website.

(e) Procurement Implications
None
(f) Community Safety Implications

None

10. Consultation and communication considerations

Paper copies of the Statement of Accounts document will only be
produced on request. An electronic version will be available on the
Council’s website.

11. Background papers
Background papers used in the preparation of this report:

e Statement of Accounts 2021/22
12. Appendices

e Appendix 1 — Statement of Accounts 2021/22
o Appendix 2 — EY Audit Results Report

13. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please

contact:

Francesca Griffiths

Senior Accountant (Technical and Financial Accounting)
Tel: 01223 - 458126

Email: francesca.lawton@cambridge.gov.uk

Report page no. 9 Page 57

Agenda page no.



This page is intentionally left blank



65 obed

Cambridge City Councll

Statement of Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2022



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Introduction

This Statement of Accounts gives an overview of the Council’s finances for the year ended 31 March
2022. It has been written to help residents and others to:

e understand the overall financial performance and position of the Council;

e have confidence that public money has been used and accounted for in an appropriate manner;
and

e be assured that the financial position of the Council is sound and secure.
The document is split into the following key sections:-

e The Narrative Report explains how the Council is organised, managed and governed. It sets out
the Council’s vision and priorities, and the main risks faced in the achievement of these. It also
contains commentary on the Council’s financial and non-financial performance for the year.

e The Council Financial Statements set out in more detail the financial cost to the Council of the
services it has provided during the year, and its financial position at the year-end. It consists of a
number of main statements and notes, as set out in the Contents table opposite. It is prepared in
line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, and

g-? the Council’s accounting policies which are explained in more detail at note 2.

Q

«D The Group Financial Statements explain the impact on the Council’s finances of its involvement

8 with Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd (a wholly owned subsidiary) and the Cambridge
Investment Partnership (a joint venture partnership).

e The Glossary contains a definition of any complex accounting terms used throughout this
Statement of Accounts.

Introduction and Contents

Contents

NP T = LAY =T o Y PP 3
CoUuNCil FINANCIAl STALEMENTS ...uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiib bbb bbb bbesssnansssansannssnnnes 12
Statement Of RESPONSIDIIITIES ........uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb eanneennne 12
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Cambridge City Coun il ............cccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 13
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ...............uuuuiiuiiiiiiiieiiiiiii e 16
Movement iN RESEIVES STAIEMENT ....... oot e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e eeesbnnn s 17
BaAlANCE SNEEL ... .o e e e e e e et a e e e e e earra s 18
(01 o [ o [0V ] = (=1 0 1 T=7 o | PP 19
Notes to the Council Financial StatemMENTS...........coviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e 20
Housing Revenue Account Statements and NOTES .........coovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 48
Collection Fund StatemMentS @nd NOLES .........uuuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiii bbb aeeeannne 50
Group FINANCIAl STATEMENTS .. .uuutiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit bbb aeeaeesnnnnes 52
Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement ...........oovvvviiiiiiiiie e 52
Group Movement in RESEIVES StateMENT ..........uuiiii i e e e e e 53
GroUpP BalanCe SNEET ... e a e e 54
Group Cash FIOW STatemMENT ...........uuiiiii i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeesaaa s 55
Notes to the Council Financial StatemMeENTS.............uvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 56
(€1 FS3 - 1S PPSTT 60




This has been another year of disruption to council services as a result of the global Covid-19
pandemic. Restrictions waxed and waned, and whilst some services were largely unaffected, others
(such as the Corn Exchange and live cultural events) were not able to operate normally for much of
the year.

In addition, the UK has continued to experience the social and economic impacts of leaving the
European Union, such as nationwide labour shortages in a number of sectors. This has also impacted
upon council services, for example contributing towards a driver shortage which led to a temporary
suspension of green waste collections.

Further new challenges which emerged towards the end of the year include the arrival of refugee
guests from Ukraine, and the cost of living crisis and its impact on city residents. Meanwhile, the
United Nations Climate Change Conference (COP26) highlighted the continuing and urgent need to
tackle the greatest threats to our planet.

Against this challenging backdrop the Council has continued to work closely with partners and
communities to achieve its objectives, and in the autumn produced a draft strategy to promote a
green and sustainable recovery from the economic and social impacts of the pandemic.

Ddring the year the Council has also entered a period of significant internal change as it launched the
r Cambridge transformation programme. This ambitious programme will transform and modernise
e way the Council works, delivering a more customer focussed and efficient approach to service
ivery, and a systems-based approach to delivering the Council’s vision in partnership with
communities and stakeholders.

The disruption to services caused by Covid-19, and difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff, have
contributed to the Council spending £3.5 million less than budgeted on delivering General Fund
services. However, £0.9 million of this underspend will be carried forward to support the delivery of
delayed work in 2022/23.

In the medium term, the Council is required to find annual savings on its General Fund budget of £6.9
million, much of which will be delivered through the Our Cambridge programme. Further information is
set out in the Council’'s Budget Setting Report 2021/221.

Alongside this, the Council collected £44.2 million of rent and other income through the Housing
Revenue Account. This is used solely to provide services to the Council’s housing tenants and
leaseholders, and to support the construction of new council housing and improvements to existing
properties.

1 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s54960/Council%20Final%2025-2-
2021%20Full%620report%20and%20appendices.pdf

Cambridge covers a relatively small urban area (measuring 3 miles by 5 miles), with a population of 145,700 (Census
2021). This is 17.6% higher than in 2011, the fifth highest increase for a local authority area in England and Wales.

Around 15,000 people move to and leave the city each year from within the UK, partly due to the nearly 20,000 full time
students that attend our world class university and colleges.

50 languages are spoken in the city. People from around the world are attracted to study and work in Cambridge, with
international students making up just over a third of all higher education places in the city.

Cambridge has one of the highest skilled workforces in the country, with 63.4% of working people having qualifications
of NVQ Level 4 and above, compared to the national average of 43.1%.

Social mobility is an issue. Cambridge ranks 275th out of 324 local authorities across England and Wales in the Social
Mobility Index.

Levels of homelessness are higher in Cambridge than the national average, with 13.7% of households owed a duty
under the Homelessness Prevention Act compared to an average of 11.7% in England.

Cambridge has a strong, successful economy, including a globally significant cluster of hi-tech and bio-technology
businesses. There are over 5,000 knowledge intensive companies with more than 61,000 employees and a combined
revenue of over £15.5 billion in the sub-region.

Cambridge is also an attractive tourist destination — 7.6 million people visit the area annually, generating over £2 billion
for the local economy. Cambridge is the tenth most popular international travel destination in the UK, with 450,000

international visitors in 2020.

In 2020/21, 9% of working age households were claiming council tax support and the fuel poverty rate in Cambridge
(11% of households) is higher than the national average (10%).

The average house price in the city is £440,600, ranking second in the UK 20 City Index. Lower quartile prices are 13.9
times greater than lower quartile incomes.

42% of all households in the city live in private-rented homes. Private sector rents in the city across all property sizes
are the highest in the Eastern region and considerably above the England average

Cambridge City Council has a vision:

‘One Cambridge Fair for All’, in which economic dynamism and prosperity are combined
with social justice and equality.

It's a vision we share and develop, working with our citizens and partner organisations.



https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s54960/Council%20Final%2025-2-2021%20Full%20report%20and%20appendices.pdf

Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Narrative Report

To achieve this vision, our Corporate Plan priorities are:

Leading Cambridge's response to
the climate and biodiversity
emergencies and creating a net
zero council by 2030

Tackling poverty and inequality
and helping people in the greatest
need

Building a new generation of
council and affordable homes and
reducing homelessness

Modernising the council to lead a
greener city that is fair for all

The Corporate Plan 2022-272 can be found on the Council’'s website.

Our Services

Our services have been reported to management and committees in the following portfolios during
2021/22:

Portfolio Examples of services included
grategy and External Partnerships Chief Executive, Corporate Strategy, Democratic Services
%nance and Resources Finance, Human Resources, Property Services, Transformation
%éneral Fund Housing Housing Strategy, Housing Development, Homelessness
Climate Change, Environment and City Centre  Waste and Recycling, Sustainable City, Licensing
Communities Culture and Community, Sport and Recreation, Community Centres

Open Spaces, Sustainable Food and
Community Wellbeing

Community Safety, Streets and Open Spaces

Planning Policy and Transport Planning, Building Control, Parking Services

Services delivered as a landlord to the Council’s residential tenants
and leaseholders

Housing Revenue Account

Our Companies

The council owns 100% of the shares of Cambridge City Housing Company, which provides housing
for sub-market rents and other housing services in the city.

The council also participates as a 50% joint venture partner with a property developer in the
Cambridge Investment Partnership, consisting of four limited liability partnerships (LLPs) which are
engaged in housing development in the Cambridge area.

Further information can be found in the Group Financial Statements.

2 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge

Our People

The City Council employs 819 staff directly as well as delivering services through others who are
based in our shared services and arm’s length partnership arrangements. As an Investors in People
employer, we are committed to developing and supporting our staff through effective leadership and
continuous improvement that supports the Council’s vision.

550 Number of employees by age range
200
150
100
50
0
<18 19-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64
We have 626 full 47.98% of our 41.3% of staff
time and 193 workforce are have been with
part time female and the Council over
employees 52.02% are male 10 years
Our Funding

The Settlement Funding Assessment is the core government funding for the Council. The peak in
government grants in 2020/21 is due to additional funding allocated to the Council as a result of the
Covid-19 pandemic. Over ten years, core funding has reduced from 83% to 41% of total government
funding for the Council.



https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge

Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Narrative Report

Government Funding 2012/13 to 2021/22
20.0

18.0
16.0
14.0
12.0

10.0

fm

8.0

6.0

4.0

2.0

0.0
2021/22 2020/21 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

M Settlement Funding Assessment Government Grants

o
el
Q

D
@uyr External Economic Outlook
w

The direct economic effects of the Covid-19 pandemic have lessened during 2021/22, as commercial
and retail activities have increased. However, the Council continues to support businesses through
the application of business rates reliefs and the distribution of Covid-related grants. Supply issues
arising from the recovery and conflict in the Ukraine are causing high levels of inflation that continue
to put pressure on budgets, for the Council, local households and businesses.

For some time, the government has been consulting on a number of proposals as part of the reform of
local government funding, including a fairer funding methodology (distribution of funding within the
sector), business rates retention and a business rates reset. No firm implementation dates have been
announced for these reforms, giving rise to significant uncertainty in the levels of government funding
that the Council will receive in future years.

8 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/constitution

How the Council is Governed

Cambridge City Council has 14 wards represented by 42 elected members (councillors). Councillors
combine into political groups as follows:-

Political Composition of Council

¢

The Council’s constitution sets out the governance arrangements of the Council, comprising a hybrid
Leader and Executive system with pre-scrutiny committees. This provides assurance to our citizens
that decisions made in their name have been taken correctly. The Constitution® can be found on the
Council’s website.

= Labour - 29

= Liberal Democrat - 8

= Green Party - 3
Independent - 1

= Vacant - 1

The Annual Governance Statement 2021/22% is also available on the Council’s website. This is
published alongside the Statement of Accounts, and provides details of the annual review of the
effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework, including the system of internal control. It also
includes the annual opinion of the Head of Internal Audit.

It is the opinion of the Head of Internal Audit that, taking into account all available evidence,
reasonable assurance may be awarded over the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s overall
internal control environment during the financial year 2021/22, and this remains at a similar level to
the previous year.

4 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts



https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/constitution
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/statement-of-accounts

Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Narrative Report

How the Council Operates Performance
The Council operates to achieve its objectives through utilising its resources (inputs) to achieve value Hiahlights
for money (effective, efficient and economical outputs). The Senior Management Team under the ghiig
leadership of the Chief Executive, Robert Pollock, is responsible for the management of the The Annual Report on the Corporate Plan shows what was achieved in 2021/22 under the three
organisation, initiatives and projects to support delivery of the Corporate Plan. priority themes during that year. The highlights are:
i Tackling poverty and inequality and helping people in the greatest need
Organisation chart ScDC I& Paid £24.4 million in housing benefit and £8.2 million in council tax support
January 2022 L - Q= Supported food hubs to distribute over 204 tonnes of food through a total of 21,210 visits to food hubs
fir— thl'riclt(or Chief Executive CAMERIDGE
Executive Cambrldgg AR -
Head of Andrew Limb :?:::erlsh"’ Dev‘i‘;g;;‘z:‘ct Scoic Engaged over 350 people in the free Healthy You festival
E:'Er:ic:e Stopard Steph'zir:i‘:ﬁ; Helped secure Region of Learning programme funding worth £1.6 million
vee 3c"'sehf::; SCDC Provided £695,770 in grants and contracts to deliver homelessness prevention
Head of Building Control -

Human Resources Prevented homelessness for 396 households

Deborah Simpson

Heather Jones

Delivered seven Housing First tenancies and six modular homes for rough sleepers
Head of Housing
Chief Maintenance & Assets Achieved “started on site” for 546 new council homes, and gained approval for a further 83
Director Lynn Thomas
Fiona Director Completed 30 new affordable homes on strategic growth sites, and 66 on other sites

Bryant Robert .Jane Head of Climate, . o i )
Pollock Wilson T o T Carried out £15.8 million of planned capital and revenue work on council homes

Head of 3C Shared Bode Esan
ICT Services scDe

Sagar Roy . g 3
Head of Carried out over 12,000 responsive repairs
Environmental

_ Services Investigated 136 complaints relating to houses in multiple occupation (HMOSs)
Legal Service Joel Carré

R EELRET Issued 132 mandatory HMO licences and revoked 18
Community

Head of Servi . .
Goreael Headlof N e e aye Shared key services: Completed 33 estate improvement projects

H f i
Services ead o Housing

James Elms f Housine SEIVICES South Cambridgeshire District Council Taken enforcement action against antisocial behaviour
Development | David Greening

Note: SREEOWER © Huntingdonshire District Council Completed technical design for three new community centres

Awarded over £43,000 of section 106 funds to community groups & centres

Head of Property Services Executive

Dave Prinsep

Delivered energy saving improvements to 100 council homes

9 abed

1 Internal Audit shared with SCDC
Allocated £1.066 million of community grants

Supported volunteers by offering them time credits

Worked in partnership to resettle families from Afghanistan and Syria




Leading Cambridge’s responses to the climate change emergency and biodiversity crisis
Deployed a further five fast and rapid electric vehicle (EV) chargers for taxis

Planted over 1,400 trees

Increased the area of open spaces managed for biodiversity by 9.2 ha

Created 5,740 m? of new perennial native wildflower meadow

Used £1.7 million of government funding to deliver heat pumps, additional solar panels and other energy efficiency
measures at Parkside and Abbey Pools.

Undertaken 1,805 public realm environmental crime investigations
Carried out over 700 environmental health complaint investigations
Supported Cambridge Sustainable Food to attain Silver Award status for Cambridge

With our partners in the Greater Cambridge Partnership, invested £8.5 million to improve connectivity in Greater
Cambridge, and £6.2 million in cycling and active travel schemes

Delivering quality services within financial constraints while transforming the Council
Dealt with 2,859 planning applications
Collected £82.3 million in council tax from 59,129 households

“Cbllected £91 million in business rates from 4,418 businesses, and administered £36 million in Covid business grants
(@nd rate relief

gollected 1,248.5 tonnes of litter and bin waste from our parks and open spaces
Eleared 2,347 cases of fly-tipping

Inspected 269 food businesses

Attracted over £32,000 of donations to the Street Aid Fund to keep people off the street
Collected waste from over 50,000 bins, missing only 0.2% of bins

Collected over 43,000 tonnes of materials for recycling and composting

Saw 2.3 million visits to our car parks

Achieved a net income of £923,465 from the shared commercial waste service
Nearly 104,000 people attended our cultural and entertainment events

Carried out 20 corporate consultations

149,613 council transactions were conducted over the internet

Delivered 1,662 short online training sessions to help enhance digital skills

840 staff attended 110 learning and development courses

Reduced planning applications awaiting decision by around 1,000

Generated receipts from the disposal of property assets totalling £12.7 million

Supported the police in making 400 community engagements

5 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s59872/GF Outturn 21-22 Final v1.pdf

General Fund

The General Fund represents the resources of the Council which are available to fund revenue
services or capital expenditure without restriction (except that they may not be spent on Housing
Revenue Account services or assets).

The final outturn on the General Fund for 2021/22 was a surplus of £8.9 million, compared to a
budgeted deficit of £5.4 million (i.e. a total net underspend of £14.3 million). The main reasons for the
variance were as follows:-

e During 2020/21, a significant provision was put aside to cover the costs of business rates appeals
arising specifically in relation to Covid-19. The government has since legislated to rule out such
claims, so the provision has now been released. The in year benefit to the General Fund was £8.6
million, although it should be noted that this reverses a loss previously recognised.

e There was a net underspend on services of £3.5 million, which is spread across a number of
individual services as set out in the table above. This was caused by a variety of reasons,
including difficulty recruiting staff to vacant posts, and higher than budgeted interest income from
investments with joint ventures (due to higher than anticipated borrowing requirements). It should
be noted that £0.9 million of the underspent amount will be carried forward to 2022/23 as
approved by Council. Further details on individual service variances can be found in the General
Fund Outturn Report® on the Council’s website.

e There was a net underspend on General Fund capital financing of £1.2 million, due to capital
slippage on a number of projects. This amount will be carried forward in its entirety to fund the
capital works in future years.

e The Council received additional Covid-19 support grants totalling £1.1 million from central
government which were not included in the budget.

The table below sets out the General Fund revenue outturn for the year for each service portfolio. The
accounting adjustments column reflects differences between the way in which the Council’s resources
are managed internally, and the way in which income and expenditure must be reported in the
Statement of Accounts in line with accounting requirements. The most significant adjustments relate
to the classification of income and expenditure relating to investment properties and the allocation of
depreciation charges across service lines. The ‘total chargeable to the General Fund’ column
represents the movements on the General Fund as presented in the Council’s Expenditure and
Funding Analysis (see note 1 to the Council Financial Statements).



https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s59872/GF%20Outturn%2021-22%20Final%20v1.pdf
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/documents/s59872/GF%20Outturn%2021-22%20Final%20v1.pdf

Strategy and External Partnerships
Finance and Resources
General Fund Housing
Climate Change, Environment and City Centre
Communities
Open Spaces, Sustainable Food and Community Wellbeing
Planning Policy and Transport
Total cost of services
Other income and expenditure
Capital expenditure financed from General Fund
Other capital adjustments
Contributions to earmarked reserves
Contribution to / (from) General Fund balance
Net spending requirement
U
<gmanced by:
@ouncil tax
gjsiness rates settlement
New Homes Bonus
Other core government grants
Use of earmarked reserves
Collection Fund deficit repayment

Total financing

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Original budget Final budget = Overspend / (underspend) Actual net expenditure Accounting adjustments Total chargeable to
General Fund

£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
7,323 6,675 (1,460) 5,215 (200) 5,015
(5,026) (4,496) (1,596) (6,092) 9,980 3,888
3,431 3,545 169 3,714 195 3,909
5,143 5,889 232 6,121 (625) 5,496
7,848 7,487 (540) 6,947 (1,736) 5,211
2,428 5,358 (53) 5,305 (608) 4,697
3,444 (120) (253) (373) (1,101) (1,474)
24,591 24,338 (3,501) 20,837 5,905 26,742
0 0 0 0 (9,577) (9,577)

1,458 1,458 (1,208) 250 421 671
(6,347) (6,013) 17 (5,996) 5,994 (2)
1,722 5,722 584 6,306 (237) 6,069
(813) (5,417) 14,534 9,117 (178) 8,939
20,611 20,088 10,426 30,514 2,328 32,842
(9,033) (9,033) 0 (9,033) 0 (9,033)
(5,671) (5,671) (9,242) (14,913) 0 (14,913)
(3,458) (3,458) 0 (3,458) 0 (3,458)
(1,641) (1,641) (1,144) (2,785) (442) (3,227)
(23,882) (25,694) 34 (25,660) (1,886) (27,546)
23,074 25,409 (74) 25,335 0 25,335
(20,611) (20,088) (10,426) (30,514) (2,328) (32,842)

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) reflects the statutory requirement for the Council to maintain a
separate revenue account for council housing provision. It contains the balance of income and
expenditure in connection with the Council’s landlord function (for example rental income), which can

only be used to fund expenditure on HRA services in the future.

The final outturn on the HRA for 2021/22 was a surplus of £1.2 million, compared with a budgeted
deficit of £14.1 million. The main reasons for the variance were as follows:-

e There was an underspend of £3.7 million on HRA expenditure, due mainly to fewer than expected
backlog and responsive repairs, delays in the delivery of smoke and heat detector programmes,
and a reduction in depreciation charges following a review of the remaining useful lives of council

dwellings. It should be noted that £1.4 million of the underspend will be carried forward to 2022/23
as agreed by Council — this is mainly to deliver housing repairs and maintenance which have been

delayed.

¢ HRA contributions to capital expenditure were £20.9 million below budget due to delays in the
delivery of the capital programme, brought about predominantly by materials and labour shortages
following the Covid-19 pandemic. The full amount will be carried forward to fund the capital
expenditure in future years. As a result, a budgeted contribution from earmarked reserves of £9.8
million to fund this expenditure was not yet required, and will instead be drawn down in future
years as the spend is incurred.

The following table sets out the HRA outturn for the year compared to budget:




Dwelling rents and other income

Expenditure

Net cost of Housing Revenue Account services
Interest receivable

Interest payable

Capital expenditure financed from Housing
Revenue Account

Transfer to / (from) earmarked reserves

(Surplus) / deficit for the year

Capital Programme

Original  Final budget = Overspend / Actual net
budget (underspend) expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000
(44,591) (44,234) (165) (44,399)
30,200 31,059 (3,654) 27,405
(14,391) (13,175) (3,819) (16,994)
(231) (146) (95) (241)
7,472 7,494 0 7,494
19,133 29,417 (20,930) 8,487
(5,586) (9,491) 9,575 84
6,397 14,099 (15,269) (1,170)

The outturn for the year on the Council’s capital programme was as follows:-

o Original Final budget Actual net Overspend / Carried Overspend /
Q budget expenditure (underspend) forward to (underspend)
«Q future years after carry
@ forwards
C\D] £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund 41,760 102,461 23,294 (79,167) 71,909 (7,258)
Housing 67,845 61,080 37,804 (23,276) 22,055 (1,221)
Revenue
Account
Total capital 109,605 163,541 61,098 (102,443) 93,964 (8,479)
programme

There are significant in-year underspends against capital budgets in both the General Fund and HRA.

In most cases, this is due to the slippage of capital projects, and the budgets have been carried
forward to fund the works in future years. The most significant underspends were as follows:-

Park Street car park development — an underspend of £29.6 million due to initial delays to the start

of the project. Mitigating actions have been taken and the project remains on track to complete on

time.

Cambridge Investment Partnership (CIP) loans — an underspend of £20.6 million. This budget
represents the commitment that the Council has made to provide loan financing to CIP for the
development of new build housing — however the timing and extent of the loans depends upon
CIP’s cash flow requirements. Of this amount, £14.1 million will be carried forwards, whilst the
remaining £6.5 million is no longer required as the related development is almost complete.

e Depot relocation project — an underspend of £10.0 million. The deadline for moving from the
current depot site has now been extended, and this budget will be carried forward to future years.

e HRA new build schemes — an underspend of £11.5 million. The programme has slipped due
mainly to materials and labour shortages. Most of this amount will be required in future years and
has been carried forwards.

Note that the total capital expenditure figure of £61.1 million above differs slightly from total capital
expenditure recognised in the Council Financial Statements (£62.2 million — see note 29) due to the
existence of accounting adjustments, including in relation to interest on CIP loans.

During the year, the Council generated £12.7 million of new capital receipts from the sale of
properties, including investment properties and council dwellings (under the right-to-buy scheme).
These receipts will be used to finance future capital expenditure. As at 31 March 2022, the Council’s
total reserves which are restricted by statute to capital purposes stood at £96.2 million.

Earmarked Reserves
The Council holds earmarked reserves for a variety of purposes, including:
¢ to fund future anticipated revenue costs;

e to fund future capital expenditure (both on the construction of new assets and the repairs and
renewal of existing assets); and

e to hold funds which are ringfenced to a particular purpose, for example restricted grants, or
surpluses generated through partnership working.

The movements on earmarked reserves during 2021/22 were as follows:-

General Fund Housing Revenue Total earmarked

earmarked Account earmarked reserves

reserves reserves
£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2021 (51,243) (17,267) (68,510)
Contributions to earmarked reserves (6,069) (272) (6,341)
Use of earmarked reserves to fund expenditure 27,546 188 27,734
Balance at 31 March 2022 (29,766) (17,351) (47,117)

The most significant movements were as follows:-

e A planned contribution from earmarked reserves of £25.4 million to fund the repayment of the
Collection Fund deficit which arose during the Covid-19 pandemic. This deficit primarily relates to
business rates lost through expanded retail discount — the Council was compensated in full for this
by central government in 2020/21 and the funds put aside in an earmarked reserve in anticipation
of this payment.




e A contribution of £3.9 million from the General Fund to cover the anticipated revenue costs of the
Our Cambridge transformation programme.

Assets

The most significant assets on the Council’s Balance Sheet are its property, plant and equipment
(£953.0 million) and investment properties (£160.7 million). These are revalued on a regular basis in
line with accounting requirements, and are therefore subject to large fluctuations in value. However,
under statutory provisions these movements do not impact the usable resources of the Council.

As at 31 March 2022 the Council held investments totalling £184.7 million (including loans to its
subsidiary and joint ventures). These are mostly held at amortised cost — further detail is given at note
17 to the Council Financial Statements. Cash and cash equivalents held at 31 March 2022 totalled
£30.2 million.

Liabilities

The Council has external borrowing of £213.6 million with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). This
was taken out to fund the HRA self-financing payment to central government in March 2012, and no
further external borrowing has been required since. The Council does anticipate undertaking further
external borrowing of £19.1 million in 2022/23, and a further £140.8 million over the subsequent 3
years, in order to fund its future capital programme. This is as set out in the Treasury Management

ategy® which is available on the Council’s website. Prudent provision is made within the Council’s
i@dgets for the repayment of debt in accordance with statutory guidance.

gere is a net liability on the Balance Sheet of £102.3 million in relation to the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). This liability is revalued by an external actuary on an annual basis, and is
subject to large valuation movements as a result of changes to assumptions such as rates of inflation
and longevity assumptions. However, gains and losses of this nature do not impact on the Council’s
usable resources under statutory provisions. A funding strategy is agreed with the actuary every three
years to ensure that the Council is making sufficient contributions (and charging sufficient amounts to
the General Fund and HRA) to ensure that all liabilities can be paid by the pension fund as they fall
due.

Collection Fund

The Council is required to operate a separate Collection Fund in respect of council tax and business
rates its collects on behalf of itself, local preceptors and central government. The Collection Fund had
a deficit of £17.9 million as at 31 March 2022, of which the Council’s share is £6.8 million. This largely
reflects business rates lost during the Covid-19 pandemic, which legislation required to be paid back
over a 3 year period beginning in 2021/22. The Council has set aside funds in an earmarked reserve
to cover its share of the outstanding deficit.

6 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ielssueDetails.aspx?Ild=27584&0pt=3
7 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=3964&Ver=4

Group Performance

The Council is required to produce Group Financial Statements incorporating the performance of its
subsidiary company (Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd), and its share of the profits of CIP. The
Council’s share of the net assets of group increased by £5.7 million during the year, of which £5.4
million relates to CIP profits (which are yet to be distributed).

The Council manages all risks in line with its risk management strategy and framework, which is
approved by the Civic Affairs Committee. As part of the process, comprehensive strategic, service
and project risk registers are maintained, and processes are in place for risk identification, evaluation
and prioritisation. Resources can then be allocated to manage risks in the most efficient way possible.

Financial risks are specifically identified and considered within the General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account Medium Term Financial Strategies’” (MTFS — available on the Council’'s website)
and as part of the budget setting process. These risks are then monitored throughout the year, with
guarterly financial monitoring reports reviewed by the Senior Management Team and members.

The key strategic risks for the council are:

¢ Inability to recruit and retain staff with suitable skills, aptitude and abilities to meet the Council’s
needs.

e Failure to manage the impact of a pandemic.

¢ Inability to manage service delivery following an unforeseen event.
e Inability to maintain safeguarding systems and processes.

e Brexit has negative impact on city and Council.

e Cambridge’s successful economy starts to fail.

e Failure to set and deliver a balanced budget.

The Council’s Corporate Plan 2022 - 20278 sets out the current strategic priorities. The General Fund
and Housing Revenue Account Budget Setting Reports® set out how these will be funded. These are
all available on the Council’s website.

The government has been undertaking a Fairer Funding Review and a review of the business rates
retention scheme, both of which have been delayed due to priorities around Brexit and Covid-19. The
General Fund Budget Setting Report 2022-23° assumes that there will be a significant impact on our
funding levels, resulting in an annual estimated funding gap of £5.5 million in 2023/24, rising to £7.6

8 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge
9 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=3965&Ver=4



https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=27584&Opt=3
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieIssueDetails.aspx?IId=27584&Opt=3
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3964&Ver=4
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/corporate-plan-2022-27-our-priorities-for-cambridge
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4

Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Narrative Report

million in 2027/28. The Council has earmarked £3.9 million of reserves to fund a comprehensive
transformation programme, Our Cambridge, to reshape and redesign the Council to build a better,
more sustainable organisation that takes a whole-system approach with a deeper and more
integrated relationship with its community and partners.

The prudent minimum balance for the General Fund has been set at £6.64 million based on our
current understanding of financial risk. The balance on this reserve as at 31 March 2022 was £25.53
million, giving significant coverage for the programme to deliver the savings needed to achieve a
balanced budget.

The Council has approved the following capital programme for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March
2026 — note that this is in addition to the unspent 2021/22 capital budgets carried forward as set out

on page 9:

2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
£000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund capital expenditure 36,734 49,554 15,190 19,411
Housing Revenue Account capital expenditure 96,204 67,598 150,717 195,882
Total capital expenditure 132,938 117,152 165,907 215,293

-Iananced by:
‘gapital receipts (10,339) (15,867) (6,447) (1,203)
g)ther contributions (from capital and revenue resources) (76,402) (67,642) (107,909) (118,451)
%tal capital financing to be applied (86,741) (83,509) (114,356) (119,654)
Total to be financed from internal and external borrowing 66,442 46,197 33,643 51,551

11



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Statement of Responsibilities

The Council’s Responsibilities
The Council is required to:

¢ make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its
officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs;

e manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its
assets; and

e approve the Statement of Accounts.

At this Council, the officer with responsibility for the administration of financial affairs is the Head of
Finance and Section 151 Officer.

The Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities

The Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s
Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
F_’f?ctice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the ‘Code’).

%preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer has:
«B‘ selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

¢ made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and

e complied with the Code.

The Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer has also:

e Kkept proper accounting records that were up to date; and

e taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Council Financial Statements

Certification

| certify that this Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of
Cambridge City Council as at 31 March 2022, and of its expenditure and income for the year then
ended.

Caroline Ryba
Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer
XX XXXX 2022

12



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Cambridge City Council

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK FOR INSERTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT UPON COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

T/ obed

13



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

T
jab)
Q
®
\l
N

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK FOR INSERTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT UPON COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

14



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

o
Q
«Q
D
~
w

THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT BLANK FOR INSERTION OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT UPON COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

15



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation or rents. The Council
raises taxation and rents to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The amounts chargeable to taxation and rents for the year are set out in
the Movement in Reserves Statement, whilst the Expenditure and Funding Analysis (note 1) shows how these amounts have been applied to fund services.

Last year’s figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure. There is no change to the total cost of services figure previously reported.

2021/22 2020/21 (Restated)
Note Gross expenditure Gross income Net expenditure Gross expenditure Gross income Net expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Strategy and External Partnerships 3,461 (360) 3,101 3,168 (214) 2,954
Finance and Resources 36,595 (31,095) 5,500 40,844 (37,668) 3,176
General Fund Housing 8,545 (3,251) 5,294 9,125 (4,451) 4,674
Climate Change, Environment and City Centre 10,202 (3,108) 7,094 11,981 (3,208) 8,773
Communities 14,685 (5,981) 8,704 12,614 (3,979) 8,635
Open Spaces, Sustainable Food and Community Wellbeing 7,418 (1,026) 6,392 7,215 (1,120) 6,095
Planning Policy and Transport 13,172 (11,367) 1,805 13,487 (5,528) 7,959
Housing Revenue Account 21,196 (43,596) (22,400) 36,450 (42,904) (6,454)
‘;!Eost of services 115,274 (99,784) 15,490 134,884 (99,072) 35,812
®ther operating income and expenditure 9 1,134 (6,208) (5,074) 1,712 0 1,712
Enancing and investment income and expenditure 10 13,111 (17,190) (4,079) 13,156 (13,404) (248)
Taxation and non-specific grant income 11 0 (31,995) (31,995) 0 (66,371) (66,371)
(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services 1 129,519 (155,177) (25,658) 149,752 (178,847) (29,095)
(Surplus) / deficit on revaluation of non-current assets 15 (63,547) (34,766)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 21 (47,627) 36,106
Other comprehensive (income) / expenditure (111,174) 1,340
Total comprehensive (income) / expenditure (136,832) (27,755)

Prior year cost of services figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure — there is no change to the total net cost of services figure reported previously.

16



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS)

This statement shows the movement on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable
reserves’. The Movement in Reserves Statement shows how the movements in the Council’s reserves are broken down between comprehensive income and expenditure incurred in accordance with generally
accepted accounting practices (as shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax or rents for the
year. The increase / decrease line shows the reserve movements for the year following those adjustments.

Note General Fund Collection Other Housing Earmarked Capital Major Repairs Capital Total usable Unusable Total Council
Fund deficit earmarked Revenue HRA reserves Receipts Reserve Grants reserves reserves reserves
earmarked General Fund Account Reserve Unapplied
reserve reserves (HRA) Reserve

£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2020 (17,263) 0 (18,680) (15,066) (17,257) (46,657) (9,801) (23,362) (148,086) (650,587) (798,673)
Movement in reserves during 2020/21:

Total comprehensive income and expenditure CIES (255) 0 0 (28,840) 0 0 0 0 (29,095) 1,340 (27,755)

Adjustments between accounting basis and 12 (31,639) 0 0 25,476 0 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (24,875) 24,875 0

funding basis under statutory provisions

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves 13 32,563 (31,809) (754) 10 (20) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Increase) / decrease in year 669 (31,809) (754) (3,354) (20) 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (53,970) 26,215 (27,755)

galance at 31 March 2021 (16,594) (31,809) (19,434) (18,420) (17,267) (40,213) (13,647) (44,672) (202,056) (624,372) (826,428)
%ovement in reserves during 2021/22:

@l)tal comprehensive income and expenditure CIES (4,345) 0 0 (21,313) 0 0 0 0 (25,658) (111,174) (136,832)

Adjustments between accounting basis and 12 16,883 0 0 20,059 0 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 39,260 (39,260) 0

funding basis under statutory provisions

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves 13 (21,477) 25,432 (3,955) 84 (84) 0 0 0 0 0 0

(Increase) / decrease in year (8,939) 25,432 (3,955) (1,170) (84) (2,926) 2,106 3,138 13,602 (150,434) (136,832)

Balance at 31 March 2022 (25,533) (6,377) (23,389) (19,590) (17,351) (43,139) (11,541) (41,534) (188,454) (774,806) (963,260)

17



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 (Restated) ) ) i T
recognised by the Council. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the
£000 £000 £000 £000 . . . .
reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves
Property, plant and equipment 15 952,957 850,092 are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use to provide services, subject to the
Heritage assets 669 669 need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example
Investment property 16 160,682 158,594 the capital receipts reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second
Intangible assets 2 " category pf reserves are those that the Cou.ncn is Qot able to use to provide services. This gategory of
o reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation
Loans to joint ventures 17 38,476 50469 reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold. It
Loan to subsidiary 17 7,500 7,500 also includes reserves which reflect timing differences between the recognition of income and
Other long-term investments 17 22,451 17,053 expenditure under generally accepted accounting practices, and the point at which it must be credited
Long-term debtors 1,119 6.489 or charged to usable reserves under statutory provisions.
Long-term assets 1,184,666 1,091,710 Prior year short-term debtors and creditors have been adjusted to reflect the nature of the
Investment property held for sale 16 620 3,525 arrangements with central government in relation to non-domestic rates. These arrangements require
Short-term investments 17 116,235 83,161 discrete balances c!ue to/from governmer)t to be settledl separately rather than being set against one
another to form a single payment or receipt. In the previous year’s Statement of Accounts, the
Short-term debtors 18 15,347 52,809 . .
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 presented amounts due to government in relation to non-
.'Bve”to”es 194 = domestic rates as a net balance. This has been corrected in the restated column in line with the
gash and cash equivalents CFS 30,208 14,303 treatment applied to correctly recognise the equivalent balances as at 31 March 2022. There is no
®@urrent assets 162,604 153,096 change to the total net assets previously reported.
&l\ort-term borrowing 17 (82) (82)
Short-term creditors 19 (63,863) (59,126)
Provisions 20 (4,051) (4,209)
Current liabilities (67,996) (63,417)
Long-term borrowing 17 (213,572) (213,572)
Long-term receipts in advance (105) (80)
Net defined benefit pension liability 21 (202,337) (142,209)
Long-term liabilities (316,014) (355,861)
Net assets 963,260 826,428
Usable reserves MIRS (188,454) (202,056) .
Caroline Ryba
Unusable reserves 14 (774,806) (624,372) Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer
Total reserves (963,260) (826,428) XX XXXX 2022

18



Council Financial Statements

Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Cash Flow Statement (CFS)

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the year. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of
taxation, grant income and from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources that are intended to contribute to
the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities reflect movements in the cash collected by the Council on behalf of others in respect of council tax and business rates.

Note 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Net surplus on the provision of services CIES 25,658 29,095
Adjust net surplus on the provision of services for non-cash movements 22 22,851 60,646
Adjust for items included in the net surplus on the provision of services that are investing and financing activities 22 (22,290) (42,022)
Net cash flows from operating activities 26,219 47,719
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets (50,429) (39,825)
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (197,640) (67,700)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, assets held for sale, investment property and intangible assets 15,465 6,099
%oceeds from short-term and long-term investments 174,747 55,587
gapital grants received 19,321 43,482
@lther receipts / (payments) from investing activities 25 24
Nkt cash flows from investing activities (38,511) (2,333)
Financing activities 23 28,197 (42,673)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,905 2,713
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year:
Overnight money market funds 13,500 11,000
Bank accounts 786 574
Cash held by the Council 17 16
Total cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,303 11,590
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Overnight money market funds 29,500 13,500
Bank accounts 692 786
Cash held by the Council 16 17
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30,208 14,303

19



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Note 1 — Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers how the funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) has
been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by the Council in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also
shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s services. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more
fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Last year’s figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure. There is no change to the net cost of services figure previously reported.

Note 2021/22 2020/21 (Restated)
Net expenditure Adjustments Pensions  Other statutory Net expenditure Net expenditure Adjustments Pensions Other statutory Net expenditure
chargeable to for capital adjustments adjustments in the chargeable to for capital adjustments adjustments in the
the General purposes Comprehensive the General purposes Comprehensive
Fund and HRA Income and Fund and HRA Income and
balances Expenditure balances Expenditure
Statement Statement
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £000 £000
Strategy and External Partnerships 5,015 0 (1,914) 0 3,101 5,128 10 (2,184) 0 2,954
Finance and Resources 3,888 1,029 583 0 5,500 1,353 1,510 378 (65) 3,176
General Fund Housing 3,909 531 854 0 5,294 3,918 344 412 0 4,674
-gimate Change, Environment and City 5,496 794 804 0 7,094 7,712 650 411 0 8,773
®entre
(@)
@ommunities 5,211 2,079 1,414 0 8,704 5,452 2,507 676 0 8,635
é\aloen Spaces, Sustainable Food and 4,697 1,050 645 0 6,392 4,700 1,092 303 0 6,095
Community Wellbeing
Planning Policy and Transport (1,474) 1,369 1,910 0 1,805 5,175 1,796 988 0 7,959
Housing Revenue Account (8,033) (15,023) 656 0 (22,400) (9,769) 3,479 (116) (48) (6,454)
Net cost of services 18,709 (8,171) 4,952 0 15,490 23,669 11,388 868 (113) 35,812
Other income and expenditure (7,425) (16,889) 2,803 (19,637) (41,148) (58,927) (36,010) 2,410 27,620 (64,907)
(Surplus) / deficit 11,284 (25,060) 7,755 (19,637) (25,658) (35,258) (24,622) 3,278 27,507 (29,095)
Opening General Fund and HRA balance MIRS (103,524) (68,266)
Closing General Fund and HRA balance MIRS (92,240) (103,524)

Further information about the adjustments for capital purposes, pensions adjustments and other statutory adjustments are set out at note 12.

Prior year cost of services figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure — there is no change to the total net cost of services figure reported previously.

20



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 2 — Accounting Policies

1 General Principles

This Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2021/22 financial year and
its financial position at the year-end of 31 March 2022. The Council is required to prepare an annual
statement of accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, which must be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (‘the Code’), supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

2 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, in accordance with the requirements
of the Code.

In making its assessment that this basis is appropriate, for the going concern period to 31 March
2%24, the Council has carried out forecasting of income and expenditure, the impact on reserve
(%alances, and cash flows.

'EEe 2022/23 Budget Setting Report (BSR) forecasts a General Fund balance of £24.2 million at 31
March 2023 and £25.0 million at 31 March 2024. The BSR also includes an alternative scenario
where required savings targets are not met, which results in a General Fund balance of £19.7 million
at 31 March 2023 and £13.5 million at 31 March 2024. In both cases, the balance remains well above
the Council’s prudent minimum balance of £6.6 million.

Cash flow forecasting demonstrates positive liquid cash balances throughout the going concern
period, with no expectation of external borrowing other than to support the planned capital
programme. This is consistent with the Capital Strategy.

The Council therefore has a reasonable expectation that it will have adequate resources to continue
its operations and maintain provision of services throughout the going concern period.

3 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices, or
where the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the Council’s financial position
or performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by
adjusting opening balances and prior year amounts as if the new policy had always applied.

There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during 2021/22.

Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years,
and do not give rise to a prior year adjustment.

4 Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its financial and non-financial assets at fair value at each Balance
Sheet date, as set out in these accounting policies. For other financial assets and liabilities measured
at amortised cost, the Council is required to disclose the fair value in this Statement of Accounts (see
note 17).

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell
the asset takes place either in the principal market for the asset, or, in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market.

The Council measures the fair value of its assets using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset, assuming that they act in their economic best interest.

The fair value of the Council’s financial assets is measured based upon quoted market prices where
available, or if not, using discounted cash flow analysis.

The fair value of the Council’s non-financial assets (such as investment properties) assumes that a
market participant would look to use the asset in its highest and best use, which may differ from its
current use.

For all assets, the Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy:

Input Level Description

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the Council can access at the
measurement date

Level 2 Inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset

5 Income and Expenditure Accruals

Income and expenditure is accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES) in the year in which the activity takes place, not simply when cash is received or paid. In
particular:

e Revenue from contracts for goods or services is recognised when (or as) the goods or services
are transferred in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

e Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are received.

e Interest payable on borrowings is accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the
relevant financial instrument.

21



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Where there is a timing difference between the recognition of income or expenditure as above and the
receipt or payment of cash, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance
Sheet.

Where the Council is acting as an agent for a third party, income and expenditure are recognised only
to the extent that commission is receivable by the Council, or the Council incurs expenses directly on
its own behalf.

6 Council Tax and Business Rates

The Council, as a billing authority, collects council tax and business rates both for itself, and on behalf
of local preceptors (and central government for business rates). Billing authorities are required to
maintain a separate Collection Fund for the collection and distribution of council tax and business
rates. Under the legislative framework, billing authorities, major preceptors, and central government
(for business rates) share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and
business rates collected could be more or less than predicted.

The council tax and business rates income included in the CIES is the Council’s share of accrued
income for the year. However, regulations determine the amount that must be included in the
Council’s General Fund, which is based upon amounts forecast in the preceding January, adjusted for
the distribution or repayment of historic Collection Fund surpluses or deficits. The difference between
income included in the CIES and the amount required to be credited to the General Fund is
teansferred to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement
IRS).

o
The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the year-end balances in respect of council tax

and business rates arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and
prepayments, and business rates appeal provisions.

7 Grants and Contributions

Grants and contributions are recognised as income in the CIES when there is reasonable assurance
that the grants or contributions will be received, and that the Council will comply with any conditions
attached. Revenue grants and contributions for specific services are credited to the relevant service
line, whilst non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital grants are credited to taxation and non-
specific grant income.

Conditions are stipulations that the grant or contribution is to be used by the Council as specified, or
that it must be returned to the donor. Where there is not yet sufficient assurance that conditions will
be met, any cash received is held on the Balance Sheet as a creditor.

Under statutory provisions, capital grants credited to the CIES are reversed out of the General Fund
or Housing Revenue Account (HRA) to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve through the MIRS.
When the amount is applied to fund capital expenditure, it is transferred through the MIRS to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

8 Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages and salaries and paid leave, are recognised as
expenditure on the relevant service line in the CIES, in the year in which employees render service to
the Council.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date, or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy. They are recognised as expenditure on the relevant service line in the CIES, at the
earlier of the point that the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of termination, or the point at
which the Council recognises restructuring costs.

Local Government Pension Scheme

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), unless
they opt out. The LGPS is a defined benefits scheme.

The Council’s share of pension fund liabilities is included on the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis
using the projected unit method, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in
relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based upon assumptions about mortality
rates, employee turnover rates, projected earnings for current employees, etc.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 2.7% (based upon
constituents of the iBoxx AA corporate bond index).

The Council’s share of the assets of the pension fund is included in the Balance Sheet at their fair
value, using bid prices where quoted, or professional estimates for unquoted securities and property
assets.

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components:

Component Description Accounting Treatment

Service costs

Current service Increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
cost earned this year

Service costs are charged to the
services for which the employees
worked in the CIES, whilst net interest
costs are charged to financing and
investment expenditure.

Past service cost Change in liabilities as a result of scheme amendment or
curtailment affecting years of service earned in earlier

years

Net interest cost Increase in net liability arising from the passage of time,
calculated by applying the liability discount rate at the

start of the year to the net liability at the start of the year

22



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Component Description Accounting Treatment

Remeasurements

Return on plan The Council’s share of the return on pension fund assets Remeasurements are included in the
assets for the year, excluding amounts included within the net CIES as other comprehensive income
interest cost and expenditure, and credited or

Actuarial gains and ~ Changes to the net pension liability because events CIEIEER) 10 Uns FERETOnS RESSe,

losses have not occurred in line with assumptions made at the
last actuarial valuation, or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions

Other

Employer
contributions

Cash contributions paid by the Council to fund future
benefit payments in accordance with scheme rules.

Employer contributions will reduce the
net pension liability, but do not give
rise to expenditure in the CIES.

Statutory provisions require the General Fund and HRA to be charged with the amount of employer
contributions payable by the Council in the year, not the amount calculated according to accounting
standards. This means that the MIRS includes transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove
the notional expenditure set out under ‘service costs’ in the table above, and replace it with the
e_rgployer contributions payable for the year.

Z%Ie negative balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore measures the benefit to the General Fund
%Pcl’d HRA of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows, rather than
as benefits are earned by employees.

9 Overheads and Support Services

The cost of overheads and support services is apportioned to individual service lines within the CIES.
This is based upon a best estimate of the proportions in which each support service is utilised.

10 VAT

VAT payable is included within expenditure only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HM
Revenue & Customs (HMRC). VAT receivable is excluded from income.

11 Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Rental income receivable in relation to investment properties is credited to financing and
investment income in the CIES.

Recognition and Measurement

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, and subsequently at fair value.

Investment properties are not depreciated, but are revalued annually according to market conditions
at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are credited or charged to financing and investment
income in the CIES.

Under statutory arrangements, gains and losses on revaluation are not permitted to have an impact
on the General Fund or HRA balance. Any gains or losses are therefore transferred through the MIRS
to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Investment Properties Held for Sale and Disposals

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an investment property will be recovered
principally through sale, rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an investment
property held for sale. The property is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell.

When an investment property is sold, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether
investment property or investment property held for sale) is written off to other operating income or
expenditure in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited
to the same place.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts, and
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve through the MIRS. These amounts are restricted for use
to fund new capital investment, or to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow.

Under statutory arrangements, any gain or loss on disposal is transferred through the MIRS to the
Capital Adjustment Account, in order that it does impact the General Fund or Housing Revenue
Account balance. This is because the cost of investment properties is fully provided for under
separate arrangements for capital financing.

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprises physical assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and that are expected
to be used for more than one year.

Recognition and Measurement

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of property, plant and equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow to the authority and the cost of the item can be
reliably measured.

Expenditure on repairs and maintenance that does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future
economic benefits or service potential (e.g. by enhancing its performance or extending its life) is
charged as an expense to the relevant service line in the CIES.

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price plus any costs attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its operation.

23



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Assets are subsequently carried on the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

Class of asset Measurement basis

Council dwellings Current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV-SH)

Other land and buildings  Current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use
(EUV), except for highly specialised assets where there is no market-based evidence of
current value, for which depreciated replacement cost (DRC) is used

Vehicles, plant, furniture  Current value, determined using depreciated historic cost as a proxy (due to assets having
and equipment short lives and/or low values)

Infrastructure assets Depreciated historic cost

Community assets Historic cost

Surplus assets Fair value

Assets under Historic cost

construction

Assets measured at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their carrying
amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, and as a minimum every
five years.

IfJaddition, an assessment is made at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that any
@poperty, plant and equipment assets may be impaired. Where such indications exist, and any

ssible impairment is estimated to be material, an impairment loss is recognised for the difference
etween the recoverable amount of the asset and its carrying amount.

Revaluation gains are recognised in other comprehensive income within the CIES, and credited to the
Revaluation Reserve. The exception is for gains that reverse a previous revaluation or impairment
loss which was charged to the CIES — in this case the gain will be credited back to same service line
originally charged to the extent that it reverses the original loss (adjusted for additional depreciation
which would have been charged in the meantime had the loss not been recognised).

Revaluation and impairment losses are accounted for as follows:-

e Where there is a balance of previous revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the loss will be charged to other comprehensive income within the CIES, and the Revaluation
Reserve reduced accordingly.

e Where there is no balance for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, or the balance is insufficient
to cover the full amount of the loss, any excess amount will be charged to the relevant service line
in the CIES.

Under statutory arrangements, gains and losses on revaluation and impairment are not permitted to
have an impact on the General Fund or HRA balance. Any gains or losses charged to the CIES are
therefore transferred through the MIRS to the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Revaluation Reserve only contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007, the date of
its implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on property, plant and equipment assets on the following bases:

Asset Class Depreciation Method Useful Economic Lives

Council dwellings Land: Not depreciated as indefinite useful

economic life

As advised by external valuer:

Houses / Bungalows: 55 years
Buildings: Straight line using a weighted

. N Flats / Maisonettes: 53 years
average life for all significant components

Other land and buildings Land: Not depreciated as indefinite useful

economic life

Buildings: 5 — 90 years (as advised by
external valuer), with shorter lives applied

Buildings: Straight line to individual components where the impact

is material
Vehicles, plant, furniture Straight line 3 — 25 years
and equipment
Infrastructure assets Straight line 10 — 40 years
Community assets Not depreciated Not applicable
Surplus assets Not depreciated Not applicable

Assets under construction Not depreciated Not applicable

Revaluation gains are also depreciated. An amount equal to the difference between the depreciation
charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been charged based on their historic cost is
transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Under statutory arrangements, the Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation.
However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue resources towards the reduction
in its overall General Fund borrowing requirement, known as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP).
MRP must be calculated on a prudent basis determined in accordance with statutory guidance.
Depreciation charges on General Fund assets are therefore reversed out of the General Fund to the
Capital Adjustment Account by way of a transfer in the MIRS, and replaced by a transfer in the
opposite direction representing the annual MRP charge.

Different arrangements apply to the HRA whereby depreciation charged is not reversed, but an
equivalent amount is transferred from the Capital Adjustment Account to the Major Repairs Reserve
through the MIRS to ensure that the Council maintains a prudent level of capital resources ringfenced
for maintaining the standard of council dwellings.

Disposals

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to other operating income or expenditure in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on

24



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same place. Any accumulated
revaluation gains for the asset held in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts, and
transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve through the MIRS. These amounts are restricted for use
to fund new capital investment, or to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow.

Under statutory arrangements, any gain or loss on disposal is transferred through the MIRS to the
Capital Adjustment Account, in order that it does impact the General Fund or HRA balance. This is
because the cost of property, plant and equipment is fully provided for under separate arrangements
for capital financing.

13 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the asset are transferred from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases. Where a lease covers both land and buildings, each element is considered
separately for classification.

C_:l(j)uncil as Lessee — Finance Leases

ﬁoperty held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the start of the lease, at the
IQRver of its fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. The asset is matched by a
I%)ility for the obligation to pay the lessor.

Lease payments are apportioned between:
e A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the asset, applied to write down the lease liability.
¢ Afinance charge, debited to financing and investment expenditure in the CIES.

Property held under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied generally to the
relevant class of asset, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter
than the asset’s useful economic life.

Council as Lessor — Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property, the asset is retained on the Balance
Sheet. Rental income is credited to financing and investment income in the CIES, on a straight-line
basis over the life of the lease.

14 Investments in Other Entities

The Council has material interests in a number of subsidiaries and joint ventures, which requires the
preparation of group accounts. The basis of consolidation is set out at note 1 to the Group Financial
Statements.

Within the Council Financial Statements (the single-entity accounts), these interests are recorded as
financial assets at cost.

15 Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified and measured using an approach that reflects the business model for
holding the assets and their cash flow characteristics. The Council holds financial assets measured
at:

e Amortised cost
e Fair value through profit or loss

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial
assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except those whose contractual payments do not
take the form of a basic debt instrument (i.e. are not solely payments of principal and interest).

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the asset, and are initially measured at fair value. They
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, i.e. the outstanding principal receivable plus any
accrued interest not yet received. Interest receivable is credited to financing and investment income in
the CIES, based upon the amount due for the year as set out in the loan agreement.

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost,
either on a 12 month or lifetime basis.

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that future cash flows might not take place
because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing
losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an asset was recognised, losses are assessed on
a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the
basis of 12-month expected losses.

Trade receivables (debtors) held by the authority are only assessed on a lifetime basis.
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised on the Balance Sheet
when the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the asset, and are initially measured
and subsequently carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as they arise within
financing and investment income in the CIES.

25



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the authority becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the liability, and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently
carried at amortised cost, i.e. the outstanding principal repayable (plus any accrued interest not yet
paid). Interest payable is charged to financing and investment expenditure in the CIES, based upon
the amount due for the year as set out in the loan agreement.

16 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours.

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in three months or less from the date of
acquisition, and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change
in value.

17 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions

P.Havisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive
@bligation that probably requires settlement (e.g. a payment to be made), and the amount of the

ligation can be reliably estimated. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that
(Q_éuld eventually result in the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service line in the CIES when the Council has an obligation,
and are measured at the best estimate at the Balance Sheet date, taking into account relevant risks
and uncertainties.

When payments are made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet. Estimated
settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than probable that
payment will now be required (or a lower settlement is anticipated), the provision is reversed in full or

in part and credited back to the relevant service line in the CIES.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the outcome of future uncertain events not entirely within
the Council’s control.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but disclosed in the Statement of
Accounts where it is probable that the asset will be received.

18 Earmarked Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as earmarked reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Earmarked reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund or

HRA through the MIRS. When expenditure to be financed from an earmarked reserve is incurred, it is
charged to the appropriate service line in the CIES, then an equivalent amount transferred back to the
General Fund or HRA through the MIRS.

Note 3 — Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Adopted

The following accounting standards are adopted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23, and therefore apply to the Council with effect from 1 April
2022. Neither are anticipated to have a material impact on the Statement of Accounts 2022/23:

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 — amendments to IFRS 1 (First-time
adoption), IAS 37 (Onerous contracts), IFRS 16 (Leases) and IAS 41 (Agriculture)

e Amendments to IAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) — Proceeds before Intended Use

Note 4 — Critical Judgement in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in note 2, the Council has had to make the following critical
judgement involving uncertainty about future events:

e There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However,
the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not sufficient to indicate that its assets might be
impaired, for example as a result of a need to close facilities or reduce levels of service provision.

Note 5 — Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of these accounts requires estimates to be made that are based upon the Council’s

assumptions about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors — nevertheless some balances cannot
be determined with certainty and actual results could be materially different from the estimates made.

The items in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 at significant risk of material adjustment in the
following year are set out below. These are the estimates which require the most difficult, subjective
or complex judgements. More detailed information about each estimate is set out within the relevant
disclosure note.

26



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Balance Sheet
Item

Property, plant
and equipment

Investment
property

T

@rovisions —
usiness rates
a)peals
provision

Net defined
benefit pension
liability

Source of Estimation Uncertainty

Assets are depreciated over useful lives dependent on
assumptions made about the level of repairs and maintenance
that will be carried out. Should the Council not sustain an
appropriate level of spending on repairs and maintenance, asset
lives may be reduced leading to a higher annual depreciation
charge.

Operational property assets are revalued by the Council’s
external valuers, using valuation techniques which are based
upon observable data wherever possible. Where such data is
not available, professional judgements must be made taking into
account considerations such as uncertainty and risk. Changes in
the assumptions used could affect the valuation amount.

Investment property assets are held at fair value as determined
by the Council’s external valuers, using valuation techniques
which are based upon observable data wherever possible.
Where such data is not available, professional judgements must
be made taking into account considerations such as uncertainty
and risk. Changes in the assumptions used could affect the
valuation amount.

The Council is liable for its share (40%) of current and previous
years’ business rates income lost as a result of successful rating
appeals. An external expert has been engaged to assist with
calculating a best estimate of the provision required, but
inherent uncertainties remain around the quantity, value and
success rates of appeals, both already submitted and still to
come.

The net pension liability depends on a number of complex
judgements, e.g. the discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are expected to increase, changes in retirement ages,
mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets.

The assumptions used are themselves highly sensitive to
external economic factors, for example increasing interest rates
could have a detrimental impact on asset returns. The Council
engages a professional actuary to carry out the valuation of the
net pension liability.

See Note 21 for more information on sensitivity analysis and the
guantification of some of these uncertatinties.

31 March 31 March Note
2022 2021
£000 £000

952,957 850,092 15

160,682 158,594 16

(3,863) (4,059) 20

(102,337)  (142,209) 21

Note 6 — Events After the Reporting Period

This audited Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Head of Finance and Section 151
Officer on XX XXXX 2022. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the accounts or
notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31
March 2022, the figures in the accounts and notes have been adjusted to reflect the impact of this

information.

Note 7 — Income and Expenditure Analysed by Nature

Note
Income
Fees, charges and other service income 8
Interest and investment income 10
Income from council tax and business rates 11
Government grants and contributions 27
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 9
Total income
Expenditure
Employee benefits expenses
Other service expenses
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Interest payments and investment expenses 10
Payments to the housing capital receipts pool 9

Total expenditure

(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000
(66,038) (57,292)
(15,577) (11,863)
(4,754) 7,080
(62,600) (116,772)
(6,208) 0
(155,177) (178,847)
41,942 37,977
66,688 72,543
8,144 26,254
11,611 11,619
1,134 1,359
129,519 149,752
(25,658) (29,095)

Included within other service expenses is expenditure associated with housing benefits of £28.4
million (2020/21: £30.5 million. Within the CIES, this is included within Finance and Resources

expenditure.

27



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Note 8 — Segmental Fees, Charges and Other Service Income Note 10 — Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 Income Expenditure Income Expenditure
Strategy and External Partnerships (176) (217) £000 £000 £000 £000
Finance and Resources (730) (682) Interest payable and similar charges 0 7,494 0 7,494
General Fund Housing (1,326) (1,474) Interest on net defined benefit pension liability 0 2,803 0 2,410
Climate Change, Environment and City Centre (2,545) (2,729) Interest receivable and similar income (2,170) 0 (2,483) 0
Communities (4,443) (2,335) Investment property income and expenditure (9,290) 1,314 (9,734) 1,715
Open Spaces, Sustainable Food and Community Wellbeing (799) (627) Changes in fair value of investment property (1,661) 0 444 0
Planning Policy and Transport (11,352) (5,487) (Gains) / losses on financial instruments classified as (2,456) 0 (90) 0
Housing Revenue Account (43,053) (42,300) R VIS (reigh it Of [ees
Financing and investment income (1,614) (1,541) Trading account income and expenditure (1,613) 1,500 (1,541) 1,537
Total fees, charges and other service income (66,0389) (57.292) Total financing and investment income and (17,190) 13,111 (13,404) 13,156

expenditure

Last year’s figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting

structure. There is no change to the total figure previously reported. Note 11 — Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

U : .
(ng)te 9 — Other Operating Income and Expenditure 2021/22 2020/21
D £000 £000 £000 £000
— 2021/22 2020/21 Council tax (9,126) (8,664)
Income Expenditure Income Expenditure Business rates:
£000 £000 £000 £000
) ) Council share of business rates income collected (32,890) (21,518)
(Gains) / losses on the disposal of non-current assets (6,208) 0 0 353
) ) ) Less tariff payable to central government 37,262 37,262
Payments to government housing capital receipts pool 0 1,134 0 1,359
o ; Net retained business rates income 4,372 15,744
Total other operating income and expenditure (6,208) 1,134 0 1,712
Non-ringfenced government grants (17,711) (37,178)
Capital grants and contributions (9,530) (36,273)
Total taxation and non-specific grant income (31,995) (66,371)

Net retained business rates income is negative for 2020/21 and 2021/22 due to the impact of
expanded retail rates relief offered by central government in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The
Council has been compensated for this through the receipt of business rates relief grants, which are
recognised within non-ringfenced government grants above (see note 27).

28



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Note 12 — Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under
Statutory Provisions

This note details the adjustments made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure
recognised in accordance with proper accounting practice, in order to arrive at the resources that are
specified by statutory provisions as being available to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
The adjustments are made against the following usable reserves:

General Fund — the statutory fund into which all the receipts of the Council are required to be paid,
and out of which all liabilities of the Council are to be met, except to the extent that statutory rules
provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the financial year in which liabilities and payments
should impact on the General Fund, which is not necessarily in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices. The General Fund balance therefore summarises the resources that the Council
is empowered to spend on its services or on capital investment at the end of the financial year. The
balance is not available to be applied to funding HRA services.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — reflects the statutory obligation to maintain a separate revenue

account for council housing provision under Part VI of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. It
contains the balance of income and expenditure in connection with the council’s landlord function (for

example rental income), which can only be used to fund expenditure on HRA services in the future.

iajor Repairs Reserve — contains an element of the Council’s capital resources which is limited to
ing used to finance future or historic capital expenditure on HRA assets (such as council houses).

6]
Cdpital Receipts Reserve — holds the proceeds from the disposal of property and other assets,
which can only be used to finance future or historic capital expenditure.

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve — holds grants and contributions received towards capital
projects which have not yet been applied to meet expenditure. The balance is restricted by the grant
terms as to the capital expenditure against which it can be applied and/or the financial years in which
this can place.

29



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

2021/22 2020/21
General Housing Capital Major Capital Unusable General Housing Capital Major Capital Unusable Unusable Reserve Affected
Fund Revenue  Receipts Repairs Grants reserves Fund Revenue  Receipts Repairs Grants reserves
Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied
(HRA) Reserve (HRA) Reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adjustments for capital purposes
Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and (5,617) 6,701 0 (8,981) 0 7,897 (7,066) (8,154) 0 (10,893) 0 26,113 Capital Adjustment Account
losses on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets (129) 0 0 (118) 0 247 (85) 0 0 (56) 0 141 Capital Adjustment Account
Movements in the fair value of investment properties 1,626 35 0 0 0 (1,661) (629) 185 0 0 0 444  Capital Adjustment Account
Capital grants and contributions 8,264 1,266 0 0 (9,530) 0 7,064 29,209 0 0 (36,273) 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,208) 0 0 0 0 1,108 (811) 0 0 0 0 811 Capital Adjustment Account
Costs of disposal funded from capital receipts 0 (165) 165 0 0 0 0 (120) 120 0 0 0
Carrying value of non-current assets and non-current (3,423) (3,129) 0 0 0 6,552 (523) (5,590) 0 0 0 6,113 Capital Adjustment Account
assets held for sale written off on disposal
-IEjoceeds from the disposal of non-current assets and 5,193 7,528 (12,721) 0 0 0 659 5,027 (5,686) 0 0 0
(gon—current assets held for sale (greater than £10,000)
@®mount payable into the housing capital receipts pool (1,134) 0 1,134 0 0 0 (1,359) 0 1,359 0 0 0
gsertion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
Minimum revenue provision for repayment of debt 306 0 0 0 0 (306) 306 0 0 0 0 (306) Capital Adjustment Account
Financing of capital expenditure from usable reserves 368 8,487 29,979 11,205 12,668 (62,707) 1,715 4,794 11,040 7,103 14,963 (39,615) Capital Adjustment Account
Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon 0 0 (2,705) 0 0 2,705 0 0 (349) 0 0 349 Deferred Capital Receipts
receipt of cash Reserve
Transfers on repayment of loans 9 0 (18,778) 0 0 18,787 0 0 (40) 0 0 40 Capital Adjustment Account
Total adjustments for capital purposes 4,337 20,723 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 (27,378) (729) 25,351 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (5,910)
Pensions adjustments
Reversal of pension costs charged to the (13,040) (2,396) 0 0 0 15,436 (9,391) (1,633) 0 0 0 11,024 Pensions Reserve
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in
accordance with IAS 19
Insertion of contributions due under the pension scheme 5,942 1,739 0 0 0 (7,681) 5,996 1,750 0 0 0 (7,746) Pensions Reserve
regulations
Total pensions adjustments (7,098) (657) 0 0 0 7,755 (3,395) 117 0 0 0 3,278
Total adjustments for capital purposes and pensions (2,761) 20,066 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 (19,623) (4,124) 25,468 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (2,632)
adjustments

30



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

2021/22 2020/21
General Housing Capital Major Capital Unusable General Housing Capital Major Capital Unusable Unusable Reserve Affected
Fund Revenue  Receipts Repairs Grants reserves Fund Revenue  Receipts Repairs Grants reserves
Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied
(HRA) Reserve (HRA) Reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total adjustments for capital purposes and pensions (2,761) 20,066 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 (19,623) (4,124) 25,468 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (2,632)

adjustments

Other statutory adjustments

Transfers between the General Fund and Housing 7 @) 0 0 0 0 40 (40) 0 0 0 0

Revenue Account under statutory provisions

Adjustments for differences between the income

and expenditure included in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement and the amounts

charged to the General Fund and HRA under

statutory provisions, in respect of:

Finance income and expenditure (37) 0 0 0 0 37 32 0 0 0 0 (32) Financial Instruments

Adjustment Account

Council tax and business rates income 17,168 0 0 0 0 (17,168) (27,497) 0 0 0 0 27,497 Collection Fund Adjustment
T Account
gair value gains and losses on pooled investment funds 2,506 0 0 0 0 (2,506) (155) 0 0 0 0 155 Pooled Investment

D Adjustment Account
@ovements in the accumulated absences accrual 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 48 0 0 0 (113) Accumulated Absences

Account
Total other statutory adjustments 19,644 @) 0 0 0 (19,637) (27,515) 8 0 0 0 27,507
Total adjustments between accounting basis and 16,883 20,059 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 (39,260) (31,639) 25,476 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) 24,875

funding basis under statutory provisions

31



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 13 — Earmarked Reserves

1 April  Transfers  Transfers 31 March  Transfers  Transfers 31 March

2020 In Out 2021 In Out 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
General Fund
Collection Fund deficit 0 (31,809) 0 (31,809) 0 25,432 (6,377)
reserve
Earmarked for capital (4,678) (1,501) 1,889 (4,290) (975) 129 (5,136)
use
Greater Cambridge (5,328) (715) 901 (5,142) (418) 346 (5,214)
Partnership
Other shared / (2,036) (560) 517 (2,079) (325) 370 (2,034)
partnership working
Insurance Fund (1,238) (118) 0 (1,356) 0 37 (1,319)
Service specific (5,358) (3,724) 2,649 (6,433) (289) 1,212 (5,510)
reserves
Transformation 0 (101) 0 (101) (4,062) 20 (4,143)
Other (42) 0 9 (33) 0 0 (33)
;‘?Jtal General Fund (18,680) (38,528) 5,965 (51,243) (6,069) 27,546 (29,766)
(.%armarked reserves
ddousing Revenue
G count (HRA)
Asset Repair and (2,505) (263) 234 (2,534) (266) 188 (2,612)
Renewal Reserves
Earmarked for HRA (14,705) 0 0 (14,705) 0 0 (14,705)
debt redemption /
reinvestment
Other (47) (6) 25 (28) (6) 0 (34)
Total HRA earmarked (17,257) (269) 259 (17,267) (272) 188 (17,351)

reserves

The Collection Fund deficit reserve holds money set aside to cover the Council’s share of forecast
future collection fund deficits caused mainly by the Covid-19 pandemic and the government’s
response (for example the expansion of mandatory and discretionary rates relief). The impact of this
has largely been funded by compensatory grants from central government.

Note 14 — Unusable Reserves
The Council’s principal unusable reserves are as follows:-

Capital Adjustment Account — absorbs timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the consumption of non-current assets, and for financing the capital expenditure on
these assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited as depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses and losses on disposal of non-current assets are charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, and credited as amounts are set aside from capital resources to
finance capital expenditure. It contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties,
together with revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment prior to 1 April 2007.

Revaluation Reserve — holds unrealised gains on property, plant and equipment accumulated since
the reserve’s implementation on 1 April 2007. Gains accumulated before this date are held in the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Pensions Reserve — absorbs timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for the Local Government Pension Scheme, and for funding the scheme in accordance
with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for scheme costs in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as benefits are earned by employees, updating the future liability each year to
reflect changing assumptions and investment returns. However, statutory arrangements require the
General Fund and Housing Revenue Account to be charged only with the employer contributions
payable for the year. The debit balance on the reserve therefore reflects the current shortfall between
the benefits earned by employees and the resources set aside to meet them. Statutory requirements
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account — absorbs timing differences arising from the recognition of
council tax and business rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it
falls due from council tax and business rates payers, and the statutory arrangements for paying
across amounts to the General Fund. The balance here will be transferred to the General Fund in
future years in line with statutory requirements.

32



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Balance at 1 April 2020

Other comprehensive income and expenditure:
(Surplus) / deficit on revaluation of non-current assets
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under statutory provisions:

Adjustments for capital purposes
Pensions adjustments

Other statutory adjustments

Transfers between unusable reserves:

1pjfference between fair value depreciation and historic
‘&bst depreciation

®Rccumulated gains on non-current assets disposed of
(o)

Balance at 31 March 2021

Other comprehensive income and expenditure:
(Surplus) / deficit on revaluation of non-current assets

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under statutory provisions:

Adjustments for capital purposes
Pensions adjustments

Other statutory adjustments

Transfers between unusable reserves:

Difference between fair value depreciation and historic
cost depreciation

Accumulated gains on non-current assets disposed of

Balance at 31 March 2022

Note

CIES

CIES

12

12

12

CIES

CIES

12

12

12

Capital Revaluation Pensions  Collection Fund Pooled Accumulated Financial Deferred Capital Total unusable

Adjustment Reserve Reserve Adjustment Investment Absences Instruments Receipts reserves
Account Account Adjustment Account Adjustment Reserve

Account Account

£°000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

(577,071) (170,271) 102,825 (3,490) 0 454 92 (3,126) (650,587)

0 (34,766) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (34,766)

0 0 36,106 0 0 0 0 0 36,106

(6,259) 0 0 0 0 0 0 349 (5,910)

0 0 3,278 0 0 0 0 0 3,278

0 0 0 27,497 155 (113) (32) 0 27,507

(4,115) 4,115 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(336) 336 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(587,781) (200,586) 142,209 24,007 155 341 60 (2,777) (624,372)

0 (63,547) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (63,547)

0 0 (47,627) 0 0 0 0 0 (47,627)

(30,083) 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,705 (27,378)

0 0 7,755 0 0 0 0 0 7,755

0 0 0 (17,168) (2,506) 0 37 0 (19,637)

(3,566) 3,566 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(630) 630 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(622,060) (259,937) 102,337 6,839 (2,351) 341 97 (72) (774,806)

33



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 15 — Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements on Balances

Balance at 1 April 2020:
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the surplus / deficit on the provision of services
Assets reclassified (to) / from investment properties
Assets reclassified (to) / from intangible assets
Apsets reclassified (to) / from other categories of property, plant and equipment
(%epreciation charge
%Iance at 31 March 2021:
Ib)ross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the surplus / deficit on the provision of services
Assets reclassified (to) / from investment properties
Assets reclassified (to) / from other categories of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation charge
Balance at 31 March 2022:
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Net book value

Council Other land and Vehicles, plant, Infrastructure Community  Surplus assets Assets under Total property,
dwellings buildings furniture and assets assets construction plant and
equipment equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
608,549 155,804 26,662 7,184 1,339 0 36,296 835,834
0 (10,521) (15,887) (1,102) 0 0 0 (27,510)
608,549 145,283 10,775 6,082 1,339 0 36,296 808,324
11,265 331 950 733 12 0 25,747 39,038
(5,532) 0 (155) (30) 0 0 0 (5,717)
29,576 5,180 0 0 0 10 0 34,766
(8,228) 87 0 0 0 0 0 (8,141)
0 0 0 0 0 0 (24) (24)

0 0 0 0 0 0 (182) (182)
14,767 0 0 0 0 0 (14,767) 0
(10,593) (5,011) (2,170) (198) 0 0 0 (17,972)
639,804 146,957 22,131 7,880 1,351 10 47,070 865,203
0 (1,087) (12,731) (1,293) 0 0 0 (15,111)
639,804 145,870 9,400 6,587 1,351 10 47,070 850,092
16,053 715 420 608 0 0 33,314 51,110
(3,131) (420) (68) 0 (20) (8) 0 (3,647)
58,627 5,112 0 0 0 (192) 0 63,547
6,318 667 (21) 0 0 (7) 0 6,957

0 300 0 0 0 0 (548) (248)
17,451 (2,682) 598 0 0 276 (15,643) 0
(8,693) (3,758) (2,190) (213) 0 0 0 (14,854)
726,429 147,106 21,595 8,488 1,331 79 64,193 969,221
0 (1,302) (13,456) (1,506) 0 0 0 (16,264)
726,429 145,804 8,139 6,982 1,331 79 64,193 952,957

34



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Valuation

Council dwellings are revalued at 31 March each year, using a beacon approach. The housing stock
is divided into a number of ‘archetypes’ containing dwellings with similar characteristics (e.g. location,
property type, number of bedrooms). Within each archetype, one representative ‘beacon’ property is
selected for revaluation, with the resulting valuation applied to all similar dwellings.

Valuations are undertaken by an external valuer who inspects beacon properties on a rolling 5-yearly
cycle. Valuations are carried out in accordance with ‘Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting —
Guidance for Valuers’ published by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities
(DLUHC), and the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards (‘Red Book’) except where varied to
reflect DLUHC requirements.

In addition, the external valuer carries out an annual desktop revaluation exercise on all properties not
subject to inspection in any given year. This exercise is carried out with reference to UK House Price
Index data.

Other land and buildings are subject to revaluation on at least a 5-yearly rolling basis, with
additional valuations carried out where there is a risk that values have moved significantly in the
intervening period. Valuations are undertaken by an external valuer in accordance with the RICS
Wgluation — Professional Standards (‘Red Book’), with one departure in respect of the physical
@spection of properties. The valuer undertakes physical inspection of only a sample of properties,
relying upon information provided by the Council in respect of the remaining properties. The Council
Iﬁgs chosen to depart from the Red Book in this way to secure best value for money in relation to
property valuation work.

The following table shows the current carrying value of property, plant and equipment (excluding
those classes of asset held at historic cost) by date of most recent valuation:

Council dwellings Other land and Surplus assets Total
buildings

£000 £000 £000 £000

Valued at current value as at:
31 March 2022 726,429 133,457 79 859,965
31 March 2021 0 6,314 0 6,314
31 March 2020 0 2,251 0 2,251
31 March 2019 0 2,620 0 2,620
31 March 2018 0 1,162 0 1,162
Total 726,429 145,804 79 872,312

Finance Leases

Included under other land and buildings are three car parks held by the Council under finance leases.
The net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 is £29,905,000 (31 March 2021: £29,070,000). Since the
leases are at peppercorn rent, there is no associated lease liability.

Capital Commitments

The Council has entered into a number of contracts for the construction or enhancement of property,
plant and equipment in future years, with the following values:-

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 £000
Park Street car park redevelopment 84,717 90,803
New build dwellings 49,220 62,725
Capital works on existing dwellings 8,436 7,266
Meadows Community Centre and Buchan Street shops 3,269 5,972
Other property, plant and equipment 1,483 81
Total contractual commitments for property, plant and equipment 147,125 166,847

35



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 16 — Investment Property

Movements on Balances

Balance at 1 April 2020

Additions — subsequent expenditure
Unrealised revaluation gains / (losses)
Disposals

Transfers to investment property held for sale
Transfers (to) / from property, plant and equipment
Transfers between investment property classes
Balance at 31 March 2021

Additions — subsequent expenditure

Threalised revaluation gains / (losses)

(S%sposals

D

Byansfers (to) / from property, plant and equipment

B
Balance at 31 March 2022

Central Other retail Offices Industrial Land Leisure Other Total Investment Total
Cambridge investment  properties held
shopping properties for sale

centres

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

21,975 32,180 13,000 26,690 37,386 1,000 30,491 162,722 0 162,722

0 72 60 53 0 0 17 202 0 202

(6,145) (626) (554) 3,697 1,755 780 649 (444) 0 (444)

0 0 0 0 0 0 (385) (385) 0 (385)

0 (2,135) 0 0 0 0 (1,390) (3,525) 3,525 0

0 0 24 0 0 0 0 24 0 24

0 0 0 0 0 1,800 (1,800) 0 0 0

15,830 29,491 12,530 30,440 39,141 3,580 27,582 158,594 3,525 162,119

0 43 21 90 18 0 7 179 0 179

(220) (579) (186) 260 2,413 (18) 9) 1,661 0 1,661

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,905) (2,905)

0 338 0 0 0 0 (90) 248 0 248

15,610 29,293 12,365 30,790 41,572 3,562 27,490 160,682 620 161,302

36



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Fair Value Measurement

Investment property is held at fair value as determined by an external valuer. Valuations are carried
out in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards (‘Red Book’), with one departure
in respect of physical inspection of properties. The valuer undertakes physical inspection of only a
sample of properties, relying upon information provided by the Council in respect of the remaining
properties. The Council has chosen to depart from the Red Book in this way to secure best value for
money in relation to property valuation work.

The valuation techniques and key inputs used for each class of investment property are as follows:-

Investment property  Predominant valuation Key unobservable inputs Range of inputs

class technique
Central Cambridge Investment Net initial yield 6.20% - 6.75%
shopping centres
Other retail Investment Market rent (psf) £7.00 - £45.70
Market rent (area in terms of ~ £20.00 - £136.00
Zone A)
Yield 2.70% - 11.00%
_qfices Investment Market rent (psf) £12.00 - £26.50
8 Yield 6.50% - 10.15%
Rdustrial Investment Market rent (psf) £7.00 - £18.00
8 Yield 6.37% - 8.24%
Land Investment / Comparable Market rent (per acre) £200 - £50,000
Net initial yield 2.70% - 5.71%
Equivalent yield 5.30% - 5.70%
£/ acre £3,000 - £1,330,000
Leisure Investment Equivalent yield 7.59% - 8.25%
Other Investment / Comparable Yield 3.50% - 11.00%

The investment method involves estimating the rental value of each property and capitalising at an
appropriate yield. This approach factors in future assumptions such as rent growth, occupancy levels
and future maintenance costs, and also adjusts for redevelopment potential where applicable.

The comparable method involves reviewing recent similar transactions on the open market and
using these as a benchmark, with appropriate adjustments to reflect differences between observed
transactions and the Council’s individual investment properties.

Both of these methods rely upon significant unobservable inputs to determine fair value, and therefore
all investment property valuations are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. There is no
reasonably available information that indicates that market participants would use different
assumptions.

Significant increases in market rents or land values would result in a significantly higher fair value
measurement, and vice versa.

Significant increases in yields would result in a significantly lower fair value measurement, and vice
versa.

Income and Expenditure

The following is included within financing and investment income and expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000

Rental income from investment property (9,290) (9,734)
Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 551 419
Net (gain) / loss (8,739) (9,315)

Highest and Best Use

All of the Council’s investment properties are currently operating at their highest and best use, with
the exception of property in the Cambridge Northern Fringe East development area which is let out on
a short term basis (with the Council able to exercise break clauses) pending redevelopment.

Operating Leases

Investment properties are let to a variety of tenants under operating leases. The future minimum lease
payments due under non-cancellable leases are as follows:-

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 £000
Not later than one year 6,623 5,883
Between one and five years 20,236 17,951
Later than five years 102,828 99,476
Total future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases 129,687 123,310

The future minimum lease payments above do not include contingent rents. In 2021/22, contingent
rents of £773,000 (2020/21: £1,589,000) were receivable.

37



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 17 — Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Long-term Short-term Total
Loans to joint Loan to subsidiary Other long-term Debtors Investments Cash and cash Debtors
ventures investments equivalents
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value through profit or loss 0 0 0 0 17,401 14,803 753 3,520 14,950 15,042 0 0 0 0 33,104 33,365
Amortised cost 38,476 50,469 7,500 7,500 5,050 2,250 51 8 101,285 68,119 30,208 14,303 5,569 6,330 188,139 148,979
Total financial assets 38,476 50,469 7,500 7,500 22,451 17,053 804 3,528 116,235 83,161 30,208 14,303 5,569 6,330 221,243 182,344
Assets not defined as financial 0 0 0 0 0 0 315 2,961 0 0 0 0 9,778 46,479 10,093 49,440
instruments
Total 38,476 50,469 7,500 7,500 22,451 17,053 1,119 6,489 116,235 83,161 30,208 14,303 15,347 52,809 231,336 231,784
U e
Bnancial Liabilities
«Q
D
ch Long-term Short-term Total
Borrowing Borrowing Creditors
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Amortised cost (213,572) (213,572) (82) (82) (15,777) (10,978) (229,431) (224,632)
Total financial liabilities (213,572) (213,572) (82) (82) (15,777) (10,978) (229,431) (224,632)
Liabilities not defined as financial instruments 0 0 0 0 (48,086) (48,148) (48,086) (48,148)
Total (213,572) (213,572) (82) (82) (63,863) (59,126) (277,517) (272,780)

38



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses Financial Assets Not Measured at Fair Value
The following income and expenditure relating to financial instruments is reflected in the surplus or The fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost can be assessed by
deficit on the provision of services: calculating the present value of future cash flows, using the following assumptions:-
2021/22 2020/21 e For instruments which will mature in the next 12 months, carrying value is taken as an
approximation of fair value.
£000 £000 £000 £000
Net (gains) / losses on: e No early repayments are assumed.
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (4,589) (°0) e The fair value of long-term borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) is calculated
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 73 949 using the average new loans rate for the year of 2.61% (2020/21: 2.15%).
Total net (gains) / losses (4,516) 859
Interest revenue: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (607) (784) Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (1,563) (1,699) £000 £000 £000 £000
Total interest revenue (2,170) (2,483) Financial assets
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 7,494 7,494 Loans to joint ventures 38,476 38,476 50,469 50,469
Net (income) / expenditure recognised in surplus or deficit on 808 5,870 Loan to subsidiary 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500
.ree provision of services )
o Other long-term investments 5,050 5,050 2,250 2,250
Q Long-term debtors 51 51 8 8
@e net g_a_ln on financial assets measurgd at falr value through profit or loss includes a ggln on T —— 101,285 101,285 68,119 68,119
derecognition of £2,133,000 (2020/21: nil). This relates to contingent proceeds from the disposal of _
. . . . o L . Cash and cash equivalents 30,208 30,208 14,303 14,303
assets which were settled in full during the year, and is included within other operating income in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Short-term debtors 5,569 5,569 6,330 6,330
Total financial assets held at amortised cost 188,139 188,139 148,979 148,979
Fair Value Financial liabilities
) ] ] _ ) ) Short-term borrowing (82) (82) (82) (82)
The following financial assets are measured at fair value on a recurring basis: _
Short-term creditors (15,777) (15,777) (10,978) (10,978)
input level £000 £000
Investments in pooled Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in 32,351 29,845
investment vehicles active markets for identical units
Soft loans Level 3 Present value of likely future cash 753 815
flows
Contingent proceeds Level 3 Present value of likely estimated 0 2,705
from disposal of assets sales proceeds
Total financial assets 33,104 33,365

held at fair value

39



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Note 18 — Short-term Debtors

Trade receivables
Prepayments
Other receivables

Total short-term debtors

Note 19 — Short-term Creditors

Trade creditors
Receipts in advance
-gher creditors

gotal short-term creditors
(9]

©
Iﬁ%te 20 — Provisions

Provisions

Balance at 1 April 2020
Additional provisions made
Amounts used

Unused amounts reversed
Balance at 31 March 2021
Additional provisions made
Amounts used

Unused amounts reversed

Balance at 31 March 2022

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(Restated)
£000 £000
3,457 3,957
4,060 3,325
7,830 45,527

15,347 52,809

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

(Restated)
£000 £000
(606) (894)
(11,453) (6,146)
(51,804) (52,086)
(63,863) (59,126)
and Contingencies
Business rates appeals Other Total
£000 £000 £000
(4,200) (219) (4,419)
(2,987) (133) (3,120)
3,128 120 3,248
0 82 82
(4,059) (150) (4,209)
(478) (159) (637)
674 72 746
0 49 49
(3,863) (188) (4,051)

The business rates appeals provision represents the best estimate of the Council’s share of the
amount repayable to ratepayers, for years up to 31 March 2022, following successful rating valuation
appeals. The estimate is calculated with the assistance of an external expert, using data from the
Valuation Office Agency (VOA) on outstanding appeals and the outcomes of historic appeals. The
timing and amount of payments remains uncertain, as the settlement of appeals is outside of the
Council’s control.

Contingent Assets

The Council has disposed of land in North East Cambridge for a consideration which is contingent on
a number of events. The potential proceeds are so uncertain both in timing and amount that no asset
has been recognised in respect of this.

Note 21 — Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by
Cambridgeshire County Council. The scheme provides defined benefits (lump sums and pensions) to
members on retirement. It is funded through contributions from the Council and employees, calculated
at a level intended to balance future pension liabilities with investment assets.

The scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the LGPS, and its governance is the
responsibility of the Pensions Committee and Investment Sub Committee of Cambridgeshire County
Council, along with the Local Pension Board. Policy is determined in accordance with the Pensions
Fund Regulations.

The principal risks to the Council arising from the scheme are statutory or structural changes to the
scheme (e.g. large scale withdrawals), changes to actuarial assumptions (e.g. longevity, discount
rates and inflation rates), and the performance of investments held by the scheme. These are
mitigated to some extent by the statutory requirement to charge the General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account only with the employer contributions payable for the year (see note 2 — accounting
policy 8).

40



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Transactions Relating to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Cost of services:

Current service cost

Past service costs (including settlements and curtailments)

Financing and investment expenditure:

Net interest expense

Total charged to surplus on the provision of services

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability:

Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense)

Changes in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Other experience

-B)tal charged to other comprehensive income and expenditure
&otal charged to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(9]
@ovement in Reserves Statement — General Fund and Housing
®evenue Account

Net charges included in surplus on the provision of services as above
Reversal of net charges included in surplus on the provision of services

Insertion of employer contributions due under the pension scheme
regulations

Total charged to General Fund and Housing Revenue Account

2021/22 2020/21

£000  £000  £000  £000
12,822 8,505
(189) 109
2,803 2,410

15,436 11,024
(18,262) (50,019)
(2,003) 84,854
(28,067) 4,653
705 (3,382)

(47,627) 36,106

(32,191) 47,130

15,436 11,024

(15,436) (11,024)

7,681 7,746

7,681 7,746

Balance at 1 April
Current service cost

Past service costs (including settlements
and curtailments)

Interest income and expense

Remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability:

Return on plan assets (excluding
amount included in net interest expense)

Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Other experience

Contributions from employer
Contributions from employees
Benefits paid

Balance at 31 March

Reconciliation of Plan Assets and Liabilities

Council Financial Statements

Plan assets Plan liabilities Net defined benefit
liability

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
271,102 215,394 (413,311) (318,219) (142,209) (102,825)
0 0 (12,821) (8,505)  (12,822) (8,505)
(836) 0 1,025 (109) 189 (109)
5,490 4,923 (8,293) (7,333) (2,803) (2,410)
18,262 50,019 0 0 18,262 50,019
0 0 2,003 (4,653) 2,003 (4,653)
0 0 28,067 (84,854) 28,067 (84,854)
0 0 (705) 3,382 (705) 3,382
7,681 7,746 0 0 7,681 7,746
1,672 1,658 (1,672) (1,658) 0 0
(9,054) (8,638) 9,054 8,638 0 0
294,317 271,102 (396,654) (413,311) (102,337) (142,209)

41



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Fair Value of Plan Assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Quoted Quoted Total Quoted Quoted Total

prices in  prices not prices in  prices not

active in active active in active

markets markets markets markets
£000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000
Debt securities — UK government 0 15,354 15,354 0 10,942 10,942
Private equity 0 28,398 28,398 0 25,236 25,236
Real estate — UK property 0 19,433 19,433 0 16,532 16,532
Real estate — Overseas property 0 2 2 0 3 3
Derivatives 0 (153) (153) 0 (3,207) (3,207)
Cash and cash equivalents 3,464 0 3,464 7,448 0 7,448

Investment funds and unit trusts:

Equities 0 173,648 173,648 0 161,395 161,395
Bonds 0 31,187 31,187 0 30,006 30,006
_Iefrastructure 0 22,984 22,984 0 22,747 22,747
Qotal plan assets 3,464 290,853 294,317 7,448 263,654 271,102

«Q

(¢

H

o - -
Agtuarial Assumptions

Plan liabilities have been assessed by an independent actuary, Hymans Robertson, based upon the
latest full valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2019, and the following significant assumptions:

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Pension increase rate (CPI) 3.20% 2.85%
Salary increase rate 3.70% 3.35%
Discount rate (for plan liabilities) 2.70% 2.00%

Longevity at 65:

Current pensioners — men 22.0 years 22.2 years
Current pensioners —women 24.2 years 24.4 years
Future pensioners (aged 45 at last valuation date) — men 22.9 years 23.2 years
Future pensioners (aged 45 at last valuation date) — women 26.0 years 26.2 years
Take up of option to convert annual pension into retirement lump sum:

In respect of service prior to April 2008 25% 25%
In respect of service since April 2008 64% 64%

The estimation of the plan liabilities is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions in the table above. The
sensitivity analysis below is based on reasonably possible changes to the assumptions used at the
Balance Sheet date. It assumes in each case that the assumption analysed changes while all other
assumptions remain constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, as changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated. The estimations used in the sensitivity analysis have followed the
accounting policies for the scheme.

Change in assumption as at 31 March 2022 Approximate increase in plan liabilities

% £000
0.1% decrease in discount rate 2 7,679
1 year increase in member life expectancy 4 15,866
0.1% increase in salary increase rate 0 629
0.1% increase in pension increase rate (CPI) 2 6,993

Funding Policy

The objective of the scheme is to keep employer contributions at as constant a rate as possible. A
strategy has been agreed with the scheme actuary to achieve an appropriate funding level over the
period to 31 March 2023.

The Council paid a deficit repair contribution of £8,905,000 in April 2020, covering the three year
period ending 31 March 2023. This has been accounted for initially as a prepayment, and included
within employer contributions across the three years. The amount included in employer contributions
in 2021/22 is £2,965,000 (2020/21: £3,151,000), and the prepayment remaining at 31 March 2022 is
£2,789,000 (31 March 2021: £5,754,000).

Employer contributions in 2022/23 (including the release of the final prepaid amount) are projected to
be £7,022,000. As at the last full valuation date (31 March 2019), the weighted average duration of
the Council’s funded obligations is 21 years.

Note 22 — Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities include the following amounts relating to interest and dividends:

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000
Interest received 1,753 1,258
Interest paid (7,494) (7,494)
Dividends received 584 661

Within the Cash Flow Statement, the surplus on the provision of services has been adjusted for the
following items:

42



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000
Non-cash movements
Depreciation 14,854 17,972
Impairment and downward valuations 0 8,585
Amortisation 247 141
(Decrease) / increase in impairment for bad debts (154) 824
Increase in creditors 1,957 32,141
Decrease / (increase) in debtors 3,995 (7,157)
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 4 (12)
Movement in pension liability 7,755 3,278
Carrying amount of non-current assets and assets held for sale disposed of 6,552 6,102
Other non-cash items credited to surplus on the provision of services (12,359) (1,229)
Total adjustments to net surplus on the provision of services for non-cash movements 22,851 60,646
Items that are investing and financing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible (12,760) (5,749)
qgsets
gapital grants receivable (9,530) (36,273)
clletaI adjustments from items included in the net surplus on the provision of services (22,290) (42,022)
Eat are investing or financing activities
Note 23 — Reconciliation of Assets and Liabilities Arising from Financing
Activities
1 April Financing 31 March Financing 31 March
2020 Cash 2021 Cash 2022
Flows Flows
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Long-term borrowings (213,572) 0 (213,572) 0 (213,572)
Short-term borrowings (82) 0 (82) 0 (82)
Short-term creditors: business rates and (13,388) 37,162 23,774 (25,505) (2,731)
council tax collected as an agent for others
Total liabilities from financing activities (227,042) 37,162 (189,880) (25,505) (215,385)
Short-term debtors: business rates and 0 5,511 5,511 (2,692) 2,819
council tax collected as an agent for others
Total assets from financing activities 0 5,511 5,511 (2,692) 2,819

Note 24 — Members’ Allowances

The total of members’ allowances and expenses paid in the year was £372,000 (2020/21: £358,000).

Note 25 — Officers’ Remuneration

Senior Employees

Chief Executive?
Chief Executive?

Assistant Chief
Executive and Head of
Corporate Strategy3®+

Director of Enterprise
and Sustainable
Development®

Director of
Neighbourhoods and
Communities®

Strategic Director”

Head of Finance and
Section 151 Officer

Head of Transformation®

Salary, fees
and
allowances
£

119,087
0
79,326

103,745

66,826

37,816
79,326

62,620

1 Joined on 19 April 2021

2 Left on 30 September 2020

3 Previously known as Head of Corporate Strategy

2021/22

Pension
contribution

£
20,721

13,803

18,052

11,628

5,928
13,803

10,857

Total

£
139,808
0
93,129

121,797

78,454

43,744
93,129

73,477

Salary, fees
and
allowances
£

0

71,149

78,154

102,212

102,212
77,824

78,154

4 In addition, £1,912 was paid in respect of elections work (2020/21: nil)

5 Previously known as Strategic Director

2020/21
Pension
contribution
£
0
11,622
13,599

17,785

17,785
13,599

13,599

Total

Ith

82,771
91,753

119,997

119,997
91,423

91,753

& Appointed to current role on 12 July 2021 — remuneration from previous role (as a non-senior
employee) is not included in the table above

" Left on 31 July 2021

8 Left on 18 January 2022

43



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

In addition, there was an Interim Chief Executive and Returning Officer in post from 1 October 2020 to
14 May 2021, who was paid through an agency arrangement. The cost for the year is £31,646
(2020/21: £142,646).

The Council appointed a new Head of Transformation on 6 December 2021, who is paid through an
agency arrangement. The cost for the year was £54,972.

Other Employees

The Council’s other employees (excluding the senior employees disclosed separately above)
receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer pension contributions)
were paid as follows:-

Remuneration band 2021/22 2020/21
No. of employees No. of employees
£50,000 - £54,999 19 20
£55,000 - £59,999 13 6
£60,000 - £64,999 6 4
£65,000 - £69,999 1 1
0,000 - £74,999 1 2
QD
9 8

%75,000 - £79,999
o
Paor year figures have been restated to exclude senior employees for consistency.

Exit Packages

Exit package cost band
(including special payments)

Total number of exit packages Total cost of exit packages

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

No. No. £000 £000

£0 - £20,000 7 4 75 14
£20,001 - £40,000 0 2 0 59
£40,001 - £60,000 2 1 89 51
£60,001 - £80,000 0 1 0 72
£80,001 - £100,000 0 2 0 234
Total 9 10 164 430

All exit packages relate to compulsory redundancies.

10 https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/councillors-duties-conduct-and-allowances

Note 26 — Related Party Transactions

Central Government and Other Public Bodies

The UK government has significant influence over the operations of the Council. It is responsible for
setting the statutory framework in which the Council operates, provides a significant level of funding,
and prescribes the terms of many of the Council’s transactions with others (e.g. relating to council tax
and housing benefits).

The Council has a number of transactions and balances with central government and other public
bodies (under its common control). Most of those which are material are disclosed elsewhere in this
Statement of Accounts as follows:-

Transaction / Balance Note
Government grant income and material year-end balances 27

Council tax and business rates collected on behalf of central government and local 23, Collection Fund Statement

preceptors and related year-end balances

Transactions and balances with Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 21
Cambridgeshire County Council

In addition, the Council frequently places fixed term deposits with other local authorities for treasury
management purposes. The total principal amount invested with other local authorities at 31 March
2022 (included within short-term investments) was £88,000,000 (31 March 2021: £62,000,000).

The Council shares a number of key services with Huntingdonshire District Council and South
Cambridgeshire District Council under the banner of 3C Shared Services, including ICT, Building
Control and Legal. The Council also shares waste, planning, internal audit and payroll services with
South Cambridgeshire District Council. In each case, the Council accounts for its share of income and
expenditure, and any year-end debtor or creditor balances, in accordance with Code requirements.

Members

Members of the Council have direct control over its financial and operating policies. The total of
members’ allowances and expenses paid in 2021/22 is set out at note 24.

Members are required to make declarations of interest concerning third parties. Details are recorded
in the Council’s Register of Interests'® which is open to public inspection and available on the
Council’'s website. The following table sets out transactions and balances (material to either party)
between the Council and other organisations in which members have declared a controlling interest:

44


https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/councillors-duties-conduct-and-allowances

Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Organisation Relationship Income from Grants paid to Year-end debtor /
services organisation (creditor)
provided

2021/22 2020/21 31 31 31 31
March March March March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

One member is a director (207) (97) 47 11 (13) 6

Cambridge BID Ltd

Cambridge Sustainable Two members sit on 0 0 108 53 23 0

Food CIC Partnership Board
Granta Architects Ltd One member is a director 0 0 2 8 0 0
Cherry Hinton Residents’ Three members sit on the 0 0 1 0 0 0

Association Committee (including the

Committee Chair)

The Council also paid Covid-19 support grants totalling £16,000 (2020/21: £46,000) to two (2020/21:
one) non-profit organisations in which members have declared an interest. These were paid in the
Council’s capacity as a distributary agent for central government, therefore the Council had no
discretion in determining the amounts to be paid and is fully reimbursed by central government (see

r@te 27).
«Q

I addition to the amounts in the table above, the Council acts as agent for Cambridge BID Ltd in
@Iecting levy payments from local businesses. During 2021/22, the Council collected £1,038,000
@920/21: £933,000) and paid £984,000 (2020/21: £848,000) to Cambridge BID. At 31 March 2022,
the outstanding creditor balance in respect of levies due was £127,000 (31 March 2021: £99,000).

Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

The transactions and balances arising with the Council’s subsidiaries and joint ventures are as
follows:

Cambridge Cambridge City Storey’s Field
Investment Housing Company Community Trust
Partnership
2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Income
Management fees and recharged costs (281) (380) (64) (42) (145) (137)
Rent and service charges 0 0 27) (32) 0 0
Section 106 capital contributions (524) (327) 0 0 0 0
Interest receivable on loans (2,114) (929) (152) (152) 0 0

Expenditure

Capital expenditure — new
development

Grants paid
Services provided

Payment for loss of rental income
due to property voids

Balance Sheet
Loans
Short-term debtors

Short-term creditors

Cambridge Investment
Partnership

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000
9,601 20,147

0 0
80 10
0 0

Cambridge Investment
Partnership

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£°000 £°000
38,476 50,469
344 325

(958) (1,363)

Cambridge City
Housing Company

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000

0 0

0 0

0 0

23 23

Cambridge City
Housing Company

31 March 31 March
2022 2021
£°000 £°000
7,500 7,500

(4) 8

(15) 0

Storey’s Field
Community Trust

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000

0 0

0 1

3 0

0 0

Storey’s Field

Community Trust

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

£000 £000

0 0

45 77

1) 0

The Council also paid £16,000 (2020/21: £13,000) of Covid-19 support grants to Storey’s Field
Community Trust in the capacity of distributary agent for central government. The Council had no
discretion in determining the amounts to be paid and is fully reimbursed by central government (see

note 27).

The Cambridge Investment Partnership (CIP) consists of the following four limited liability
partnerships (LLPs) in which the Council holds a 50% interest and exercises joint control:

e CIP Orchard Park L2 LLP

CIP (Cromwell Road) LLP

Cambridge Investment Partnership LLP

CIP (Mill Road Development) LLP

Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd (CCHC) is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Council.

Storey’s Field Community Trust is a company limited by guarantee in which the Council exercises

joint control.

45



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

In addition, the Council has significant influence over the following entities with which there were no

transactions or balances in 2021/22 or 2020/21:

Entity

Cambridge Live

Cambridge Live Trading Ltd

Iron Works (Cambridge) Management Company Ltd
Cambridge 4 LLP

Romsey Works Cambridge Management Company Ltd
Virido Management Company Ltd

Note 27 — Grant Income

Credited to taxation and non-specific grant income

Covid-19 related grants and contributions:

U . - .
dusiness rates relief grant — retail discount and nursery relief

Mther Covid-19 related grants and contributions
|é\ther grants and contributions:

%apital grants and contributions

New Homes Bonus

Business rates relief grant — other

Other grants and contributions

Total grants and contributions credited to taxation and
non-specific grant income

Credited to services

Covid-19 related grants and contributions:

Direct support for businesses and individuals

Other Covid-19 related grants and contributions

Other grants and contributions:

Housing benefit subsidy

Other grants and contributions

Total grants and contributions credited to services

Total grants and contributions

Relationship

Full control

Full control

Joint control (75%)
Joint control (50%)
Joint control (50%)
Joint control (50%)

2021/22 2020/21
£7000 £:000 £000 £000
(10,065) (22,834)
(1,778) (8,366)
(9,530) (36,273)
(3,458) (4,913)
(961) (571)
(1,449) (494)
(27,241) (73,451)
(1,470) (6,234)
(1,554) (3,214)
(27,951) (30,016)
(4,384) (3,857)
(35,359) (43,321)
(62,600) (116,772)

Council Acting as Distributary Agent

There are several arrangements by which the Council acts as a distributary agent for government
grants. In these cases, grant amounts and eligibility criteria are set by central government, and the
Council has no discretion to alter these. The Council is reimbursed in full (or paid in advance) for the

expenditure incurred.

Income and expenditure related to such grants is not included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (or the tables above), as the Council does not have control over how the
grants are spent. The material agency arrangements in place during the year were as follows:-

Covid-19 business Council tax rebate Housing

support grants Infrastructure Fund

£'000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2020 0 0 0

Cash received from central government (42,551) 0 (8,832)

Cash distributed to grant recipients 37,163 0 8,832

Balance at 31 March 2021 (5,388) 0 0

Cash received from central government (10,776) (6,239) (11,525)

Cash distributed to grant recipients 11,115 0 11,525

Cash repaid to central government 265 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2022 (4,784) (6,239) 0

Note 28 — External Audit Costs

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000

Fees payable to EY for external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year 50 40

Additional fees payable to EY for external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for 38 43
previous years

Fees payable to EY for the certification of grant claims and returns 8 15

Total fees payable to EY 96 98

Note 29 — Capital Expenditure and Financing

The table below shows the capital expenditure incurred along with the resources used to finance it. All
capital expenditure must be financed, either at the point it is incurred, or in future years as the
underlying assets are used. The balance of historic capital expenditure yet to be financed is known as

the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).

46



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000

Capital Financing Requirement at 1 April 286,451 275,431
Capital investment;

Property, plant and equipment 51,110 39,038
Investment property 179 202

Intangible assets 214 245

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 1,108 811

Capital loans advanced 9,569 10,645

Capital financing applied:

Capital receipts (29,979) (11,040)

Capital grants and contributions (12,668) (14,963)

Major Repairs Reserve (11,205) (7,103)

Direct revenue contributions (towards in year capital investment) (8,855) (6,509)

Minimum revenue provision (towards historic unfinanced capital investment) (306) (306)
(Decrease) / increase in Capital Financing Requirement (833) 11,020
§apital Financing Requirement at 31 March 285,618 286,451

@D

= : . : :

I&mte 30 — Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including:

e Credit risk — the risk that other parties may fail to pay amounts due to the Council

e Liquidity risk — the risk that the Council might not have funds available to meet its commitments to
make payments

e Market risk — the risk that financial loss may occur as a result of changes in financial markets (e.g.
interest rate and stock market movements).

The Council’'s approach to managing these risks is set out in the Treasury Management Strategy?*
and Capital Strategy!. These are refreshed annually and approved by full Council, and are available
to view on the Council’s website. Day to day risk management is carried out by the Finance service in
accordance with these strategies.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises both from the Council’s investments, and receivables from customers.

11 https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=116&MId=3965&Ver=4

Investments

Credit risk management practices in relation to investments are set out in section 6 of the Capital
Strategy. Investments with financial institutions are assessed using an external creditworthiness
service provided by Link Asset Services. This uses credit ratings from three rating agencies, overlaid
with credit watches, credit outlooks, and Credit Default Swap spreads to give early warning of likely
changes. In making its investments, the Council prioritises security, liquidity and yield, in that order.

Investments with other local authorities are considered to have a low credit risk, due to the strong
capacity of local authorities generally to meet future cash flow commitments, and the fact that they
can only be discontinued through statutory provision.

Other significant investments (e.g. loans to subsidiaries and joint ventures) are only made where
sufficient collateral is offered, for example through a charge on the assets of the borrower.

In light of the above, there are no expected credit losses arising from investments as at 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021.: nil).

Receivables

There are written policies in place for the recovery and write-off of receivables from customers. An
expected credit loss allowance is made for receivables, grouped by age and type, based upon
previous collection experience. Movements in the credit loss allowance are follows:-

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April (3,169) (2,359)
Amounts written off 66 139
Other decrease / (increase) in credit loss allowance (57) (949)
Balance at 31 March (3,160) (3,169)

The maximum exposure to credit risk on receivables held at amortised cost is as follows:-

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Gross  Credit loss Carrying Gross  Credit loss Carrying

debtor allowance value debtor allowance value

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Current and former tenants 2,432 (1,966) 466 2,271 (1,894) 377
Other debtors 6,348 (1,194) 5,154 7,236 (1,275) 5,961
Total 8,780 (3,160) 5,620 9,507 (3,169) 6,338

47


https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4
https://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=3965&Ver=4

Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Liquidity Risk Investment type Fair value at 31 March Change in value  Impact on surplus on the
. . . . 2022 considered reasonabl rovision of services of

The Council has comprehensive cash flow management processes which ensure that cash is Y P )
possible reasonably possible

available as needed, with balances monitored and forecasts updated on a daily basis. Should change in value
unexpected events occur which require additional cash at short notice, the Council has ready access £000 % £000
to borrowing from the money markets and other local authorities. Therefore the risk that the Council
will be unable to meet its commitments to make payments is considered to be very low.

Enhanced cash funds 14,950 2 299

Pooled investment vehicles 17,401 20 3,480
The maturity profile of the Council’s borrowing is as follows:

The change in value which is deemed reasonably possible has been based upon prior experience.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 . . . .
- o The range of reasonably possible movements on pooled investment vehicles has been increased
P””C'pf" '”terets‘t Tmf" P””C'pf" '”tereft Tmf" from 5% at 31 March 2021 to 20% at 31 March 2022. This follows a significant upwards movement in
repayments payments payments repayments payments payments . . . L. . - .
£1000 £1000 £000 £000 £000 £1000 valuation experienced during 2021/22., which is deemed to increase the likelihood of similar large
movements (upwards or downwards) in future years.
Less than 1 year 0 7,494 7,494 0 7,494 7,494
Between 1 and 5 years 0 29,977 29,977 0 29,977 29977 Please note that any movements in the fair value of pooled investment vehicles are transferred
e B A A yEes 0 37.471 37.471 0 37,471 37.471 thrpugh the Movement in Reserves Statement to unusable reserves (the Pooled Investment
Adjustment Account), so as not to affect the General Fund.
Between 10 and 15 years 0 37,471 37,471 0 37,471 37,471
Between 15 and 20 years 53,393 33,766 87,159 42,714 35,250 77,964
gtween 20 and 25 years 53,393 24,426 77,819 53,393 26,302 79,695
‘%etween 25 and 30 years 53,393 15,020 68,413 53,393 16,903 70,296
Igatween 30 and 35 years 53,393 5,618 59,011 53,393 7,494 60,887
@tween 35 and 40 years 0 0 0 10,679 374 11,053
Total 213,572 191,243 404,815 213,572 198,736 412,308

Borrowing consists of fixed-rate maturity loans from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), and was
taken out to meet the cost of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) self-financing settlement in March
2012. The HRA Business Plan anticipates the repayment of these loans on maturity.

Market Risk

Since most of the Council’s investments are at fixed interest rates, the Council is not exposed to
significant risks arising from changes in interest rates.

Instead, the principal market risk to which the Council is exposed is the risk of price changes on
investments held at fair value. This is mitigated to some extent by the fact that it is the Council’s
intention to hold such investments over the long term.

The following investment balances are subject to price risk:

48



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the economic cost in the year of providing Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be
funded from rents. The Council charges rents to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory

requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The total increase or decrease on the

HRA for the year, on the basis upon which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the Housing

Revenue Account Statement.

Expenditure:
Repairs and maintenance
Supervision and management

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges

Depreciation, impairment and revaluation losses on non-current

assets (net of reversals)
Movement in the allowance for bad debts
TRA share of corporate and democratic core costs
%otal expenditure
Hacome:
o
Bivelling rents
Non-dwelling rents
Charges for services and facilities
Contributions towards expenditure
Reimbursement of costs
Total income

Net income from HRA services as included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

HRA share of other income and expenditure included in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:
(Gain) / loss on sale of HRA non-current assets

Interest payable and similar charges

HRA interest and investment income

Capital grants and contributions

Surplus for the year on HRA services

2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000
10,336 8,801
7,615 7,571
278 138
2,398 19,103
132 523
437 314

21,196 36,450
(38,767) (38,030)
(846) (816)
(3,441) (3,454)
(528) (565)
(14) (39)

(43,596) (42,904)

~ (22,400) - (6454)

(4,399) 563

7,494 7,494

(742) (1,234)

(1,266) (29,209)

 (21,313)  (28,840)

Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement

Surplus for the year on HRA services

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis
under statutory provisions:

Depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses on
property, plant and equipment

Movements in the fair value of investment properties

Capital grants and contributions

Costs of disposal funded from capital receipts

Gain / (loss) on sale of HRA non-current assets

Capital expenditure funded by the HRA

HRA share of contributions to / (from) the Pensions Reserve
Transfers from the General Fund under statutory provisions
Movements in the accumulated absences accrual

Total adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under statutory provisions

Net increase in HRA before transfers to / (from) earmarked
reserves

Transfers to / (from) earmarked reserves
Increase in year in the HRA
Balance at 1 April

Balance at 31 March

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000
(21,313) (28,840)
6,701 (8,154)
35 185
1,266 29,209
(165) (120)
4,399 (563)
8,487 4,794
(657) 117
(7 (40)
0 48
20,059 25,476
(1,254) (3,364)
84 10
- (1170) © (3354)
(18,420) (15,066)
(19590) ~ (18,420)

49



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Council Financial Statements

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account Statements 3 Capital Expenditure and Financing

] The following table sets out total capital expenditure on HRA assets, together with sources of capital
1 Dwelling Stock

financing:
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 2021/22 2020/21
No. No. £'000 £'000
Sheltered housing units 514 513 Capital expenditure:
Shared ownership properties (whole property equivalent) 45 47 Property, plant and equipment 40 692 33.976
Other houses and bungalows 3,530 3,536 Investment property a4 10
Other flats and maisonettes 3,111 3,054 Intangible assets 119 184
Total dwelling stock (whole property equivalent) 7,200 7,150 Total capital expenditure 20855 34170
Financed by:
o Capital grants and contributions (20,709) (14,299)
The value of non-current assets held by the HRA, and depreciation charged for the year, are as _ _
Major Repairs Reserve (11,205) (7,103)
follows:-
Direct revenue contributions (8,487) (4,794)
T Net Book Value Depreciation charged for the year Total capital financing applied (40,855) (34,170)
g 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 2021/22 2020/21
(¢ £000 £000 £000 £000
@operty, plant and equipment: 4 Capital Receipts
(00) . .
Council dwellings 726,429 RS 8,694 LR The following amounts have been received from the disposal of HRA non-current assets:
Other land and buildings 10,258 10,312 152 169
Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 107 109 19 31 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000
Infrastructure assets 4,586 4,094 116 100
) Capital receipts from the disposal of:
Assets under construction 50,804 45,494 0 0
) Council dwellings 7,486 5,027
Total property, plant and equipment 792,184 699,813 8,981 10,893
Other land 42 0
Investment property 6,599 5,919 0 0
; Total capital receipts 7,528 5,027
Intangible assets 354 353 118 56
Payments to the central government housing capital receipts pool (1,134) (1,359)
Total non-current assets 799,137 706,085 9,099 10,949
Total capital receipts retained by Council 6,394 3,668

The value of council dwellings at 1 April 2021, based upon vacant possession, was £1,684 million (1
April 2020: £1,601 million). This is the estimate of the total sum that would be received if all dwellings
were sold with vacant possession on the open market. However, the Balance Sheet value above is
calculated on the basis of existing use value — social housing (EUV-SH), which takes into account the
fact that the dwellings are subject to ongoing tenancies at less than market rent. The difference 5 Rent Arrears
between the two valuations shows the economic cost of providing housing at less than market rents.

The capital receipts retained by the Council have been transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve to
finance future capital expenditure, in line with statutory requirements.

Rent arrears at 31 March 2022 were £2,432,000 (31 March 2021: £2,271,000). At 31 March 2022, a
net provision for bad debt of £1,966,000 was held on the Balance Sheet (31 March 2021
£1,894,000).

50



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Collection Fund Statement

Income

Council tax and business rates receivable from taxpayers

Transfers from General Fund in respect of locally funded discounts
Contributions towards previous year’s collection fund deficit:
Cambridge City Council

Cambridgeshire County Council

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime Commissioner
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority

Central government

Expenditure

Council tax precepts and shares of business rates income
distributed:

gambridge City Council
%ambridgeshire County Council
Bambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime Commissioner
<@ambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority
Central government
Distribution of previous year’s collection fund surplus:
Cambridge City Council
Cambridgeshire County Council
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime Commissioner
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority
Central government
Other expenditure:
Transitional protection payment payable to central government
Impairment of debts
Movement in business rates appeals provision
Allowable collection costs payable to General Fund
Total movement on fund balance
Collection Fund deficit / (surplus) at 1 April

Collection Fund deficit at 31 March

Note Council tax Business rates
2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £000 £000
(85,173) (82,265) (88,063) (62,119)
(83) (912) 0 0
(178) 0 (25,157) 0
(1,195) 0 (5,660) 0
(204) 0 0 0
(63) 0 (629) 0

0 0 (31,446) 0
9,033 9,001 43,111 47,112
60,933 60,417 9,700 10,600
10,778 10,342 0 0
3,201 3,204 1,078 1,178
0 0 53,889 58,890

0 30 0 4,480

0 197 0 1,008

0 33 0 0

0 11 0 112

0 0 0 5,600

0 0 322 610

451 3,324 862 470

0 0 (491) (352)

0 0 239 237
(2,500) 3,382 (42,245) 67,826
3,633 251 59,032 (8,794)
1,133 3,633 16,787 59,032

As a billing authority, the Council has a statutory obligation to maintain a separate collection fund in
respect of council tax and business rates. This statement shows the amounts collected from tax and
rate payers, together with the amounts distributed to local preceptors (including the Council’s own
share) and central government.

51



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Council Financial Statements

Notes to the Collection Fund Statement

1 Collection Fund Balances

The deficit on the Collection Fund as at 31 March 2022 will be recovered in future years from local
preceptors (including the Council) and central government in line with statutory requirements. Each
entity’s share of the balance is as follows:-

Entity Council tax deficit Business rates deficit

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cambridge City Council 124 395 6,715 23,612

Cambridgeshire County Council 827 2,644 1,511 5,313

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime Commissioner 137 453 0 0

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority 45 141 167 591

Central government 0 0 8,394 29,516

Total deficit 1,133 3,633 16,787 59,032
o
jab)
«Q

3D Council Tax Base

H

Ech domestic property within the Council’s area is assigned to one of eight valuation bands for
council tax purposes, based on its estimated value as at 1 April 1991. Council tax is set for band D
properties (separately by the Council and each local preceptor), and the tax for other bands is
calculated as a proportion of the band D amount.

The council tax for the year due on band D properties can be broken down as follows:-

Entity Council tax per band D property
2021/22 2020/21

£ £

Cambridge City Council 207.50 202.50
Cambridgeshire County Council 1,399.77 1,359.18
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime Commissioner 247.59 232.65
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority 73.53 72.09
Total council tax due per band D property 1,928.39 1,866.42

In setting council tax, the Council and preceptors must first calculate their council tax requirement for
the year (the amount which must be raised to cover budgeted expenditure net of other sources of
finance such as government grants). This is then divided by the council tax base, which is the number

of domestic properties in the Council’s area, expressed as the number of ‘band D equivalent’
dwellings.

The council tax base is forecast each January for the following financial year. The council tax base for
2021/22 was calculated as follows:-

2021/22 2020/21
Valuation Total Equivalent Ratio Band D Total Equivalent Ratio Band D
band dwellings dwellings to equivalent dwellings dwellings to equivalent
after band dwellings after band dwellings
discounts, D discounts, D
reliefs and reliefs and
exemptions exemptions

No. No. No. No. No. No.
A 4,263 3,223 6/9 2,149 4,246 2,781 6/9 1,854
B 10,674 8,803 7/9 6,847 10,567 8,662 7/9 6,737
C 20,050 17,655 8/9 15,693 19,940 17,476 8/9 15,534
D 10,197 8,900 1 8,900 10,094 8,661 1 8,661
E 5,858 5,090 11/9 6,221 5,812 5,035 11/9 6,154
F 3,766 3,339 13/9 4,823 3,734 3,285 13/9 4,745
G 3,235 2,740 15/9 4,567 3,228 2,715 15/9 4,525
H 493 306 18/9 612 490 307 18/9 614
Total 58,536 50,056 49,812 58,111 48,922 48,824
Adjustments (6,281) (4,373)
to tax base
Forecast 43,531 44,451
tax base for
2021/22

The adjustments to tax base in the table above are to take account of forecast growth in property
numbers, changes in exemption status, local council tax support scheme claims and an allowance for
non-collection.

3 Business Rates Multiplier and Rateable Value

The total rateable value of non-domestic properties within the Council area at 31 March 2022 was
£305,237,704 (31 March 2021: £309,654,357). The standard business rates multiplier for 2021/22 as
set by central government was 51.2p (2020/21: 51.2p).

52



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Group Financial Statements

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (GCIES)

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation or rents. The Council
raises taxation and rents to cover expenditure in accordance with statutory requirements; this may be different from the accounting cost. The amounts chargeable to taxation and rents for the year are set out in
the Group Movement in Reserves Statement.

Last year’s figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure. There is no change to the total cost of services figure previously reported.

Note 2021/22 2020/21 (Restated)
Gross expenditure Gross income Net expenditure Gross expenditure Gross income Net expenditure
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Strategy and External Partnerships 3,461 (360) 3,101 3,168 (214) 2,954
Finance and Resources 36,595 (31,083) 5,512 40,844 (37,668) 3,176
General Fund Housing 8,522 (3,228) 5,294 9,102 (4,430) 4,672
Climate Change, Environment and City Centre 10,202 (3,108) 7,094 11,981 (3,208) 8,773
Communities 14,685 (5,981) 8,704 12,614 (3,979) 8,635
Open Spaces, Sustainable Food and Community Wellbeing 7,418 (1,026) 6,392 7,215 (1,120) 6,095
Planning Policy and Transport 13,172 (11,367) 1,805 13,487 (5,528) 7,959
“dpusing Revenue Account 21,196 (43,577) (22,381) 36,450 (42,868) (6,418)
(%ther group housing services 120 (337) (217) 129 (325) (196)
g);pst of services 115,371 (100,067) 15,304 134,990 (99,340) 35,650
||.a\ther operating income and expenditure 1,134 (6,208) (5,074) 1,712 0 1,712
Financing and investment income and expenditure 13,111 (17,028) (3,917) 13,156 (13,245) (89)
Taxation and non-specific grant income 0 (31,995) (31,995) 0 (66,371) (66,371)
(Surplus) / deficit on the provision of services 129,616 (155,298) (25,682) 149,858 (178,956) (29,098)
Share of the (surplus) / deficit on the provision of services 3 (5,406) (759)
by joint ventures
Group (surplus) / deficit (31,088) (29,857)
(Surplus) / deficit on revaluation of non-current assets (63,774) (34,810)
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (47,627) 36,106
Other comprehensive (income) / expenditure (111,401) 1,296
Total comprehensive (income) / expenditure (142,489) (28,561)

Prior year cost of services figures have been reclassified to reflect changes in the Council’s internal reporting structure — there is no change to the total net cost of services figure reported previously.

53



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Group Financial Statements

Group Movement in Reserves Statement (GMIRS)

This statement shows the movement on the different reserves held by the Group, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and ‘unusable
reserves’. The Group Movement in Reserves Statement shows how the movements in the Group’s reserves are broken down between comprehensive income and expenditure incurred in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices (as shown in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) and the statutory adjustments required to return to the amounts chargeable to council tax or
rents for the year. The increase / decrease line shows the reserve movements for the year following those adjustments.

General Collection Other Housing Earmarked Capital Major Capital Total usable Unusable Total Council Total Group
Fund Fund deficit earmarked Revenue HRA Receipts Repairs Grants reserves reserves Council share of reserves
earmarked General Account reserves Reserve Reserve Unapplied reserves subsidiary
reserve Fund (HRA) Reserve and joint
reserves venture
reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2020 (17,263) 0 (18,680) (15,066) (17,257) (46,657) (9,801) (23,362) (148,086) (650,587) (798,673) (534) (799,207)

Movement in reserves during 2020/21:

Total comprehensive income and (98) 0 0 (28,804) 0 0 0 0 (28,902) 1,340 (27,562) (999) (28,561)
expenditure

Adjustments between Group accounts and (157) 0 0 (36) 0 0 0 0 (293) 0 (193) 193 0
Council accounts
yet (increase) / decrease before (255) 0 0 (28,840) 0 0 0 0 (29,095) 1,340 (27,755) (806) (28,561)
C%ansfers
KAdjustments between accounting basis and (31,639) 0 0 25,476 0 6,444 (3,846) (21,310) (24,875) 24,875 0 0 0
:@nding basis under statutory provisions
Transfers to / from earmarked reserves 32,563 (31,809) (754) 10 (10) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Increase) / decrease in year 669 (31,809) (754) 10 (10) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Balance at 31 March 2021 (16,594) (31,809) (19,434) (18,420) (17,267) (40,213) (13,647) (44,672) (202,056) (624,372) (826,428) (1,340) (827,768)

Movement in reserves during 2021/22:

Total comprehensive income and (4,171) 0 0 (21,294) 0 0 0 0 (25,465) (111,174) (136,639) (5,850) (142,489)
expenditure

Adjustments between Group accounts and (174) 0 0 (29) 0 0 0 0 (193) 0 (193) 193 0
Council accounts

Net (increase) / decrease before (4,345) 0 0 (21,313) 0 0 0 0 (25,658) (111,174) (136,832) (5,657) (142,489)
transfers

Adjustments between accounting basis and 16,883 0 0 20,059 0 (2,926) 2,106 3,138 39,260 (39,260) 0 0 0
funding basis under statutory provisions

Transfers to / from earmarked reserves (21,477) 25,432 (3,955) 84 (84) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Increase) / decrease in year (8,939) 25,432 (3,955) (1,270) (84) (2,926) 2,106 3,138 13,602 (150,434) (136,832) (5,657) (142,489)
Balance at 31 March 2022 (25,533) (6,377) (23,389) (19,590) (17,351) (43,139) (11,541) (41,534) (188,454) (774,806) (963,260) (6,997) (970,257)

54



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Group Financial Statements

Group Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment
Heritage assets
Investment property
Intangible assets
Loans to joint ventures
Investments in joint ventures
Other long-term investments
Long-term debtors
Long-term assets
Investment property held for sale
Short-term investments
Short-term debtors
“gventories
(%ash and cash equivalents
clgurrent assets
I(?;hort-term borrowing
Short-term creditors
Provisions
Current liabilities
Long-term borrowing

Long-term receipts in advance

Net defined benefit pension liability

Other long-term liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Net assets

Usable reserves
Unusable reserves

Total reserves

Note

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 (Restated)
£000 £000 £000 £000
961,080 857,989
669 669
160,682 158,594
812 844
38,476 50,469
6,165 759
22,451 17,053
1,119 6,489
1,191,454 1,092,866
620 3,525
116,235 83,161
15,363 52,820
194 198
30,514 14,565
162,926 154,269
(82) (82)
(63,882) (59,164)
(4,051) (4,209)
(68,015) (63,455)
(213,572) (213,572)
(105) (80)
(102,337) (142,209)
(94) (51)
(316,108) (355,912)
970,257 827,768
(194,508) (202,669)
(775,749) (625,099)
(970,257) (827,768)

The Group Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Group. The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by the
reserves held by the Group. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves
are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that may be used to provide services, subject to the need to
maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the capital
receipts reserve may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second category of
reserves are those that the Group is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves
includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation reserve), where
amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold. It also includes
reserves which reflect timing differences between the recognition of income and expenditure under
generally accepted accounting practices, and the point at which it must be credited or charged to
usable reserves under statutory provisions.

Prior year short-term debtors and creditors have been adjusted to reflect the nature of the
arrangements with central government in relation to non-domestic rates. These arrangements require
discrete balances due to/from government to be settled separately rather than being set against one
another to form a single payment or receipt. In the previous year’s Statement of Accounts, the
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021 presented amounts due to government in relation to non-
domestic rates as a net balance. This has been corrected in the restated column in line with the
treatment applied to correctly recognise the equivalent balances as at 31 March 2022. There is no
change to the total net assets previously reported.

955



Cambridge City Council 2021/22 Group Financial Statements

Group Cash Flow Statement (GCFS)

The Group Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Group during the year. The statement shows how the Group generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Group are funded by way
of taxation, grant income and from the recipients of services provided by the Group. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources that are intended to contribute
to the Group’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities reflect movements in the cash collected by the Council on behalf of others in respect of council tax and business rates.

2021/22 2020/21
£000 £000 £'000 £'000
Net surplus on the provision of services 25,682 29,098
Adjust net surplus on the provision of services for non-cash movements 22,871 60,709
Adjust for items included in the net surplus on the provision of services that are investing and financing activities (22,290) (42,003)
Net cash flows from operating activities 26,263 47,804
Investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets (50,429) (39,825)
Purchase of short-term and long-term investments (197,640) (67,700)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, assets held for sale, investment property and intangible assets 15,465 6,099
-IE-joceeds from short-term and long-term investments 174,747 55,587
gapital grants received 19,321 43,482
:gther receipts and payments from investing activities 25 24
|Eet cash flows from investing activities (38,511) (2,333)
Financing activities 28,197 (42,692)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,949 2,779
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year:
Overnight money market funds 13,500 11,000
Bank accounts 1,048 770
Cash held by the Council 17 16
Total cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14,565 11,786
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Overnight money market funds 29,500 13,500
Bank accounts 998 1,048
Cash held by the Council 16 17
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30,514 14,565

56



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Group Financial Statements

Note 1 — Accounting Policies

The accounting policies applied to the Group Financial Statements are the same as those set out at
note 2 to the Council Financial Statements, with the following additions:

Basis of Consolidation
Control and Joint Control

The Council is deemed to have control over another entity when both of the following conditions are
met:

e The Council is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with the entity (for example a
share of the entity’s profits).

e The Council can use its power over the entity to affect these returns.

Joint control exists where decisions affecting the entity’s returns can only be made by the unanimous
consent of more than one investor.

Subsidiaries
%bsidiaries are separate entities which are controlled by the Council.
(@)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are consolidated on a line by line basis. This means that
tﬁnsactions and balances are included in the relevant lines in the Group Financial Statements.
ADjustments are made to remove transactions and balances between the Council and its subsidiary,
such that the Group Financial Statements present the financial performance and position of the Group
as a whole, from an external perspective.

Joint Ventures

A joint venture is a separate entity which is jointly controlled by the Council and at least one other
investor.

The financial statements of joint ventures are consolidated using the equity method. The Council’s
investment in the joint venture is initially recognised on the Balance Sheet at cost, and subsequently
adjusted to match the Council’s share of the entity’s net assets. The change in the Council’s share of
net assets (effectively the Council’s share of the entity’s profit or loss) is recognised within other
comprehensive income in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (GCIES).

Alignment of Accounting Policies

The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures are adjusted where applicable to align their accounting
policies with those of the Council:

e Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd holds a portfolio of dwellings for rent. Within the company
accounts these are accounted for as investment properties under International Accounting

Standard (IAS) 40. However, adjustments are made within the Group Financial Statements to
account for these dwellings as property, plant and equipment (other land and buildings) using the
Council’'s accounting policies (see note 2 to the Council Financial Statements — accounting policy
12). The difference in treatment reflects the fact that the Group’s primary reason for holding the
properties is service related (i.e. the provision of affordable housing), rather than solely to
generate rental income.

Note 2 — Group Composition

Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd

Cambridge City Housing Company Ltd (CCHC) is a private limited company. It's main activity is to
provide and manage housing for those in housing need in Cambridge and neighbouring districts,
whilst also generating a financial return for the Council.

The Council owns 100% of the company’s share capital and has the right to appoint all of the
company’s directors (all of whom are Council officers). As such, the Council is deemed to have full
control over CCHC and it is accounted for as a subsidiary.

Cambridge Investment Partnership

The Cambridge Investment Partnership (CIP) consists of the four separate limited liability
partnerships (LLPs), as follows:

e Cambridge Investment Partnership LLP
e CIP (Mill Road Development) LLP

e CIP (Cromwell Road) LLP

e CIP Orchard Park L2 LLP

The main activity of the partnership is the redevelopment of sites within Cambridge for the provision of
housing, including affordable housing. The partnership is strategically important to the Council as the
vehicle through which a significant proportion of its new build programme for council dwellings is to be
delivered.

Each of the four LLPs is owned jointly by the Council and a private sector property developer, with
each having a 50% interest and equal voting rights. As such, the Council is deemed to have joint
control over each of the LLPs, and they are accounted for as separate joint ventures.

57



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Group Financial Statements

Note 3 — Joint Ventures

The financial performance and position of the Council’s joint ventures can be summarised as follows:-

Income

Expenditure

(Profit) / loss from continuing operations and total comprehensive income
Council share (50%)

Adjustments in respect of unrealised losses

Movements in provision for unrealised profit

Share of the (surplus) / deficit on the provision of services by joint ventures
recognised in the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

9TT abed

Current assets

Current liabilities (including members’ loans)

Members’ capital (classified as a liability)

Council share (50%)

Adjustments in respect of unrealised losses

Provision for unrealised profit

Investments in joint ventures recognised in the Group Balance Sheet
Included in current assets above:

Cash and cash equivalents

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables)

Cambridge Investment CIP (Mill Road Development) CIP (Cromwell Road) LLP CIP Orchard Park L2 LLP Total

Partnership LLP LLP

2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

(44,660) (50,826) (32,918) (16,852) (32,907) 0 0 0 (110,485) (67,678)

44,294 50,123 26,440 13,520 29,494 6 3 5 100,231 63,654

(366) (703) (6,478) (3,332) (3,413) 6 3 5 (10,254) (4,024)

(183) (351) (3,239) (1,666) (1,707) 3 2 2 (5,127) (2,012)

0 301 0 1,137 3 (3) 2) 2 1 1,433

0 0 (280) (180) 0 0 0 0 (280) (180)

(183) (50) (3,519) (709) (1,704) 0 0 0 (5,406) (759)

Cambridge Investment CIP (Mill Road Development) CIP (Cromwell Road) LLP CIP Orchard Park L2 LLP Total

Partnership LLP LLP

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

12,618 21,526 13,784 10,653 39,951 45,819 3,607 2,255 69,960 80,253

(12,152) (21,426) (4,885) (8,232) (36,544) (45,825) (3,615) (2,260) (57,196) (77,743)

466 100 8,899 2,421 3,407 (6) (8) (5) 12,764 2,510

233 50 4,449 1,210 1,704 (3) (4) 2 6,382 1,255

0 0 0 0 0 3 4 2 4 5

0 0 (221) (501) 0 0 0 0 (221) (501)

233 50 4,228 709 1,704 0 0 0 6,165 759

396 81 3,546 82 297 31 1,703 115 5,942 309

9,633 18,485 0 5,240 27,797 27,473 3,051 2,258 40,481 53,456

58



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Group Financial Statements

Note 4 — Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements on Balances

Balance at 1 April 2020:
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the surplus / deficit on the provision of services
Assets reclassified (to) / from investment properties
Assets reclassified (to) / from intangible assets
gssets reclassified (to) / from other categories of property, plant and equipment
%epreciation charge
Ealance at 31 March 2021:
Elross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the revaluation reserve
Revaluation increases / (decreases) recognised in the surplus / deficit on the provision of services
Assets reclassified (to) / from investment properties
Assets reclassified (to) / from other categories of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation charge
Balance at 31 March 2022:
Gross carrying amount
Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Net book value

Council Other land and Vehicles, plant, Infrastructure Community  Surplus assets Assets under Total property,
dwellings buildings furniture and assets assets construction plant and
equipment equipment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
608,549 163,731 26,662 7,184 1,339 0 36,296 843,761
0 (10,521) (15,887) (1,102) 0 0 0 (27,510)
608,549 153,210 10,775 6,082 1,339 0 36,296 816,251
11,265 331 950 733 12 0 25,747 39,038
(5,532) 0 (155) (30) 0 0 0 (5,717)
29,576 5,224 0 0 0 10 0 34,810
(8,228) 124 0 0 0 0 0 (8,104)
0 0 0 0 0 0 (24) (24)

0 0 0 0 0 0 (182) (182)
14,767 0 0 0 0 0 (14,767) 0
(10,593) (5,122) (2,170) (198) 0 0 0 (18,083)
639,804 154,854 22,131 7,880 1,351 10 47,070 873,100
0 (1,087) (12,731) (1,293) 0 0 0 (15,111)
639,804 153,767 9,400 6,587 1,351 10 47,070 857,989
16,053 715 420 608 0 0 33,314 51,110
(3,131) (420) (68) 0 (20) (8) 0 (3,647)
58,627 5,221 0 0 0 (192) 0 63,656
6,318 895 (21) 0 0 (7) 0 7,185

0 300 0 0 0 0 (548) (248)
17,451 (2,682) 598 0 0 276 (15,643) 0
(8,693) (3,869) (2,190) (213) 0 0 0 (14,965)
726,429 155,229 21,595 8,488 1,331 79 64,193 977,344
0 (1,302) (13,456) (1,506) 0 0 0 (16,264)
726,429 153,927 8,139 6,982 1,331 79 64,193 961,080

59



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Group Financial Statements

Valuation

Details of the valuation approach adopted for the Council’s property, plant and equipment are set out
at note 15 to the Council Financial Statements.

CCHC dwellings are revalued at 31 March each year, using a beacon approach. The stock is divided
into a number of ‘archetypes’ containing dwellings with similar characteristics (e.g. location, property
type, number of bedrooms). Within each archetype, one representative ‘beacon’ property is selected
for revaluation, with the resulting valuation applied to all similar dwellings.

Valuations are carried out in accordance with ‘Stock Valuation for Resource Accounting — Guidance
for Valuers’ published by DLUHC, and the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards (‘Red Book’)
except where varied to reflect DLUHC requirements.

The following table shows the current carrying value of property, plant and equipment (excluding
those classes of asset held at historic cost) by date of most recent valuation:

Council dwellings Other land and Surplus assets Total
buildings

£000 £000 £000 £000

Aéalued at current value as at:
gl March 2022 726,429 141,580 79 868,088
3\1 March 2021 0 6,314 0 6,314
@. March 2020 0 2,251 0 2,251
31 March 2019 0 2,620 0 2,620
31 March 2018 0 1,162 0 1,162
Total 726,429 153,927 79 880,435

Note 5 — Commitments with Joint Ventures

Capital Commitments

The Council has contracted with the Cambridge Investment Partnership for the construction of new
build council dwellings. The amounts contractually committed but not yet recognised at the year-end
were as follows:-

Entity 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

£000 £'000
Cambridge Investment Partnership LLP 0 25
CIP (Mill Road Development) LLP 1,295 1,780
CIP (Cromwell Road) LLP 6,108 12,798
CIP Orchard Park L2 LLP 4,121 0
Total 11,524 14,603

Loan Commitments

The Council has entered into agreements with the Cambridge Investment Partnership to provide loan
financing through the use of a revolving credit facility. Loans are secured on the property of the
partnership (work in progress and unsold dwellings, excluding affordable housing), with a maximum
loan to value ratio of 60% at any given time.

The balances on the facilities at year-end were as follows:-

Entity 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Maximum Amount Unutilised Maximum Amount Unutilised
facility utilised commitment facility utilised commitment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cambridge Investment 28,000 (8,992) 19,008 28,000 (16,627) 11,373
Partnership LLP
CIP Orchard Park L2 8,000 (558) 7,442 0 0 0
LLP
Total 36,000 (9,550) 26,450 28,000 (16,627) 11,373

60



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

Glossary

Glossary of Terms

Accrual
Amortisation

Amortised cost

Business rates
retention

Capital
expenditure

Capital
financing

“Chpital grants
& pial g
‘%apital loans

=
=
O

Capital
receipts

Cash
equivalents

Code

Creditors
Current assets
Current
liabilities
Current
service cost

Debtors

Defined
benefit

An item of income or expenditure which is included in the Statement of Accounts because it relates to
goods or services provided or received during the year, even though payment has not yet been
received or paid (and no formal invoices raised).

An expense recognised to reflect the consumption of intangible assets, similar to depreciation on
property, plant and equipment. It is generally charged on a straight line basis over the useful life of the
relevant asset.

A method for determining the value of financial assets of liabilities based upon the principal invested
or borrowed, adjusted for any interest accrued and expected credit losses (e.g. bad debt).

The arrangements, set out by central government, which determine the proportion of the business
rates collected which can be retained by the City Council, and the proportion which is paid to local
preceptors and central government (for redistribution to other local authorities).

Expenditure on new long-term assets such as property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and

investment property. Also includes expenditure which enhances existing assets, for example through
significantly prolonging their useful life or increasing their value. Under statutory requirements, loans
to third parties to finance their own capital expenditure are also treated as capital expenditure of the

Council.

The use of the Council’s resources (revenue or capital) to fund capital expenditure in the current year,
or to repay borrowing associated with capital expenditure in previous years.

Grants received by the Council which can only be used for capital financing.

Loans made by the Council to a third party to finance their capital expenditure, for example loans
made to the Cambridge Investment Partnership to fund property development. Under statutory
provisions, the making of these loans is treated as capital expenditure by the Council, whilst
repayments are treated as capital receipts.

Cash received from the sale of long-term assets such as council houses, land or other buildings. This
may only be used to finance future capital expenditure.

Highly liquid investments that mature in three months or less from the date of acquisition, and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, which sets out the rules
which the Council must follow in preparing and presenting their Statement of Accounts.

Amounts owed by the Council.
Assets which are expected to be used or realised within 12 months of the Balance Sheet date.

Liabilities which are due to be settled (or could be called in) within 12 months of the Balance Sheet
date.

The increase in the Council’s net pension liability as a result of future pension entitlement earned by
employees as a result of their service during the year.

Amounts owed to the Council.

A type of pension scheme whereby the benefits paid on retirement (lump sums and pensions) are
based upon length of service with the Council and salary earned.

Depreciated
replacement
cost (DRC)

Depreciation

Discount rate

Effective
interest rate
(EIR)

Enhanced
cash funds

Fair value

Finance lease

Financial asset

Financial
instrument

Financial
liability

Going concern

Group

Impairment

Intangible
assets

Joint venture

Minimum
revenue
provision
(MRP)

An approach to valuing property assets based upon the estimated cost of rebuilding an equivalent
asset from scratch (using modern methods and specifications), depreciated to reflect the actual
condition of the existing asset (i.e. the proportion of its total useful life remaining).

An expense recognised to reflect the consumption of property, plant and equipment. It is generally
charged on a straight line basis over the useful life of the relevant asset.

The rate used to discount future cash flows (for example future pension payments) to their value at
today’s prices.

The rate which exactly discounts the future cash flows arising from a financial instrument to the
amount at which it was originally recognised — essentially representing the average interest rate over
the life of the instrument.

A managed investment fund, similar to a money market fund, but generally offering slightly higher
potential returns in exchange for slightly higher levels of risk in terms of the security and liquidity of its
investments.

The price at which an asset could be sold, or liability settled, in an orderly transaction between market
participants (i.e. knowledgeable, willing parties operating at arm’s length).

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the lessee.
The lease period tends to cover most or all of the useful life of the asset, and the value of lease
payments made over the duration of the lease tends to approximately equal the value of the asset at
the start of the lease.

An asset which represents cash, or the right to receive cash (or cash equivalents) in the future, for
example fixed term deposits, investments in pooled investment vehicles, loans and trade debtors.

A contract which gives rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability in another.

A liability which will require the Council to pay out cash (or cash equivalents) in the future, for example
borrowings and trade creditors.

A basis of accounting which assumes that the Council will continue in existence for the foreseeable
future.

Includes the Council and all other entities which it controls (subsidiaries). The Group Financial
Statements also incorporate the Council’s share of the profits of its joint ventures.

A reduction to the value of a non-financial asset as a result of its recoverable amount falling below its
carrying value on the Balance Sheet, for example because it has been damaged or become obsolete.
Impairments can also apply to financial assets, for example when there is an expectation that
amounts due to the Council in the future will not be paid (credit losses).

Assets without physical substance, which are expected to benefit the Council over the course of more
than one year, for example software licences.

A separate entity which is deemed to be jointly controlled by the Council and at least one other
investor, where strategic decision making is by unanimous consent. The Council’s share of any profits
is included in the Group Financial Statements.

A charge to the General Fund which must be made each year for the repayment of borrowing (internal
and external) undertaken to fund historic capital expenditure. Effectively this is to ensure that the
Council has sufficient capital resources available to renew or replace assets at the end of their lives.
The charge must be set in accordance with statutory guidance, which ensures that it is prudent.

61



Cambridge City Council 2021/22

A managed investment fund consisting of highly liquid, short-term investments such as cash, cash
equivalents, and short-term debt-based securities with high credit ratings. They are designed to offer
high liquidity and very low risk to investors.

Assets which are expected to benefit the Council over the course of more than one year, for example
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property.

A lease which does not in substance transfer ownership of an asset to the lessor (i.e. the opposite of a
finance lease). In practice these tend to be short in nature (as compared to the total useful life of the
asset). Since land is deemed to have an infinite useful life, all leases of land are classified as
operating leases.

Actual income or expenditure amounts as opposed to budgeted amounts.

A change in the Council’s net pension liability as a result of changes to the pension scheme which
affect the pension entitlement earned by employees in previous years.

A managed investment fund which takes investment from a large number of investors and pools this
together in order to maximise returns and diversify risk. Investors can buy and sell units in these
funds, which generate returns through the payment of dividends, increase in the underlying value of
units, or both. Under statutory provisions, any change in value of pooled investment fund units is not
recognised in the General Fund until it is realised (i.e. the units are sold).

Another local authority who is not a billing authority, and on whose behalf the Council collects council
tax (i.e. Cambridgeshire County Council, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Police and Crime
Commissioner, and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire Authority)

A liability which represents a future obligation as a result of a past event, but where the timing or
amount of the obligation is uncertain. An example is the settlement of business rates appeals, whose
outcome is unknown and outside of the control of the Council.

Grants which can only be spent on particular purposes (for example a specific service), under the
terms of the grant agreement.

Expenditure which is not capital, i.e. spending on the day to day running of the Council such as staff
costs and general supplies and services.

Expenditure which is revenue in nature, but which statute permits to be funded from resources usually
earmarked for capital use. This includes capital grants to third parties (such as Disabled Facilities
Grants to residents).

Contributions from developers agreed as part of planning conditions, for example to provide
infrastructure improvements to support new housing development.

A loan made at a below-market interest rate (which could be nil), generally made in pursuit of service
interests (for example the provision of interest-free home improvement loans to eligible residents).

A separate entity which is deemed to be controlled by the Council, and whose results are therefore
included in the Group Financial Statements.

Abbreviations

Cash Flow Statement

Community interest company

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Cambridge Investment Partnership

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
Consumer price inflation

Housing Revenue Account

International Accounting Standard

International Financial Reporting Standards

Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
Local Government Pension Scheme

Limited liability partnership

Movement in Reserves Statement

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

Per square foot

Glossary

62



Cambridge City Council
Audit Results Report

Year ended 31 March 2022

21 October 2022




21 October 2022

Civic Affairs Committee
Cambridge City Council
The Guildhall

Peas Hill

Cambridge

CB2 3QJ

Dear Civic Affairs Committee Members

2021/22 Audit Results Report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Results Report, summarising the status of our audit for the forthcoming meeting of the Civic Affairs
Committee.

The audit is designed to express an opinion on the 2021/22 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements.
This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, our views on Cambridge City's accounting policies and judgements and
material internal control findings. Each year sees further enhancements to the level of audit challenge and the quality of evidence required to
achieve the robust professional scepticism that society expects. We thank the management team for supporting this process to date, although
there are significant areas that need to be resolved prior to issuing the audit opinion. We have also included an update on our work on Value for
Money arrangements.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Civic Affairs Committee, other members of the Council and Management. It is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Civic Affairs Committee meetingon 3 November 2022.

Yours faithfully
Muew HonGSon/

Mark Hodgson

Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Encl

oy [




Contents

Executive Areas of . Audit
() ()3AdtReort ()
Summary Audit Focus ud P Differences

bl
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
-

05 Value for O Other 07 Independence O8Appendices

Money Reporting
Issues

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies". It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/ ).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)" issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This report is made solely to the Civic Affairs Committee and management of Cambridge City Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Civic Affairs Committee, and management of Cambridge City Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Civic Affairs Committee and management of Cambridge City Council for this report or for the opinions we have formed. It should not
be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.



https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/

v2T abed

OhBP Executive Summary



52 Executive Summary

»

Scope update

In our Initial Audit Plan presented to the Civic Affairs Committee on the 13 July 2022 , we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit
of the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following updates:

» Change in materiality: In our Audit Planning Report, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of £3.000 million. We
updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft results and have also reconsidered our risk assessment. Based on our materiality measure of gross
expenditure, we have updated our overall materiality assessment to £2.600 million. This results in updated performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of
£1.950 million, and an updated threshold for reporting misstatements of £0.130 million.

» Change in group scope: In our Initial Audit Plan, we communicated that the scope for all Cambridge Investment Partnership entities would be ‘Other Procedures’, as
these amounts were not considered material to the Group financial statementsin terms of size relative to the Group and risk. Upon review of the draft financial
statements for these entities, CIP (Mill Road Development) LLP has made a significant surplus (£6.478 million)in 2021/22 of which £3.519 million has been
included within the Share of the Surplus on the Provision of Services by Joint Ventures within the Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. We
have therefore amended the scope of work at the joint venture to ‘specific scope procedures’, and issued group instructions to the component auditor (Peters

Q-? Elworthy & Moore LLP).

«Q
@D

Status of the audit

s reported in the Audit Plan, our audit procedures were scheduled to commence at the start of August, with reporting and sign off for a Civic Affairs Committeein

September. During this time we have experienced delays in our audit. Whilst the quality of responses has remained sufficient, there have been delays in areas including
Going Concern & Value for Money (initial responses were received on 21 September), property valuations (including responses from the Council’s external specialist),
payroll, infrastructure assets, receipts in advance, group accounts, and a number of other areas.

Whilst we have received cooperation from the Finance staff involved in our audit, the above issues demonstrate short-term capacity issues within the finance team
connected with the departure of the Deputy Head of Finance in July 2022. We understand that a new Deputy s151 Officer has since been recruited to address this
issue.

Our audit has not been concluded in line with the proposed timeline. This is principally due to additional audit work we have needed to complete in relation to additional
audit risks associated with this year’s financial statements, and a number of areas continue to experience delays. Details of our outstanding work can be found on the
next page. This has led to additional The need to complete additional audit procedures has increased the time being required for the audit which will result in additional
audit fees which have been set out at Section 7.



52 Executive Summary

»

Status of the audit (continued)

Our audit work in respect of the Council opinion is substantially complete. The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures were outstanding at
the date of this report:

» Creditors;

» Investment Property valuations;
» Pension Liability;

» Infrastructure Assets;

» Other Land & Building valuations;
» Receiptsin Advance;

» Group Accounting;

» Going Concern; and

P Journals Testing.

QO

Q |

@bosing Procedures:

— Subsequent eventsreview;

©) Agreement of the final set of financial statements;
» Receipt of signed management representation letter; and

» Final Manager and Engagement Partner reviews.
Details of each outstandingitem, actions required to resolve and responsibility is included in Appendix B.

Given that the audit process is still ongoing, we will continue to challenge the remaining evidence provided and the final disclosuresin the Narrative Report and
Accounts which could influence our final audit opinion. Key to the type of audit report we issue will be the resolution of the Infrastructure Asset issue. We have included
a current draft of an unmodified opinion in Section 4.



52 Executive Summary

»

Auditor responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice 2020

Under the Code of Audit Practice 2020 we are still required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness on its use of resources. The 2020 Code requires the auditor to design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the
Council a commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the Council has in place to secure value for money through economic,
efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

* Financial sustainability:
How the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

» Governance:
How the Council ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

* Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
How the Council uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

T

status of the audit - Value for Money
have completed our Value for Money (VFM) risk assessment and have not identified any risk of significant weakness against the three reporting criteria we are
meguired to consider under the NAO's 2020 Code.

W will need to update our assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements, including additional queries in relation to the Council's response to
challenges during the 2021/22 financial year, in order to remain satisfied that we have not identified a risk of significant weakness.

We plan to issue the VFM commentary by the end of December 2022 as part of issuing the Auditor's Annual Report. See Section 03 for more details on Value for Money
procedures.

Audit differences

Unadjusted Audit Differences
» At the date of issuing this report, there were no uncorrected misstatementsin the accounts that have an effect on the surplus/deficit on the provision of services.

Adjusted Audit Differences

» We identified a limited number of minor audit disclosure differences in the financial statements, which have been adjustment by Management. None are so
significant as to merit reporting to you.

The form of our audit report (opinion) will be dependent on the outcome of the matters set out on page 6.



5, Executive Summary

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Council. We have no matters to report as a
result of this work.

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission, as at the date of this report
the NAO have not issued their guidance to auditors.

Control observations

During the audit, we did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

independence

|

Iggease refer to Section 7 for our update on Independence.



52 Executive Summary

»

Areas of audit focus

In our Audit Plan we identified a number of key areas of focus for our audit of the financial report of Cambridge City Council. This report sets out our observations and
statusin relation to these areas, including our views on areas which might be conservative and areas where there is potential risk and exposure. Our consideration of
these matters and others identified during the period is summarised within the "“Areas of Audit Focus" section of this report.

Management Override: Misstatements due to fraud or error
» At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

Management Override: Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure
» We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Significant Risk: Investment Property Valuations
» At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.
o
gnificant Risk: Valuation of Other Land & Buildings
D At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

|_\
@nificant Risk: Change in Payroll System
» We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Significant Risk: Accounting for Infrastructure Assets
» At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

Inherent Risk: Accounting for Covid-19 related grant funding
» We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Inherent Risk: National Non-Domestic Rates Appeals Provision
» We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Inherent Risk: Pensions valuations and disclosures
» At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.



52 Executive Summary

»

Areas of audit focus (Continued)

Inherent Risk: Council House valuations
* We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

Inherent Risk: Group Accounting
» At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

Inherent Risk: Bad debt provision and recoverability of Debtors
» We have completed our work in this area and have no matters to report.

We request that you review these and other matters set out in this report to ensure:
There are no residual further considerations or matters that could impact these issues

® You concur with the resolution of the issue
There are no further significant issues you are aware of to be considered before the financial report is finalised

|_\
@Pere are no matters, other than those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Civic Affairs

mmittee or Management.

10






Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
Misstatements due to fraud

or error The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit
engagement.

One area susceptible to manipulation is the capitalisation of revenue expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment
given the extent of the Council's capital programme. The specific procedures undertaken to address this are set out

on the next page. This page details standard procedures we undertake to respond to the risk of fraud and error on
U every engagement.

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

morder to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

M |dentified fraud risks during the planning stages.

» Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those risks.

» Documentedour understanding of the oversight given by those charged with governance of management'’s processes over fraud.
» Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

» Testedthe appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements.
» Reviewedthe accounting estimates for evidence of management bias.
» Evaluatedthe business rationale for significant unusual transactions

ISA 240 mandates we perform procedures on: accounting estimates, significant unusual transactions and journal entries to ensure they are appropriate and in line with
expectations of the business.

What are our conclusions?

At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

To date, we have not identified any material weakness in controls or evidence of material management override, we have not identified any instances of inappropriate

judgements being applied, or of any management bias in accounting estimates and we have not identified any inappropriate journal entries or other adjustments to the
financial statements.

12



Areas of Audit Focus
Significant risk
Incorrect capitalisation of

revenue expenditure Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the
including Revenue public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states

. that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure
Expenditure Funded from recognition.

Capltal Under Statute We have identified an opportunity and incentive to capitalise expenditure under the accounting framework, to remove
(REFCUS) it from the general fund. In arriving at this conclusion we have considered the continuing pressure on the revenue
budget and the financial value of its annual capital programme which is many times out materiality level.

This could then result in funding of that expenditure, that should properly be defined as revenue, through
inappropriate sources such as capital receipts, capital grants, or borrowing.

T

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

83 Obtained an analysis of capital additions in the year, reconciled it to the Fixed Assets Register (FAR), and reviewed the descriptions to identify whether there are any
potential items that could be revenue in nature

» Sample tested additions to Property, Plant and Equipment to ensure that they have been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value in order to
identify any revenue items that have been inappropriately capitalised. There were no Investment Property additions.

» Confirmedthe REFCUS populationis not material.
» Used our data analytics tool to identify and test journal entries that move expenditure from revenue codes into capital codes.

What are our conclusions?

Our sample testing of additions to Property, Plant and Equipment found that they had been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value.
Our sample testing did not identify any revenue items that were incorrectly classified.

Our data analytics procedures did not identify any journal entries that incorrectly moved expenditure into capital codes.

13



Areas of Audit Focus
Significant risk
Valuation of Investment

Properties The Council's investment property portfolio is a material balance (£161 million at 31 March 2022) disclosed on the
Council's balance sheet.

Individual asset markets may react differently to ongoing uncertainties and considerations must be given to ensure
sufficient and appropriate market data is used for valuations during the 2021/22 period. Whilst RICS guidance on
material uncertainty has been lifted, there is still a significant level of judgement around assumptions within
valuations, especially where these assumptions rely on market data or income based measures, given difficulties in
estimating future income.

Thereis also a risk that the incoming valuer will have insufficient knowledge of the asset portfolio in order to reach a
U true and fair valuation.

R, order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

» Reviewedthe work performed by the Council’s valuer (Bruton Knowles), including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities
and the results of their work;

» Sampletested key asset information used by the valuersin performing their valuation (for example market rents and other market information).

» Engaged EY Real Estate as our internal specialists to review a sample of the valuations, assumptions and conclusions reached by the external valuers in regard to
investment properties and other assets valued using market information.

» Ensured accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.
» Reviewed assets not revalued in the year for any indications of potential material movements

What are our conclusions?

At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

14



Areas of Audit Focus
Significant risk

Valuation of Other Land and

Buildings The Council's Other Land and Buildings portfolio is a material balance (£146 million at 31 March 2022) disclosed on
the Council’s balance sheet. In addition, the Council holds other assets valued using market information.

In 2021/22, the Council have engaged with a new valuation specialist, Bruton Knowles, to undertake the valuation of
Other Land and Buildings. As a result there is an increased risk that the valuer may not have sufficient knowledge of

the specifics of the Council’s asset base in order to reach a reasonable estimate for the valuation of the asset
portfolio.

T

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

8% Reviewed the work performed by the Council's valuer (Bruton Knowles), including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities
and the results of their work;

» Sampletested key asset information used by the valuersin performing their valuation (for example market rents and other market information).

Engaged EY Real Estate as our internal specialists to review a sample of the valuations, assumptions and conclusions reached by the external valuersin regard to
investment properties and other assets valued using market information.

Ensured accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

>

Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code for PPE.

What are our conclusions?

At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

15



Areas of Audit Focus
Significant risk
Change in Payroll System

The Council implemented a new payroll system - iTRENT (Zullisin 2020/21) during the financial year.

As with any IT upgrade there is a risk that the relevant financial information has not been appropriately transferred to
the new system leading to material misstatement in the 2021/22 financial statements.

T

jab)
Q

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
gorder to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

» Understood the controls in place within the new ‘iTRENT' system, including the interaction between the system and the General Ledger;
» Understood the data transfer process from the previous system to the new system to ensure completeness of data transfer;

» Perform testing procedures in relation to the data transfer process to ensure accuracy of data transfer; and

» Perform analytical procedures on overall payroll expenditure to ensure that expenditure is not materially overstated or understated.

What are our conclusions?

Our work did not identify any issues with the change in payroll system. We have obtained an understanding of the interaction of the new system with the General Ledger
and the relevant controlsin place, including over the transfer of data.

No issues have been identified in respect of the new payroll system.

16



Areas of Audit Focus
Significant risk

q What is the risk?
Accounting for | Whatistherisk?
Infrastructure Assets An issue has been raised via the NAO's Local Government Technical Group that some local authorities are not writing

out the gross cost and accumulated depreciation on infrastructure assets when a major part/component has been
replaced or decommissioned.

This matteris currently under consideration by CIPFA and given the Council hold material Infrastructure Assets (£7
million at 31 March 2022) we have raised a significant risk in this area.

o
What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

‘ﬁ Discussed the matter with the Council as guidance on accounting for Infrastructure Assets is updated;

» Understood the Infrastructure Assets balance and the individual assets comprising this balance; and
» Understood the Council’'s process for writing out gross cost and accumulated depreciation on the Infrastructure Assets balance to determine whether this is
materially correct at the Balance Sheet date.

What are our conclusions?

At the date of issuing this report, our work in this area is still ongoing. We will update the Committee on our findings once the work is finalised.

At present we are awaiting a detailed assessment by the Council to demonstrate that the financial statements are compliant with the Code. This has the potential to lead

to a significant audit adjustment, or a modification to our final audit opinion, if the Council cannot evidence compliance with the Code of Audit Practice requirements (as
they currently stand). CIPFA are still considering other possible solutions to the matter.

17



Areas of Audit Focus
Inherent risk

Accounting for Covid-19

related grant funding = In response to the Covid-19 pandemic,. the Council have received sign.ificant Ieye[s of gran’_c fL_Jnding, both t.o.support
Inherent Risk the Council and to pass on to local businesses. Each of these grants will have distinct restrictions and conditions that

will impact the accounting treatment of these. We are aware of new Covid-19 grant income in 2021/22 for example
the COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) where the Council has received £9.8 million.

Given the volume of these grants, and the new conditions for the Council to understand the accounting impact of,
thereis a risk that these may be misclassified in the financial statements or inappropriately treated from an
accounting perspective.

» Sample tested Government Grant income to ensure that they have been correctly classified as specific or non-specific in nature.

» Sampletested Government Grant income to ensure that they have been correctly classified in the financial statements based on any restrictionsimposed by the
funding body.

» Reviewedthe instructions and conditions of a sample of grants to corroborate the Council's assessment of whether they were acting as an Agent or Principal in
disbursing the grants.

What are our conclusions?

Our sample testing of Covid related grant funding did not identify any grants that were incorrectly classified as specific or non-specificin nature, or any grants where
the incorrect accounting treatment was applied.

18



Areas of Audit Focus
Inherent risk

i i is the risk?
National Non-Domestic

Rates Appeals Provision- The calculation of the NNDR Appeals Provision is estimate based. Given the impact of Covid-19 on businesses seeking
Inh t Risk reductions in rateable values, there is a risk of material misstatement of the appeals provision due to the nature of the
nnheren IS provision and the uncertainty around the full impact of Covid-19.

In light of this we consider there to be an inherent risk of misstatement of the Council’'s NNDR appeals provision.

T

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

8 Reviewed the assumptions made by the Council’s NNDR appeals provision specialist; and
» Assessedthe reasonableness of any local adjustments made by the Council on the NNDR appeals provision;

What are our conclusions?

Our work did not identify any issues with the assumptions of the NNDR appeals provision specialist.

Where the Council had made local adjustments to reflect on local knowledge and developing appeals, these were also found to be reasonable.

19



Areas of Audit Focus
Inherent risk

Pension Liability valuation

and disclosures - Inherent The Authority makes extensive disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of Cambridgeshire
Risk Pension Fund Scheme administered by Cambridgeshire County Council. At 31 March 2022 the liability totalled £102
million.

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Authority by the actuary to the Cambridgeshire
Pension Fund.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf.

U We undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

» Liaised with the auditors of Cambridgeshire Pension Fund, to obtain assurances over the information supplied to the actuary in relation to Cambridge City Council;

» Assessedthe work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions they have used, by relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries
commissioned by the National Audit Office for all local government sector auditors, and by considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team; and

» Reviewedand tested the accounting entries and disclosures made within Cambridge City's financial statementsin relation to IAS 19, considering Fund assets and the
Council's liability.

What are our conclusions?

We have reviewed the assessment of the Pension Fund actuary by PwC and EY Pensions and have no matters to report.

The Council have requested a re-run of the IAS19 liability report from the Pension Fund Actuary. We will need to agree the Council’'s IAS 19 disclosures to the actuaries’
report to ensure these are fairly statedin the accounts.

20



Areas of Audit Focus
Inherent risk

Q . ° 2 . ?
Council Dwellings Valuations

Council dwellings represent a significant balance in the Council’s accounts (£726 million at 31 March 2022) and are
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. As the value of council houses are
significant, and the outputs from the its valuer are subject to estimation, there is a higher inherent risk balances may
be under/overstated or the associated accounting entries incorrectly posted.

T

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

I-E Considered the work performed by the Council's valuers (Wilkes Head & Eve), including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional
capabilities and the results of their work;

Sample tested key asset information used by the valuer in performing their valuation;
Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; and
Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements.

>
>

>

What are our conclusions?

Our work did not identify any issues with the valuation of Council Dwellings.

21



Areas of Audit Focus

Inherent risk

Group Accounting What is the risk?

2T abed

The Council has been preparing group accounts for several years.

The Council will need to undertake its annual assessment of the group boundary to determine the procedures it needs
to undertake to consolidate the relevant component entities.

Update

In our Initial Audit Plan, we communicated that the scope for all Cambridge Investment Partnership entities would be
‘Other Procedures’, as these amounts were not considered material to the Group financial statements in terms of size
relative to the Group and risk. Upon review of the draft financial statements for these entities, CIP (Mill Road
Development) LLP has made a significant surplus (£6.478 million)in 2021/22 of which £3.519 million has been
included within the Share of the Surplus on the Provision of Services by Joint Ventures within the Group
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. We have therefore amended the scope of work at the joint
venture to ‘specific scope procedures’, and issued group instructions to the component auditor (Peters Elworthy &
Moore LLP).

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?

In order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

>

>

>

Reviewed the Council's assessment of its group boundary;

Determined we would be able to obtain sufficient assurance of the group consolidation without the need to liaise with component auditors;
Evaluated any risks at component level on the group accounts; and

Audited the consolidation process and group accounts.

What are our conclusions?

At the date of issuing this report, we are still concluding our work in this area as we await response from the component auditor on our issued instructions, following the
change in scope set out above. We will provide an update to the Civic Affairs Committee with our findings once the work is finalised.



Areas of Audit Focus
Inherent risk

s S
Recoverability of Debtors -

Inherent Risk As a result of the long term impact of Covid-19 and other market uncertainties there may be increased uncertainty
around the recoverability of receivables. This includes large value debtors with subsidiary companies. The provision
for these bad debts is an estimate, and calculation requires management judgement. We would expect the Council to
revisit their provision for bad debt calculation in light of Covid-19 and assess the appropriateness of this estimation
technique. Given that there might be some subjectivity to the recoverability of debtors the Council will need to
consider the level of any provision for bad debts. We have therefore raised as an inherent risk in our audit strategy.

T

What did we do and what judgements did we focus on?
order to address this risk we undertook the following audit procedures:

g Reviewed the calculation of the bad debt provision for reasonableness and accuracy; and
» Consideredthe recoverability of debts in testing a sample of trade receivables;

What are our conclusions?

Our work did not identify any issues with the reasonableness, accuracy or sufficiency of the bad debt provisions held.

Our sample testing of trade receivables also did not identify any issues around the recoverability of debtors held on the balance sheet at year end.

23



03 Z:ULim{lelq:

"o :




Audit Report - continued

Our proposed opinion on the financial statements - subject to the resolution of outstanding procedures with no issues - specifically Infrastructure Asset

Accounting

G T obed

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Cambridge City Council ‘the Authority’ and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group") for the year ended 31 March 2022 under
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended). The financial statements comprise the:

Authority and Group Movement in Reserves Statement,

Authority and Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,

Authority and Group Balance Sheet,

Authority and Group Cash Flow Statement,

the related notes 1 to 30 to the Authority statements,

the related notes 1 to 5 to the Group statements,

the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement, and the related notes 1 to 4,
the Collection Fund and the related notes 1 to 3.

vV V.V vV vV VvV VY

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

In our opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the financial position of Cambridge City Council and the Group as at 31 March 2022 and of its expenditure and income for the
year then ended; and

» have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Authority and
Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
and the Comptroller and Auditor General's AGNO1, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25



Our proposed opinion on the financial statements - subject to resolution of the Infrastructure Asset issue

opT abed

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Group and the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of 12 months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the Group and Authority’'s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the ‘Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022', other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information contained within the ‘Statement of

Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022’

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

26



/T obed

Our proposed opinion on the financial statements

Audit Report - continued

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:

» in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the
Group and the Authority

» we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

» we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

» we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014 (as amended)

» we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

» we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and

» Accountability Act 2014 (as amended)

» we are not satisfied that the Group and the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
Responsibility of the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer

As explained more fully in the ‘Statement of Responsibilities’ set out on page 12, the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer is responsible for the
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such internal
control as the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer is responsible for assessing the Group and the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Group and
the Authority either intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure
proper stewardship and governance, and to review reqularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

27



Our proposed opinion on the financial statements

81T abed

vV V.V vV VvV VvV YV

DRAFT

Audit Report - continued

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irreqularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect irreqularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention
and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and determined that the most significant are:
Local Government Act 1972,

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (England and Wales),

Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government Finance Act 1992,

Local Government Act 2003,

The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Requlations 2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020,

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and

The Accounts and Audit Requlations 2015.

In addition, the Authority has to comply with laws and requlations in the areas of anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment legislation, tax
legislation, general power of competence, procurement and health & safety.

We understood how Cambridge City Council is complying with those frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for non-
compliance, including inquiring of management, the Head of Internal Audit and those charged with governance and obtaining and reading documentation
relating to the procedures in place to identify, evaluate and comply with laws and requlations, and whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We
corroborated this through our reading of the Authority’s committee minutes, Authority policies and procedures and other information.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and requlations. Our procedures had a focus on
compliance with the accounting framework through obtaining sufficient audit evidence in line with the level of risk identified and with relevant legislation.

28



61T obed

Our proposed opinion on the financial statements

Audit Report - continued

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Authority’'s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding
the potential incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the areas in which
this would most likely arise.

Based on our risk assessment procedures, we identified, inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure including Revenue Expenditure Funded from
Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) and management override of controls to be our fraud risks.

To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure including Revenue Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) we tested the
Council’s capitalised expenditure to ensure the capitalisation criteria were properly met and the expenditure was appropriate.

To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested specific journal entries identified by applying risk criteria to the entire population of
journals. For each journal selected, we tested the appropriateness of the journal and that it was accounted for appropriately. We assessed accounting
estimates for evidence of management bias and evaluated the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice 2020, having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by
the Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021, as to whether the Cambridge City Council had proper arrangements for financial sustainability,
governance and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness. The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether Cambridge City Council put in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to
form a view on whether, in all significant respects, Cambridge City Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

29



Audit Report - continued

Our proposed opinion on the financial statements

0GT abed

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Cambridge City Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 (as amended) and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Cambridge City Council, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (as
amended) and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector

Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Group and the
Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

30



r - N |
\ | R E“'eletedgs “In

'ﬂ- o
- f" 8 mx

| ! i v e e e i ™
Jan Feb Mar dpr May Jun Jul hug Sep Oct Nov D



+/ Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known" or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to
interpretation.

Summary of adjusted differences

We highlight misstatements greater than £130,000 which have been corrected by management that were identified during the course of our audit. We have not
identified any such differences to date.

There are no adjusted differences to bring to your attention at the date of this report.

Disclosure Differences

Uimited number of other disclosure and presentational items have been highlights to management for amendment. We do not deem these to merit inclusionin
gis report.

(9]

=
6]

N Summary of unadjusted differences

There are no uncorrected material misstatements identified as part of our audit at the time of this report.

32



2




1
'@ Value for money

—

The Council's responsibilities for value for money (VFM)

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while
safequarding and securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and
how this has operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailors the content to reflect its

own individual circumstances, consistent with the requirements set out in the Cipfa code of practice on local authority accounting. This includes a
requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

Risk assessment

g have completed our Value for Money (VFM) risk assessment and have not identified any risk of

nificant weakness against the three reporting criteria we are required to consider under the NAQO's Financial
20 Code.

Sustainability
|_\
ol
IS
Status of our VFM work
We will need to update our assessment on completion of the audit of the financial statements, including Arrangements for
additional queries in relation to the Council’'s response to challenges during the 2021/22 financial year, in Securing value for
order to remain satisfied that we have not identified a risk of significant weakness. money

We plan to issue the VFM commentary by the end of December 2022 as part of issuing the Auditor’s 'Empfov"‘g
Annual Report. See Section 03 for more details on Value for Money procedures. Eﬁfé}zsg,y&
effectiveness

Governance

34



‘‘‘‘‘‘‘
g

/

=7

¥ Other reporting issues

-




{Q@;Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the Narrative Report with the audited financial statements.

Financial informationin the Narrative Report and published with the financial statements was consistent with the audited financial statements, subject to completion
of our final audit procedures on the Narrative Report.

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies
with relevant guidance.

e have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we have no
(@ther matters to report.

D
=

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission, as at the date of this report
the NAO have not issued their guidance to auditors.

36



{Q@;Other reporting issues
Other reporting issues

Other powers and duties

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether to report on any matter that comes to our attention in the course of the audit,
either for the Authority to consider it or to bring it to the attention of the public (i.e. “a report in the public interest”). We did not identify any issues which required us
toissue areport in the public interest.

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other
matters if they are significant to your oversight of the Authority's financial reporting process. They include the following:

T
g Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;

 Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;

b= Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
x| Written representations we have requested;

» Expected modifications to the audit report;

» Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;

> Related parties;

» External confirmations;

» Going concern;

» Consideration of laws and regulations; and

> Group audits.

We have raised the difficulties experienced during the audit process, including delays in respect of going concern & group audit work, on page 5 of this report. We are
yet to conclude our work in these two areas. Our work on pensions and property valuations (significant accounting estimates) also remains in progress.






@ Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and the Council, and its members and senior management and
its affiliates, including all services provided by us and our network to the Council, its members and senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to
other known connected parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise
independence and the related safequards that are in place and why they address the threats.

There are no relationships from 1 April 2021 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity.

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The next page includes a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2022 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard and
in statute. Full details of the services that we have provided are in the next page. Further detail of all fees has been provided to the Civic Affairs Committee.

As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

MJaddition to our audit of the accounts, we will also be performing the Reporting Accounting role for the certification of Cambridge City's 2021/22 Housing Benefits

im. We have adopted the necessary safequards in our completion of this work and complied with Auditor Guidance Note 1 issued by the NAO. We confirm that we
ve not undertaken any additional non-audit work.

|—\
Ul
©

Other communications

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence
and integrity are maintained. Details of the key policies and processesin place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual
Transparency Report which the firm is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021:

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021



https://www.ey.com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021

@ Independence
Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Services provided by Ernst & Young

Planned fee 2021/22 Scale fee 2021/22 |Proposed Fee 2020/21

Total Fee - Code work 50,489 50,489 40,024

Baselineincrease in Scale Fee from 2019/20 (see Note 1) TBC 50,025

Revised Proposed Scale Fee 50,489 50,489 90,049

Additional work:

Z0R20/21 Additional Procedures required to address identified risks (Note 2) = = 43,015

&21{22 Adgition_a'l Pr'oced'ures r'equired in response to the additional risks and Note 3 )

éBher issues identified in this Audit Results Report

'@al fees TBC 50,489 133,064
()

All fees exclude VAT

Note 1 - For 2020/21 we have proposed an increase to the scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required which has been impacted by a range of
factors, as detailed in our 2020/21 Audit Results Report. Our proposed increase has been notified to Management and is with PSAA for determination. For
2021/22 the scale fee will again be re-assessed, taking into account inflationary costs, to reflect the same recurring risk factors as initially raised in 2019/20.
This will be subject to approval by PSAA Ltd.

Note 2 - The 2020/21 Additional Procedures relate to risks raised in our 2020/21 Audit Results Report. The fee has been notified to Management and is subject
to formal approval by PSAA Ltd.

Note 3 - As set out in this report, we have had to perform additional audit procedures to respond to the financial reporting of associated audit risks, including new
risks such as the new Payroll System and work to respond to the change in the Council's valuation expert. As we are concluding our work in relation to these
areas, we cannot quantify the fee impact at this time. We will provide an update on the additional fee implications at the conclusion of the audit and report this
within the Auditor’'s Annual Report.



0Is® Appendices

7




=, Appendix A
Required communications with the Civic Affairs Committee

There are certain communications that we must provide to the those charged with governance of UK entities. We have detailed t hese here together with a reference of
when and where they were covered:

Required communications |i What is reported?

Terms of engagement

o

jab)
Q

D
Qr responsibilities

ﬁ%nning and audit
approach

Significant findings
from the audit

Confirmation by the Civic Affairs Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as
writtenin the engagement letter signed by both parties.

Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter.

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the
significant risks identified.

When communicating key audit matters this includes the most significant risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) including those that have the greatest effect on
the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts
of the engagement team.

» Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

» Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

» Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management
» Written representations that we are seeking

» Expected modifications to the audit report

» Other mattersif any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where

The statement of responsibilities serves as the
formal terms of engagement between the
PSAA's appointed auditors and audited bodies

Initial Audit Plan - 22 June 2022
Audit Planning Report - 22 June 2022

Initial Audit Plan - 22 June 2022
2

Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

42



=, Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where
Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’'s ability Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

to continue as a going concern, including:

» Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty related to going
concern

» Whether the use of the going concern assumptionis appropriate in the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements

» The appropriateness of related disclosures in the financial statements

Misstatements » Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022
by law or regulation

» The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods

g-? » Arequestthat any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

L% » Material misstatements corrected by management

pabsequent events » Enquiry of the Civic Affairs Committee where appropriate regarding whether any Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022
8 subsequent events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

43



=, Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications |i What is reported? 9 When and where
Fraud » Enquiries of the Civic Affairs Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

o
jab)
Q
@D
=
(@)
IS

Related parties

Independence

any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

» Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a
fraud may exist

» Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the entity, any
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

» The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when
fraud involving management is suspected

» Any other mattersrelated to fraud, relevant to the Civic Affairs Committee
responsibility.

Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity's related parties Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022
including, when applicable:

» Non-disclosure by management

» Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions

» Disagreement over disclosures

» Non-compliance with laws and requlations

» Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity

Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY's, and all individuals Initial Audit Plan - 22 June 2022
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of _
independence and objectivity such as: Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

» The principal threats

» Safequards adopted and their effectiveness

» An overall assessment of threats and safeguards
»

Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity
and independence

44



=, Appendix A

Required communications |i What is reported?

Communications whenever significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and
independence and the appropriateness of safequards put in place.

For public interest entities and listed companies, communication of minimum requirements
as detailed in the FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019:

» Relationships between EY, the company and senior management, its affiliates and its
connected parties

» Services provided by EY that may reasonably bear on the auditors’ objectivity and
independence

» Relatedsafequards

» Feescharged by EY analysedinto appropriate categories such as statutory audit fees,
tax advisory fees, other non-audit service fees

» A statement of compliance with the Ethical Standard, including any non-EY firms or
external experts used in the audit

» Details of any inconsistencies between the Ethical Standard and Group's policy for the
provision of non-audit services, and any apparent breach of that policy

» Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply more restrictive rules than permitted
under the Ethical Standard

» The Civic Affairs Committee should also be provided an opportunity to discuss matters
affecting auditor independence

GoT abed

External confirmations » Management's refusal for us to request confirmations Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022
» Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

Consideration of laws » Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022
and requlations suspected non-compliance with laws and requlations, other than those which are clearly

inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance

may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur

imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

» Enquiry of the Civic Affairs Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with
laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that
the Civic Affairs Committee may be aware of

45



=, Appendix A

Required communications |i What is reported?

Significant deficienciesin
internal controls identified
during the audit

Group Audits

99T abed

Written representations
we are requesting from
management and/or those
charged with governance

Material inconsistencies or
misstatements of fact
identified in other
information which
management has refused
to revise

Auditors report

>

v

Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit.

An overview of the type of work to be performed on the financial information of the
components

An overview of the nature of the group audit team’s planned involvement in the work to
be performed by the component auditors on the financial information of significant
components

Instances where the group audit team's evaluation of the work of a component auditor
gave rise to a concern about the quality of that auditor's work

Any limitations on the group audit, for example, where the group engagement team'’s
access to information may have been restricted

Fraud or suspected fraud involving group management, component management,
employees who have significant roles in group-wide controls or others where the fraud
resulted in a material misstatement of the group financial statements.

Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with
governance

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which
management has refused to revise

Key audit matters that we will include in our auditor's report
Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report

Our Reporting to you

9 When and where
Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

Initial Audit Plan - 22 June 2022

Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022

46



=, Appendix B

Outstanding matters

The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of the release of this report:

Trade Payables

Investment Property valuations
Pension Liability

fgrastructure Assets
QD

«Q

@ther Land & Building valuations
|_\

®

Rg¢ceiptsin Advance

Group accounting

Value for Money

Going Concern

Journal Entry Testing

Receipt of management representation letter

Conclude on the treatment of Central Government
creditors on a net or gross basis

Awaiting support for final assumptions used within the
valuations, and conclusion of work following this

Awaiting re-run report from the Council's actuary

Awaiting Council assessment to demonstrate Code
compliancein the treatment of infrastructure assets

Awaiting support for final assumptions used within the
valuations, and conclusion of work following this

Conclude our sample testing of receipts in advance

Awaiting response to group instructions issued to the
component auditor

Awaiting response to queries on specific arrangements
during 2021/22

Complete our substantive procedures including a review of
the Council's assessment and disclosure

Complete our substantive procedures including our
understanding of key processesinteraction with the
general ledger

Management to prepare and provide us with their
representation letter for the 2021/22 audit

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Provision of information by Management

Management

47



=, Appendix B
Outstanding matters

The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of the release of this report:

Item @ Actions to resolve A?;j’ Responsibility

Subsequent events procedures Extension of some audit procedures like review of minutes  EY and management
and testing for unrecorded liabilities and provisions up to
the date of our auditor’'s report

Checks to the final amended set of accounts EY to receive final set of accounts with all audit EY and management
adjustments, and review it for consistency with our
schedule of misstatements

o
jab)

%til all our audit procedures are complete, we cannot confirm the final form of our audit opinion as new issues may emerge or we may not agree on final detailed
gisclosuresin the Annual Report. At this point no issues have emerged that would cause us to modify our opinion, but we should point out that key disclosures on going
cgomcern remain to be finalised and audited. A draft of the current opinion (with outstanding areas highlighted) is included in Section 3.

48



=, Appendix C - Request for a Management Representation Letter

Request for a Management Representation Letter

69T abed

Emst & Young LLP Tel: + 44 1223 394400 'Y
One Cambridge Business ParkFax: + 44 1223 394401 § ¥
Cambridge ey.com !ﬁ;,,d'
CB4 OWZ
Building a better INVESTOR IN PEOPLE
working warld

Caroline Ryba 21 October 2022
Head of Finance

Cambridge City Council Ret

The Guildhall ourre

Peas Hill Direct ine: 01223 204547
gglggr‘;{]ge Email: MHodgson@uk ey.com

Dear Caroline,

Cambridge City Group and Council — 2021/22 financial year
Request for a letter of representation

International Standards on Auditing set out guidance on the use by auditors of management
representations (ISA (UK&I) 580) and on possible non-compliance with laws and regulations (ISA (UK&I)
250). | have interpreted this guidance as it affects Local Government bodies and | expect the following
points to apply:

« auditors may wish to obtain written representation where they are relying on management's
repl ions in respect of judg ital matters (for example the level of likely incidence of a
claim), which may not be readily corroborated by other evidence;

« auditors are likely to request written representations on the completeness of information
provided;

« auditors may wish to obtain written representation on issues other than those directly related to
the Statement of Accounts;

« the letter is dated on the date on which the auditor signs the opinion and certificate;

« the letter is signed by the person or persons with specific respensibility for the financial
statements; and

« the letter is formally acknowledged as having been discussed and approved by the Audit
Committee, as those charged with governance of the Group and Council.

I would expect the letter of representation to include the following matters.
General statement

That the letter of representations is provided in connection with our audit of the financial statements of
Cambridge City Group and Council (“the Group and Council’) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

That you recognise that obtaining representations from you concerning the information contained in this
letter is a significant procedure in enabling us to form an opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and Council as of 31 March 2022 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

EY 2

Building a better
warking world

You understand that the purpose of our audit of your financial statements is to express an opinion
thereon and that our audit is conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland), which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and related data to the
extent we considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to identify - nor necessarily
be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, you make the following representations, which are true to the best of your knowledge and
belief, having made such inquiries as you considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately
informing ourselves:

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. That you have fulfilled your responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with, for the Group and Council the Accounts
and Audit Regulations 2015 (as amended in 2020 for Covid-19) and CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

2. That you acknowledge as members of management of the Group and Council, your responsil
for the fair presentation of the Group and Council's financial statements. You believe the Group
and Council financial statements referred to above give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial perft ice (or results of operations) and cash flows of the Group and Council in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Cede of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2021/22 and are free of material misstatements, including omissions. You have approved
the Group and Council financial statements

3. That the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group and Council
financial statements are appropriately described in the Group and Council financial statements.

4. As members of management of the Group and Council, you believe that the Group and Council has
a system of internal controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in
accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Autherity Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2021/22, that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. You have
disclosed to us any significant changes in your processes, controls, policies and procedures that
you have made to address the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal
controls.

5. That you believe that the effects of any unadjusted audit differences, summarised in the Audit
Results Report, accumulated by us during the current audit and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

That you have not corrected these differences identified and brought to your attention by us
because (please specify the reasons for not correcting the misstatements).

6. That you have disclosed to us any significant changes in our processes, controls, policies and
procedures that you have made to address the effects of the conflict and related sanctions in
Ukraine, Russia andfor Belarus on your system of internal controls. That you do not believe that
there are any significant changes.

49



=, Appendix C - Request for a Management Representation Letter

Request for a Management Representation Letter

0.T abed

EY ’

Building a better
working world

B.N liance with law and regulati il ing fraud

P

That you acknowledge that you are responsible to determine that the Group and Council’s activities
are di d: with laws and ions and that you are responslble for identifying
and ad i any i with i laws and fraud.

That you acknowledge that you are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal controls to prevent and detect fraud.

That you have disclosed to us the results of our assessment of the risk that the Group and Council
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

You have no k ledge of any i non- with laws and regulations,
including fraud that may have affected (he Group or Council (regardless of the source or form and
including without limitation, any by ") il i matters:

« involving financial statements;

« related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the di ination of material
and disclosures in the Group and Council's financial statements;

« related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, but compliance with which may be fundamental to the operations of the
Group or Council's activities, its ability to continue to operate, or to avoid material penalties;

o i or

who have si roles in internal controls, or others; or

e in relahon to any allegatlons of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance with laws and
by employees, former employees, analysts, regul: or others.

C. Information Provided and C I of Inf ion and Tr:

1

You have provided us with:

Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial
statements such as records, documentation and other matters as agreed in terms of the audit
engagement.

Additional information that we have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

That all material i events and itions have been ded in the ing records
and are reflected in the Group and Council financial statements, including those related to the
COVID-19 pandemic and to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or Belarus.

EY :

Building a better
working world

That you have made available to us all minutes of the meetings of the Group and Council and its
relevant committees (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet
been prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: 3 November
2022

That you confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related
parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Group and Council related parties and all
related party relationships and transactions of which you are aware, including sales, purchases,
loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary
tran { and i for no consid: ion for the period ended, as well as related balances
due to or from such parties at the year end. These transactions have been appropriately accounted
for and disclosed in the Group and Council financial statements.

That you believe that the significant assumptions you used in making accounting estimates,
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable

That you have disclosed te us, and the Group and Council has complied with, all aspects of
contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the Group and Council financial
statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other
requirements of all outstanding debt.

That from the date of your last management representation letter to us, through the date of this
letter, you have disclosed to us any unauthorized access to your information technology systems
that either occurred or to the best of your knowledge is reasonably likely to have occurred based on
your investigation, including of reports submitted to you by third parties (including regulatory
agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants), to the extent that such unauthorized
access to your information technology systems is reasonably likely to have a material impact to the
financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral,
have been disclosed to us and are appropriately reflected in the Group and Council financial
statements.

That you have informed us of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they
have been discussed with legal counsel

That you have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related litigation and claims,
both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the Group and Council financial statements
(please specify the Notes) all guarantees that you have given to third parties.

E. Subsequent Events

1

That other than the disclosure described in Note 6 (Events after the balance sheet date) to the
Group and Council's financial statements, there have been no events, including events related to
the COVID-19 pandemic, or related to the conflict and related sanctions in Ukraine, Russia and/or
Belarus, subsequent to period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

50



=, Appendix C - Request for a Management Representation Letter

T/ T obed

Request for a Management Representation Letter

EY :

Building a better
working world

F. Other information

1. You acknowledge your responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the Narrative Report included in the Statement of Accounts 2021-22.

g

You confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the financial
statements.

G. Accounting Estimates

1. That you believe that the significant assumptions you used in making accounting estimates, including
those measured at fair value, are reasonable

2. In respect of accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial statements:

s That you believe the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, you
used in determining accounting estimates is appropriate and the application of these processes
is consistent.

s That the disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and appropriate in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

« That the assumptions you used in making accounting estimates appropriately reflects your intent
and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity, where relevant to the
accounting estimates and disclosures.

« That no subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting estimates and disclosures
included in the financial statements

H. Expenditure Funding Analysis

1. You confirm that the financial statements reflect the operating segments reported internally to the
Group and Council

I. Going Concern

1. That the Group and Council has prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis and that
MNote 2.2 to the financial statements discloses all of the matters of which you are aware that are
relevant to the Group and Council's ability to continue as a going concern, including significant
conditions and events, your future financial plans and the veracity of the associated future funding
allocations from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities, the sufficiency of cash
flows to support those financial plans.

J. Ownership of Assets

1. That except for assets recognised as right-of-use assets in accordance with IFRS 16 Leases, the
Group and Council has satisfactory title to all assets appearing in the balance sheet(s), and there are
no liens or encumbrances on the Group and Council's assets, nor has any asset been pledged as
collateral. All assets to which the Group and Council has satisfactory title appear in the balance
sheet(s).

EY :

Building a better
working world

K

L

g

ko

bl

bl

~

=

- Reserves

You have properly recorded or disclosed in the Group and Council financial statements the useable
and unusable reserves.

. Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets

That you agree with the findings of the experts engaged to evaluate the valuation of the Group and
Council's Property, Plant and Equipment and have adequately considered the qualifications of the
specialists in determining the amounts and disclosures included within the Group and Council's
financial statements and the underlying accounting records. That you did not give or cause any
instructions to be given to the experts with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to
bias their work, and that you are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an effect on the
independence or objectivity of the experts.

You believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used to
determine the accounting esti ) have been i ly applied and are appropriate in the
context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021/22.

You confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of Property, Plant and
Equipment appropriately reflect your intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity.

You confirm that the disclosures made in the Group and Council financial statements with respect to
the accounting estimate(s) are complete, including the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on Property,
Plant and Equipment valuations and made in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

You confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and disclosures in the
Group and Council financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to the Covid-19
pandemic.

You confirm that you have performed a desktop review of all assets not subject to revaluation as part
of the 5 year rolling programme for valuations and that each asset category is not materially misstated

You confirm that for assets carried at historic cost, that no impairment is required.
Retirement benefits

That on the basis of the process established by you and having made appropriate enquiries, you are
satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the pension scheme liabilities are consistent with

your knowledge of the All it it benefits and all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

You agree with the findings of the specialists that you engaged to evaluate the Valuation of Pension
Liabilities and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the Group and Council financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. You did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and you are not otherwise
aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

51



=, Appendix C - Request for a Management Representation Letter

Request for a Management Representation Letter

2/ 1 abed

EY '

Building a better
working world

N

You believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used to
determine the accounting estimate(s) have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the
context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021722

You confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of the pension scheme
liability appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of
the entity.

You confirm that the disclosures made in the Group and Council financial statements with respect to
the accounting estimate(s) are complete, including the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
Pension Scheme Liability and made in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

You confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and disclosures in the
Group and Council financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to the Covid-19
Pandemic

. Business Rates Appeals Provision Estimate

That on the basis of the process established by you and having made appropriate enquiries, you are
satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the Business Rates Appeals Provision are
consistent with your knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements
and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

You agree with the findings of the specialists that you d to luate the Business Rates
Appeals Provision and have adequately considered the gualifications of the specialists in determining
the amounts and disclosures included in the Group and Council financial statements and the
underlying accounting records. You did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists
with respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and you are not
se aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the

You believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used to
determine the accounting estimate(s) have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the
context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021722

You confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of the Business Rates
Appeals Provision appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on
behalf of the entity.

You confirm that the disclosures made in the Group and Council financial statements with respect to
the accounting estimate(s) are complete, including the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
Business Rates Appeals Provision and made in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

You confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and disclosures in the
Group and Council financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to the Covid-19
Pandemic.

EY :

Building a better
working world

0. Bad Debt Provision Estimate

That on the basis of the process established by you and having made appropriate enquiries, you are
satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the Bad Debt Provision Estimate are consistent
with your knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and
curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for.

You agree with the findings of the specialists that you engaged to evaluate the Bad Debt Provision
Estimate and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures included in the Group and Council financial statements and the underlying
accounting records. You did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with
respect to the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and you are not otherwise
aware of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

You believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used to
determine the accounting estimate(s) have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the
context of the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Autherity Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021/22.

. You confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the valuation of the Bad Debt Provision

Estimate appropriately reflect our intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of
the entity.

You confirm that the disclosures made in the Group and Council financial statements with respect to
the accounting estimate(s) are complete, including the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the Bad
Debt Provision Estimate and made in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22.

. You confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimate(s) and disclosures in the

Group and Council financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to the Covid-19
Pandemic

P. Group audits

1

There are no significant restrictions on your ability to distribute the retained profits of the Group
because of statutory, contractual, exchange control or other restrictions other than those indicated
in the Group financial statements

Mecessary adjustments have been made to eliminate all material intra-group unrealised profits on
transactions ameongst council, subsidiary undertakings and associated undertakings.

You confirm that entities excluded from the Group financial statements are immaterial on a
quantitative and qualitative basis.

Q. Specific Representations

We do not require any specific representations in addition to those above.

52



=, Appendix C - Request for a Management Representation Letter

Request for a Management Representation Letter

EY ’

Building a better
working world

| would be grateful if you could provide a letter of representation, which is appropriately signed and dated
(by the 5151 officer and Chair of Civic Affairs Committee) on the proposed audit opinion date (date to be
advised) on formal headed paper.

Yours sincerely

Mark Hodgson
Partner

Emnst & Young LLP
United Kingdom

¢/ T obed

53



=, Appendix D

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases

In previous reports to the Civic Affairs Committee, we have highlighted the issue of new accounting standards and regulatory developments. IFRS 16 introduces a number
of significant changes which go beyond accounting technicalities. For example, the changes have the potential to impact on procurement processes as more information
becomes available on the real cost of leases. The key accounting impact is that assets and liabilities in relation to significant lease arrangements previously accounted for
as operating leases will need to be recognised on the balance sheet. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be accounted for using the acquisition approach,
recognising the rights acquired to use an asset.

IFRS 16 does not come into effect for the Council until 1 April 2024. However, officers should be acting now to assess the Council's leasing positions and secure the
required information to ensure the Council will be fully compliant with the 2024/25 Code. The following table summarises some key areas officers should be progressing.

IFRS 16 theme Summary of key measures

Data collection

d

Q
Q
®
=
\]
Y

icy Choices

Code adaptations for the
public sector

Transitional accounting
arrangements

Ongoing accounting
arrangements

Remeasurements and
modifications

Management should:

» Putin place arobust process to identify all arrangements that convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time. The adequacy of this process should be discussed with auditors.

» Classify all such leasesinto low value; short-term; peppercorn; portfolio and individual leases

» Identify, collect, log and check all significant data points that affect lease accounting including: the term of the lease; reasonably
certain judgements on extension or termination; dates of rent reviews; variable payments; grandfathered decisions; non-lease
components; and discount rate to be applied.

The council needs to agree on certain policy choices. In particular:

» Whetherto adopt a portfolio approach

» What low value threshold to set and agree with auditors

» Which asset classes, if any, are management adopting the practical expedient in relationto non-lease components
» What is managements policy in relation to discount rates to be used?

Finance teams should understand the Code adaptations for the public sector. The Code contains general adaptations, (e.g. the definition
of a lease); transitional interpretations (e.g. no restatement of prior periods) and adaptations that apply post transition (e.g. use of
short-term lease exemption).

Finance teams should understand the accounting required on first implementation of IFRS 16. The main impact is on former operating
leases where the authority is lessee. However, there can be implications for some finance leases where the council is lessee; and
potentially for sub-leases, where the council is a lessor, that were operating leases under the old standard.

Finance teams need to develop models to be able to properly account for initial recognition and subsequent measurement of right of use
assets and associated liabilities. This is more complex than the previous standard due to more regular remeasurements and possible
modifications after certain trigger events.

Finance teams need to familiarise themselves with when the ‘remeasurement’ or ‘modification’ of a lease is required and what to do
under each circumstance. A modification can lead to an additional lease being recognised. It is also important to know when
remeasurements require a new discount rate is to be applied to the lease.

54



&b

ab

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for
our clients and for our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer
o your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Annual Governance Statement 2021/2022
	Annual Governance Statement 2122
	Local Code of Governance

	5 Statement of Accounts 2021/22
	Statement of Accounts 2021-22 25.10.2022
	22 Cambridge City Council - Audit Results Report - 21 October 2022


